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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to be delivering my first message as Chairman of Wanda
Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”)

While the overall hospitality sector in PRC was still confronting
challenges from the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”), the
Company demonstrated the resilience of our business through solid
financial results in 2021. Our reported revenue and profit attributable
to equity holders of the parent for 2021 were HK$873.7 million and
HK$240.5 million respectively, representing 33.3% and 45.6% year-on-
year increase. Our financial position has been continually improved with
stable cash flow and net cash position as at 31 December 2021.

Looking ahead, the PRC hospitality sector will continue to be affected
by the Pandemic in 2022. While the Group will continue to focus
on attractive investment opportunity, we will stay vigilant in our cost
discipline and cautious in our business development. Nevertheless,
with support from our parent company, Dalian Wanda Commercial
Management Group Co., Ltd. (‘DWCM”, together with its subsidiaries,
“DWCM Group”), we are confident that our business has become
stronger in the face of adversity and is well-positioned for medium and
long-term growth.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group.

Ning Qifeng
Chairman

23 March 2022
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During 2021, the Group’s principal businesses are divided into the
following three business segments: —

Hotel business 1. Hotel management and operations
2. Hotel design and construction
management
Property business 3. Investment properties leasing

HOTEL BUSINESS

During 2021, the Group’s hotel businesses have been operated by
Wanda Hotel Management (HK) Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Hotel Management”),
which is a leading hotel services provider in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and is principally engaged in the business of
hotel management and operations, hotel design and construction
management and related consultancy and other ancillary business, with
comprehensive capabilities in hotel management and operation.

Hotel Management and Operation

During 2021, the Group opened 15 new hotels which were in operation.
As of 31 December 2021, the hotel network under the Group’s
management consisted of 89 hotels with 23,268 rooms in operation
covering 74 cities in PRC and Istanbul of Turkey, and an additional 171
hotels were contracted to be managed by Wanda Hotel Management
but are still under development and have not commenced operation yet.
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Wanda Hotel Management currently manages hotels under the following RIEENRNEFE  BEBAEBEANBEEUT

brands that are designed to target distinct segments of customers: — mAEEEIE © —
Brand
Hotel Brand Positioning Service Features
BIE m fn h TE AU RS
Wanda Reign ° Luxury . An ultra-luxury hotel brand for luminaries and the social
BERE o  BIEMRMM elites that delivers supremely personalized services and

transcends every expectation.
e RUGEBREBEALT  EEBHBEAEM(CAL AR
% WITAERBIE N BB EIEAE M

Wanda Vista ° Deluxe ° A luxury hotel brand for distinguished guests who relish
BEXE o REMRE extraordinary services in Oriental elegance that seamlessly

blends with local culture.
o AEHMEEENEEER  REMEGRSTHBEEEHR
BERRBERRTS - W EERIRE RN SRIEDE M

Wanda Realm o Upscale full-service o A premium hotel brand built upon quality service from
BiERE o =i 2 AR superb international standards for business and leisure
travelers.

o ABBIKTEAMEERER REMEHR  SUEFEDN
BIBEARTS I F AZ O AL BB BREY = v 5 2

Wanda Jin ° Upscale select-service e A premium and select service hotel brand built upon
BiERE o SiRiEEME boutique design and quality service offering a balanced life

experience for business and leisure travelers.
s REBRTRMEAERER REERIREBEREER
o WE TR AT B T & IR S ih & B /5 mhe
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Brand
Hotel Brand Positioning Service Features
B I R R W TE A RS
Wanda Vi o Upscale living style o A premium high-end lifestyle hotel brand offering distinctive
R e mmAEEAR design, imaginative and livable space to travelers seeking
lives” exquisiteness and surprises
. ﬁxﬂ R REEE  BEREmARERERTERS
C EREFERAG N - BRAEN WA VEEMRE
Wanda Moments ° Upper mid-scale ° A high-end midscale hotel brand dedicating to quality
BEXE o HEiR design and select services for the ultimate comfort of
business travelers
e BUIMNABARK BEREXLTE - ERIEEBRNOER
BH - REEE R HET GRS S
Wanda Yue o Mid-scale o A midscale hotel brand offering intimate services to business
EENEE e Fimm# travelers who are highly individual and willing to experience
the trendy
o HORNAEAMEM - ERNBRITINEIREH  RHAOR
T8 i B E A

The following table sets forth a breakdown by hotel brands and TREEEF—F+_A=1T—H &
operational model of hotels in operation managed by Wanda Hotel GRS E R A EOE EECEEE

Management as at 31 December 2021 — HFERAA - —
Leased-and-
Operated Managed Franchised Number of
Hotels Hotels Hotels Hotel Room
HEHE SR
BEEE EEBEE BEIE EE#E
Wanda Reign BENE - 3 - 842
Wanda Vista BIENE - 19 - 5,735
Wanda Realm BERE - 39 2 11,502
Wanda Jin BIERE - 6 1,688
Wanda Vi BiEkEE 1 1 - 686
Wanda Moments BiEXRE 3 8 - 1,641
Wanda Yue BiENE - 3 — o
Others HAh - 2 1
Grand Total we 4 81 4 23,268
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Leased and operated hotels

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had four leased-and-operated
hotels, accounting for approximately 4% of our hotels in operation.
Under the leased-and-operated hotels model, the Group leases hotels
from hotel owners and manages and operates these hotels with all of
the accompanying expenses borne by the Group.

For our leased-and-operated hotels, we are responsible for recruiting,
training and supervising the hotel managers and employees, paying for
leases and costs associated with construction and renovation of these
hotels, and purchasing all supplies and other required equipment. The
terms of our leases typically range from 15 to 20 years, with an initial
two to 15-month rent-free period. We generally pay fixed rent on a
quarterly or biannual basis for the first three to five years of the lease
term, after which we are generally subject to a pre-determined rent
increase annually. Our leases usually allow for term extensions by mutual
agreement. As of 31 December 2021, none of our leases were expected
to expire in 2022.

Managed hotels

As of 31 December 2021, we had 81 managed hotels, accounting for
approximately 92% of all of our hotels in operation. Under the managed
hotel model, we license our relevant brand to hotel owners, manage
hotels through the on-site hotel management team who we appoint and
we charge and collect management fees from hotel owners.

For our managed hotels, we offer hotel owners the right to use our
brand name, logo, operating manuals and procedures. These hotels
will be operated in accordance with our brand standard, including
converting the hotel property such that it conforms to the standard
design and layout of the corresponding brand offering under our
supervision, becoming integrated into our central reservation system and
hotel management IT system, and being included in our consumable
goods procurement system. The property owners are responsible for
the costs of developing and operating their hotels, including the costs of
renovating the hotels to meet our standards.

8 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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Franchised hotels

As of 31 December 2021, we had four franchised hotels, accounting for
approximately 4% of all of our hotels in operation. Under the franchised
hotel model, we license our relevant brand to hotel owners similar to the
managed hotel model, but we provide training, reservation and support
services to the franchised hotels and collect fees from franchisees and
do not appoint on-site hotel management personnel.

For our franchised hotels, we offer hotel owners the right to use our
brand name, logo, operating manuals and procedures and convert the
franchised hotels in accordance with our brand standard similar to our
managed hotels. However, as opposed to appointing hotel managers
to manage the hotels on-site, we provide training to hotel staff and
offer reservation and support services to the franchised hotels. In order
to ensure that services offered by the franchised hotels are of quality
consistent with other hotels managed by us, the Group carries out
periodic assessments and report on various aspects of the operation of
the franchised hotels.

Key performance indicators

Revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) is the non-financial key
performance indicator that the senior management reviews frequently. It
is a key performance indicator commonly used in the hospitality industry
and is defined as the product of average occupancy rates and average
daily rates per room achieved. Occupancy rates of our hotels mainly
depend on the locations of our hotels, product and service offering, the
effectiveness of our sales and brand promotion efforts, our ability to
effectively manage hotel reservations, the performance of managerial
staff and other employees of our hotels, as well as our ability to respond
to competitive pressure. We set the room rates of our hotels primarily
based on the location of hotels, room rates charged by our competitors
within the same locality and our relative brand and product strength in
the city or city cluster.
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The following table sets forth our RevPAR, average daily room rate and
occupancy rate for our hotels for the year ended 31 December 2021: —

TRIETHRMBE-_T-_—F+-_RA=+—
BIEFENEEN TR HEATEFERA - F15
BHREEMAEX : —

For Year Ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —=TF
Occupancy rate (%) AEE (%)
All hotels FrBE MBS 47.6% 44.2%
Upscale and above hotels SimeER A _ERE 47.6% 43.8%
Midscale hotels B s 47.5% 53.8%
Average daily rate (RMB) THEHREE(ARK)
All hotels FB B 539 519
Upscale and above hotels =i B A OB JE 560 530
Midscale hotels i 274 268
RevPAR (RMB) FHAHEATERA (ARY)
All hotels PR 257 230
Upscale and above hotels =umEL A _EOB S 267 232
Midscale hotels B IS 130 144

Hotel design and construction management

The Group’s hotel design and construction management business
targets the same client base as the hotel management and operation
business. Our hotel design business mainly provides interior and
mechanical, electrical and plumbing design services (including interior,
furnishing, lighting, early and later stage design services, mechanical
and electrical parts design, kitchen and back-of-house areas design
services) and charge design fees with reference to the building area of
the hotels on a per square meter basis, depending on the type of design
service rendered. Our hotel construction management business offers
consultancy and project management services to hotels managed by
the Group to ensure that the projects are completed according to the
agreed specifications in terms of cost, time and quality. The service fees
charged are based on a percentage of the total costs of the relevant
project with certain incentives for achieving cost-savings (against budget)
targets.
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PROPERTY BUSINESS
Guilin Project, the PRC

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land
in Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda
Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Wanda HK”) in the
form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and Wanda
HK holds 49%. The project (“Guilin Project”) is located in the central
area of Guilin High-tech Zone, with planned total gross floor area of
approximately 330,000 sqg.m., including 153,000 sg.m. of shopping mall
and 177,000 sg.m. of retall, residential and other properties for sale.

All saleable residential and retail properties of the Guilin Project have
been sold. The shopping mall opened in September 2015. With
satisfactory commercial leases and operating conditions, the shopping
mall has become a supreme landmark business centre in Guilin.

OUTLOOK

With effective pandemic control measures implemented by the
Chinese government, the economy in the PRC rebounded strongly as
the government introduced various policies to encourage domestic
consumption. Particularly in the first half of 2021, we saw a sustained
recovery in domestic tourism and business. Nevertheless, with the
upsurge of COVID-19 Delta cases and its spread to other provinces and
cities during the second half of the year, our operating performance has
been impacted negatively. The Group will be cautious in our business
operation and identify good investment opportunities to expand our hotel
business. Moreover, the Group will continue the expansion of its hotel
business and plan to open 15-20 new hotels in 2022.

For the property business of the Group, we will continue to improve the
operating efficiency of our property asset and review and evaluate its
future plans.

The Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment
opportunities, further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance
the Group’s profitability and maximize return for its shareholders.
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Financial Review

By %51 RR

Revenue

The Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 by
segment can be analyzed as below: —

Wy 78

AEBBE T —FLK-_TFEF+_A
=t—REFEZEEZITET : —

2021 2020 Changes
B —ZT-THF &
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FHET FET FET %
Hotel operation and BIEEEREERG

management services 565,478 378,044 187,434 49.6

Hotel design and construction BIE SR R EREE RS
management services 200,916 173,722 27,194 15.7
Investment properties leasing REYHERE 107,265 103,653 3,612 3.5
Total st 873,659 655,419 218,240 33.3

Hotel operation and management services revenue increased to
approximately HK$565.5 million in 2021 from approximately HK$378
million in 2020. Such revenue growth was mainly due to: i) the increase
in hotel management service fee income by approximately 39% to
approximately HK$423.4 million in 2021 as compared to approximately
HK$304.6 in 2020, since the performance of hotels managed by the
Group recovered steadily during the year, as reflected by the increase in
RevPAR, as calculated by multiplying average daily rate by occupancy
rate of hotels managed by the Group, to RMB257 during the year (2020:
RMB230), following the easing of the Pandemic related travel advisories
or restrictions in the PRC; ii) the hotel operation revenue increased
significantly by approximately 93.6% to approximately HK$142.1
million as compared to approximately HK$73.4 million in 2020, mainly
attributable to the opening of one new leased-and-operated hotel during
the year and the improved performance of three leased-and-operated
hotels, which were opened before 2021, due to the easing of the severe
disruption from the outbreak of the Pandemic in early 2020 and the
increase in revenue from sales of goods and catering services which
was doubled to approximately HK$77.8 million in 2021 as compared to
approximately HK$37.9 million in 2020.
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Hotel design and construction management services revenue
increased to approximately HK$200.9 million in 2021 as compared
to approximately HK$173.7 million in 2020, mainly due to additional
revenue from accelerated work progress to catch up with delay of
construction works during the Pandemic in 2020 and additional new
hotel design and construction management service contracts in 2021.

Investment properties leasing revenue increased to approximately
HK$107.3 million in 2021 from approximately HK$103.7 million in 2020,
mainly due to higher variable rental income recorded as a result of
gradual recovery of the retail market in the PRC.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group rose by 56% to approximately HK$411.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from HK$264.2 million for
2020 primarily due to an increase in sales resulting from easing of the
Pandemic-related travel advisories and restrictions in the PRC.

Gross profit and margin

Gross profit rose to approximately HK$461.9 million in 2021 from
approximately HK$391.2 million in 2020. The gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 52.9% in 2021 from approximately 59.7%
in 2020. Such profit margin decline was primarily attributed to higher
direct staff costs incurred in the hotel management and hotel design
and construction management business. Moreover, sales of goods and
catering services revenue with a lower margin which accounted for a
higher proportion of the revenue in 2021 also contributed to margin
decline.

Net valuation loss on investment properties
Net valuation loss on investment properties of the Group increased to

approximately HK$53 million in 2021, as compared to approximately
HK$34.5 million in 2020.

Financial Review
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Segment results DEBELE

T?%FQL$’§. DRIREE —ERr=F
TE+-A=1— E!Ltifﬁ’]“*%%ii'

The following table illustrates the segment results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively: —

2021 2020 Changes
B —ZT-THF &

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %

FHET FET FET %

Hotel operation and management G BN EERG 167,470 92,958 74,512 80.2

services

Hotel design and construction BIE SR R EREE RS

management services 38,863 51,102 (12,239) (24.0)

Investment properties leasing HEMERE 30,542 53,062 (22,520) (42.4)

Total e 236,875 197,122 39,753 20.2

The measure used for reporting segment results is adjusted profit before
tax from continuing operations.

Hotel operation and management services segment profit increased
to approximately HK$167.5 million in 2021 from approximately HK$93
million in 2020, primarily due to significant segment revenue increase as
above mentioned.

Hotel design and construction management services segment profit
decreased to approximately HK$38.9 million in 2021 from approximately
HK$51.1 million in 2020. The segment profit decrease was mainly due
to higher staff costs resulting from increased headcount to meet the
requirement for new projects. The absence of various concessions in
2021 which were available from the government in 2020 also contributed
to the segment profit decrease.

Investment properties leasing segment profit for the year decreased
to approximately HK$30.5 million from approximately HK$53.1 million
in 2020, primarily due to investment properties’ net valuation loss of
approximately HK$53 million (2020: HK$34.5 million) recorded for the
Guilin Project in 2021.
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Other income and gains, net

The Group’s net other income and gains increased by approximately
293.7% to HK$218.2 million in 2021, primarily due to:—

)

interest income in relation to the deferred amount from the Chicago
project disposal, which closed in November 2020, amounted
to approximately HK$111.2 million in 2021, as compared to
approximately HK$10.7 million in 2020. For further details of
the Chicago project disposal, please refer to the company
announcement dated 30 July 2020, 17 August 2020 and 25
November 2020 and the Company’s circular dated 29 September
2020;

termination compensation of approximately HK$139.4 million
received from Sunac China Holdings Limited in year 2021
in relation to its early termination of the hotel management
agreements for their 21 hotels managed by the Group;

management has analyzed expected credit loss ("TECL”) on long
term receivable under the requirement of accounting standard
HKFRS 9. The scope of the ECL analysis includes the analysis
of the macroeconomy of USA, the credit analysis of the target
company, default rate and recovery rate of the corporate bonds
in the market and the coverage of the collateral assets within the
long term receivable. Based on the abovementioned analysis, the
ECL as of year end of 2021 was estimated to be approximately
HK$19.4 million; and

impairment of the trade receivable provided for 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$59.8 million (2020: approximately HK$23.4
million) after impairment analysis performed by the management
by reference to the credit risk characteristics of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2021.
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Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses increased slightly to approximately
HK$174.1 million in 2021 from approximately HK$164.7 million in 2020.
The ratio of selling and administrative expenses over revenue decreased
t0 19.9% in 2021 from 25.1% in 2020, primarily attributable to vigorous
cost-monitoring measures implemented by the Group to cope with the
volatile business environment as a result of the Pandemic.

Finance costs

Finance costs were halved to approximately HK$54.6 million in 2021

HERITHEX

HERITBAXH =T =T F4)164,700,000
BIT G INE —F — —F49174,100,000
BT o HE RITHAZ BRIAKZE A= - 8
H-E-TFNB1% FEE-_T-—F8
10.9% * TEANAKEREHERISSIBUR
B & B IRIR M B e 2 AN E P FE MEFTER

REMAR T —ZTF /%) 111,900,0007%8 7T

from approximately HK$111.9 million in 2020, primarily due to partial /Uzi?t f:—imi’q 54,600,000/ 7T © =+
repayment of loans from an intermediate holding company by end of EHR-Z-_TFREE—HPEZERAR
2020. E’Jiﬁmﬁﬁﬁz o

Income tax expense stz

The Group reported an income tax expense of approximately HK$139.7 REEBR T —FHEMERA LY

million in 2021, as compared to approximately HK$39.4 million in 2020,
primarily due to an increase of profit before tax for the year as compared
to last year.

Profit for the year and profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, the following illustrates the Group’s profit

189,700,000 7% T - ﬁﬁﬁé‘_g_gi,ﬁ\ljﬁ,ﬁ@
39,400,00078 7T » £ ERHNAFERF AL
M EFE L7t -

AERRFRAD TR
R

miFH AEG

AR B & IR - K%Zzﬁiﬁéiﬁ?&ﬂu&ﬁ"

for the year and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for AEEREADIRNE—FR_ZF_FF
2021 and 2020 respectively: — Z SRR TR —
2021 2020 Changes
ZE--F —TTHF %
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHT FHT
Profit attributable to: — L‘AT%IEFETEE&?W P—
— Equity holders of the parent — B RRIERFEEA 240,506 165,131 75,375
— Non-controlling interests — 3ETWHXTEE 18,190 65,025 (46,835)
Profit for the year REEER 258,696 230,156 28,540
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Net assets and equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent

Net assets and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent of the
Group are summarized as below: —
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As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H

2021 2020

—EC—F —ET-FF

HK$ million HKS$ million

BEER BEET

Total assets BEE 7,201.3 6,568.8

Total liabilities wafE 3,354.2 3,782.2

Net assets BEFE 3,847.1 2,786.6
Equity attributable to equity holders BARERFE ARGER

of the parent 2,5633.9 2,220.0

Liquidity, borrowing and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash amounted to approximately
HK$3,007.2 million as compared with HK$2,375.3 million as at 31
December 2020. Below set out the analysis of cash by currency type: —

RBEE - BERRUBER

RITZ-—F+-A=+—0 AEEZES
#943,007,200,00087L - M_E_FTF+ =
A=+—HE842,375300,000 7T ° LA ~&
JRBEEES B2 REST - —

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-FF
(% of total cash) (% of total cash)
(FELBE%) (HR2BE%)
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TARED 96 94
Australia Dollar (“AUD”) Bt (HRT]) 3 4
United States Dollar (“USD") Zn(lEx]) 1 1
Hong Kong Dollar BIT - 1
100 100
BERERRERAT 17
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As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio, which is the quotient arrived RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—8  "ot=(8
at by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 1.2 as compared MBEERNWREBBEMGEE) B12- M
with 0.9 as at 31 December 2020. Excluding a loan from an immediate =~ R=Z-FF+-A=+—HEA/0.9 - 104
holding company of approximately HK$873 million presented under ﬁfi’i'JE/\\u@ﬂﬁf IETZ'J 873,000,000 7 JTHY
current liabilities, the current ratio at 31 December 2021 would become JE —EPEERARIBER - EA_EZ*E
1.9 as compared with 1.2 as at 31 December 2020. +=ZA=+—~” E’]mébttf BlA1.9 M=

' —ZEF+-A=+—HAIA12-

The maturity profile of the total debt of the Group is set out as below: — NEEZ EBLEBBERSINNT : —

As at 31 December

W+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FiBT
Total Debts B
Interest-bearing and repayable FFERER—FNESR
within one year:
Loan from an intermediate —MFEERARER
holding company 873,000 873,000
The gearing ratios of the Group is calculated as below: — REBZERBELERGFFENT : —
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Total debts (Eus Tt 873,000 873,000
Less: Total cash and bank balances B R e RRITARMEEE 3,007,164 2,375,300
Net debts/(cash) &1, CR&) 8 (2,134,164) (1,502,300)
Total equity B 3,847,099 2,786,593
Total assets BmEE 7,201,295 6,568,754
Gearing ratios: BERE G R
Net debts over aggregate of B FRER Wﬂ‘%%%ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁgﬁﬁZ? f Net cash Net cash
net debts and total equity RE&EFE IR& /58
Net debts over total assets B R A B EE Net cash Net cash
R TR REF5
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Foreign currency and interest rate exposure

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB. The functional
currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is RMB and these
subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets or liabilities
denominated in currencies other than their respective functional
currencies. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
the long-term receivable and amount payable to an intermediate
holding company that is denominated in USD. The Group maintains
a conservative approach to foreign exchange exposure management.
During the year, the Group did not use any financial instruments to
hedge against foreign currency exposure and the Group did not have
any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the interest-bearing loan of HK$873 million
of the Group was on a fixed rate basis. Accordingly, the Group’s cost of
borrowing was not subject to interest rate risks. This is the Group’s policy
to monitor the suitability and cost efficiency of hedging instruments and
consider a mix of fixed and floating rate loans to manage interest rate
risks, if any. The Group will prudently consider entering into currency and
interest rate hedging arrangements to minimise such exposures if and
when appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no pledge of its assets (2020:
Nil).

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

There are no changes in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had provided guarantees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1.7 million (2020: HK$1.5
million) to banks in favour of its customers in respect of mortgaged loans
provided by the banks to these customers for their purchase of the
Group’s properties. Each of these guarantees would be released upon
the execution of individual purchasers’ collateral agreements.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

The Group had no acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No director has the right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had around 616 full-time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries. Performance
bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
included insurance and medical cover, and subsidized educational and
training programs.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date that these consolidated financial statements were
approved, there is no event after the reporting period which should be
disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 67, has been a Non-executive Director of the
Board since July 2013. He was also an executive director of DWCM and
served in various positions of DWCM Group from December 2009 to
February 2020. He was also a director of Dalian Wanda Group Co., Ltd.
(“Dalian Wanda Group”) until September 2020. Before joining DWCM in
December 2009, Mr. Ding served in various positions of Dalian Wanda
Group, including president, chief executive officer and vice president.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University
of China (FEIARAE) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (Bl Z2 58 T 12482 7))
in August 1997.

Mr. Zhang Lin, aged 50, has been a Non-executive Director since
November 2017. He has also been serving as the director of Dalian
Wanda Group since February 2011. Mr. Zhang has been serving as
the director of Wanda Industry Investment Co., Ltd since January
2021. Since October 2020, he has also been serving as the President
of Wanda Investment Group. Mr. Zhang was concurrently acting as
the chairman and a director of Wanda Film Holding Co. Ltd (B#EE %
[&nBBRAF) (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002739.SZ) from November 2006 to December 2020;
the chairman and a director of AMC Entertainment Holdings, Inc. (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: AMC)
from August 2012 to 12 March 2018 and from December 2019 onward;
the chief executive officer of Beijing Wanda Cultural Industry Group Co.,
Ltd bR 8= EZEEEBRRAF) (“Wanda Culture”) from December
2012 to July 2020; the president of Wanda Culture from January 2014
to July 2020; the chairman of the board of Infront Holding AG from July
2015 to September 2020; the chairman of World Triathlon Corporation
from November 2015 to July 2020; and the chairman of Wanda Sport
Group Company Limited (a company listed on the NASDAQ in the form
of American Depositary Receipts) since November 2018. In addition,
Mr. Zhang had also been a non-executive director of DWCM since
December 2009 to 29 January 2016. He joined Dalian Wanda Group in
March 2000 and formerly held various positions, including but not limited
to the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group and the finance director
of Dalian Wanda Group and general manager of project companies in
Chengdu, Shenyang and Nanjing respectively. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in financial management and operation management of
large property development, property management, and entertainment
corporations, especially in corporate strategy and investment.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREER

Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(RALEF £ RE) in July 1994 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In January 2012, Mr. Zhang received an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from Beijing University (1t XA E2). Mr.
Zhang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a non-practicing member of the China Certified
Tax Agents Association.

Mr. Han Xu, aged 51, has been a Non-executive Director since March
2019, has extensive experience in finance and general management.
From February 2020, Mr. Han has been serving as the Senior Vice
President of Dalian Wanda Group, a joint stock company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability, and a controlling shareholder of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing all financial operations
of Dalian Wanda Group. Prior to that, since his joining of the Dalian
Wanda Group in 2002, Mr. Han served in various roles including General
Manager of Finance Department of DWCM (formerly known as Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co. Ltd.), General Manager of the Group
Financial Management Center, President Assistant, Senior President
Assistant, and Vice President within the Dalian Wanda Group. He holds
a Master degree in Business Administration in Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ning Qifeng, aged 56, has been an Executive Director since
November 2017 and Chairman since April 2021. Mr. Ning is also a first
vice president of DWCM and the president of Wanda Hotel Management
(Shanghai) Co. Limited (BEH/EEE(_LF)ERAF]). Mr. Ning had
been a vice president of DWCM from December 2009 to June 2015
and had been a senior vice president of DWCM from June 2015 to July
2017. Mr. Ning formerly also served as a first vice president of DWCM; a
vice president and an assistant to the president of Dalian Wanda Group;
the general manager of Wanda Hotel Construction Ltd. (&85 &R
BBR7AF]) and the dean of Wanda Commercial Planning and Research
Institute (BEREMREZEPT). Mr. Ning has extensive experience
in property development and property management (including hotel
development and hotel construction management).
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ning obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northwest
Architecture Engineering Institute (FaibZET2E0) in July 1986,
a master’s degree in engineering from Northwest Metallurgical
Construction Institute (F1b)A & Z2EZFT) in July 1992 and a Ph.D in
engineering from Tongji University ([FliZ A £2) in May 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Zhiping, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since March 2018. He studied at the China Textile University
(currently known as Donghua University) in Mechanical Engineering
in 1979 and graduated with a master degree in engineering in 1986.
Since 1987, Mr. He has previously served as the assistant to the general
manager of the United Rail Ltd, Shenzhen Branch of China Nonferrous
Metals Company (FEIAEEEFRYEE AR NEERAF]), the
assistant to the general manager and vice general manager of Hainan
Sanya Huaya Enterprise Group Corporation (%5 = 2p a5 (> 2 E B A 7))
and a director of China Great Wall Securities, LLC (EWZEHFERE TR
7). He was a non-executive director of AviChina Industry & Technology
Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2357) from August 2016 to May 2019. He has been the
chairman of the board of directors of China Wall King Holding Co., Ltd
(PRI EIRRR AR A 7)) since March 2003. From December 2019
onward, Mr. He has also been serving as a director and a vice chairman
of JA Solar Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002459). Mr. He also serves social
positions such as executive vice president of Gan General Chamber
of Commerce, executive president of Shenzhen Jiangxi Chamber of
Commerce and the Council of Donghua University.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHNEEE

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since March 2019. He is experienced in mergers
and acquisitions and strategic management. From January 2017, Dr.
Teng has been serving as an independent non-executive director in
Haisco Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (8 BRIEEEERDER
‘A \]), a company whose shares are listed on The Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002653). He has been an independent non-
executive director in Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 6869) since January 2020. He has
been an independent non-executive director in Litian Pictures Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 9958) since May 2020. Prior to
that, he was an independent non-executive director of (i) Shandong
Gold Mining Co., Ltd. (LR EEEZERMH BR2AF]), a company whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock
code: 1787) in 2018 and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600547) in 2003, from 2014 to 2017; (i) ZTE Corporation (4 38z 15
BBRA7]), a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:763) and The Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000063), from 2015 to 2018; and (i) Aoshikang
Technology Co. Ltd. (BB IEERHEMD AR A R]), company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002913) from November 2018
to November 2021. Dr. Teng served as an assistant professor and then
associate professor of strategic management at The George Washington
University from August 1998 to December 2006. He then joined Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business (&)1 &£ Fx) in January 2007 as an
associate professor and was promoted as a professor in February 2017
and has been the associate dean there since April 2009. Dr. Teng holds
a doctorate of strategic management degree from City University of New
York.
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Dr. Chen Yan, aged 60, has been an independent Non-executive
Director since March 2019. She has extensive experience in accounting.
From July 2005, Dr. Chen has been a professor in accounting at the
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (R1bE148 A E2). She is
also an evaluation expert in financial accounting of the China Scholarship
Council (BAREBEHESZEEE) since 2015, and an internal control
specialist and financial advisor at Dalian Fang Yuan CPA Co., Ltd (X
B EE A EKATAR A R]) since 2017, From 2014 to 2017, she
was involved in the risk assessment and review of the internal control
systems of various research institutes and organizations for and on
behalf of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. She was a
deputy director of the Accounting Department from 2003 to 2007 of the
same university. From March 2018, Dr. Chen has been serving as the
independent director of Liaoning SC Technology Co., Limited (FZ% 3
SRR BBR A A), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. Dr. Chen holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree in
Accounting from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (8
114K E8) and is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (Bl &5+l <) and a senior
member of the Accounting Society of China (f E&5t2€). She was
also a former member of the American Accounting Association and the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 54, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible
for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui has over 22
years of professional experience in public accounting and corporate
finance. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. She is also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Chan Wan Woon, aged 37, joined the Group in June 2016. He
is the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Chan holds
a Master of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute. He has more than 13 years of
professional experience in accounting and auditing.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are hotel
operation and management, hotel design and construction management
services and investment property leasing in the PRC during the year. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2021
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on page 4, pages 5 to 11 and pages 12 to 20 respectively. The
Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 in terms of financial
key performance indicators on page 18. Likely future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s Statement and
Outlook section of Business Review which forms part of this Directors’
Report on page 4 and page 11 respectively. The particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since 31 December 2021
(including but not limited to transactions in relation to subsidiaries) are
set out in Financial Review on page 20.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 36 to the financial statements on pages 5 to
11 and pages 261 to 268 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 36
to the financial statements.
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The Group is committed to the sound performance of its corporate
social responsibilities and believes that a high standard of performance
is very helpful for maintaining sound relationships between corporate
and society as well as promoting staff confidence. The Group is a
keen supporter of environmental protection and takes the protection
of ecological environment and promotion of sustainable development
as its goal. We have introduced eco-friendly measures in our business
of investment property leasing. For instance, we have reduced our
carbon emission by implementing green building and energy-saving
measures. We have also reduced the potential impact of our business
on the ecological environment through proper waste disposal. Further
discussion of environmental, social and governance matters, covering the
Group’s environmental policies and performance is set out in Corporate
Governance Report and Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 55 to 78 and pages 79 to 120 respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value feedback from customers and have also
established the mechanism in handling customer service, support and
complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality and sustainable products and services. We
have developed certain requirements in our standard tender documents.
These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices,
anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The Group values its employees and encourages its staff to achieve
a good work-life balance. The Group continued to devote resources
to improve staff benefits with a view to improving staff morale as well
as attracting and retaining talents. We have established fair, open and
comprehensive employment policies to attract talent.
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The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 129 to 132 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable, stable and continuing dividend policy. The Company’s
dividend policy aims to strike a balance between allowing Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profit and allowing the Company to retain
adequate reserves for business operations and future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable laws
and regulations, with various factors including (i) the earnings per share
of the Company; (i) the reasonable return in investment of investors and
Shareholders in order to provide incentive to them to continue to support
the Company in its long-term development; (i) the financial conditions
and business plan of the Company; and (iv) the market sentiment and
circumstances. Compliant with the conditions under the dividend policy,
the Board may propose final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends distribution as the Board considers appropriate based on the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company. The Company
shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a
regular basis or when necessary.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$20,000 in total.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 60.8% of the Group’s total sales in
2021 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 31.2% of the Group’s total sales in 2021.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 58.9% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 28.6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements,
is set out on page 271. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the major property and property interests of the Group are
shown on page 272 of the annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng (appointed as Chairman
with effect from 22 April 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ding Benxi (resigned as Chairman
with effect from 22 April 2021)

Mr. Han Xu

Mr. Zhang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Dr. Chen Yan

Mr. He Zhiping

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng
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In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not three or a multiple by three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire
in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors on the
same day shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
The Company at any general meeting at which any Directors retire may
fill the vacated offices.

In accordance with code provision A.4.2 in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Ding Benxi is 3 years
from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016; the term of appointment of Mr. Ning
Qifeng and Mr. Zhang Lin is 3 years from 17 November 2017 to 16
November 2020; the term of appointment of Mr. He Zhiping is 3 years
from 29 March 2018 to 28 March 2021; the term of appointment of
Mr. Han Xu is 3 years from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022; the term
of appointment of Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan is 3 years
from 21 March 2019 to 20 March 2022; each of which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. None of the above service contracts is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

(1) Interests in shares of DWNCM (Note 1)

ESCESER

RZZE_—F+A=+—8  REARERE
& R RG] ([ 5 R ETE 5G] ]) 5 352 &
ZIREMFE 2 ELMATRERRE LM AE
ERETREFRSHNRETH (RETRI DM
HMERRANEBBMI T EFERFIHE
ARARB R EEBZEE (EEREFLBE
fERBIZE XV &E) 2 EimA 2 fEas i T

(1) AREBEBXREERD T 2E
= (BiEE1)

Approximate

Long percentage of

position/ the issued

Short Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director position of interest Shares of DWCM of DWCM

HREBE

RREBE [EES=$:

[GE 3§53 ERITREZ

EEnA "R/ KR B REEME MRAD P 2 R BMOBES

Mr. He Zhiping Long Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.55%
A& EE HE BEHEBEAA
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(2)
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Interests in underlying shares of DWCM (Note 1) (2) RREBEBXEEEERDH
2R (ffaE1)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Long position/  Capacity/Nature Interest in underlying share capital of

Name of director Short position of interest shares of DWCM DWCM

HREEE

RREBEBXER BEEECRT

EEng BR/ KR B HEEME HEERERGD P 2R BRAZBMAOB DL

(Note 2)

(MH5E2)

Mr. Ning Qifeng Long Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,000,000 0.13%
BIFIESLE R BHEER A (PHFE3)

Mr. Zhang Lin Long Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,000,000 0.22%
SRFRST A R BamEE A (i 4)

Mr. Han Xu Long Beneficial owner (Note 5) 1,600,000 0.035%
FEIBSE A e EmbEA A (H5E5)

Notes: B 3T

)

DWCM, being an indirect holding company of the Company, is an
associated company of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. The
calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2021.

The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of DWCM's issued shares as at 31
December 2021.

Mr. Ning is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 7.78% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

Mr. Zhang is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 5.14% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

Mr. Han is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 0.82% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company did not have any effective share option scheme during the
year ended and as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group were as follows:

Directors’ Report
EEEWRES

RIERE = KBS IROIRREA
Wz Em MR R

MW-_Z-—F+-A=+—8 " #ARQFFR
o ATAT(EEREARAEBZITRABR
SRR RIBFARGO P HERBE LS RAE
5Bl XV P 336 5B M AN A Rl K 58 2 2
SR E - S E B ok A M AR AT A A
BERATRAEEEAKEATIZRRERE L&
= 2 AR A E{E 5% kA - 2 S 80K
BT

Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAEATF RAEAT
B3 B 46 RE S2RITREZ
BE/EB HE/ KE B Rt B4z R BHABEDL
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties Overseas
Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BEMEMEGINGRAR TFE EmMAA
([B=EHN)
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEMERERRAR R MNEIEHER 2
(FE1)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE R NEIEHER 2
(f7E2)
DWCM Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
RNEBEHFREEEE A NEIEHER 2
(M7E3)
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
RNEBEEE R MNEIEHER 2
(M5t 4)
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EEEHREE
Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RARAF EAR AT
IR 17 K AHEE ERITREZ
wE/ A8 HR/ KR B REEME [igvileslrd -5 BMYB
Dalian Hexing Investment Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 5)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RNEREIRERR AR HE NS ZNE I £
(TREAHE]) (MF7E5)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 6)
FREMEE e NS ZNE I
(M4 6)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner 278,098,230 5.92%
(“Mr. Chen”) and held by controlled
corporation (Note 7)
BRRESRE R BHEEREAK
(MBREA&D) AR
A (H7)
Long Interest of spouse 23,600,000 0.50%
(Notes 7 and 8)
TR FoiBiEs
(MH5E7 &2 8)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 23,600,000 0.50%
PR XN g 22+ R BEHEERA
Long Interest of spouse 278,098,230 5.92%
(Note 9)
HE oS Ess (FIEE9)
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 10)
Ever Good Luck Limited Loy EmEAA
(KzE10)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
TR HFEA



Notes:

Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which
Wanda Overseas is interested.

Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi,
being a non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board, was a director
of Wanda HK until 17 February 2020.

DWCM holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and
is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director, was an executive director and
the chairman of the board of directors of DWCM until 10 February 2020.
Mr. Ning Qifeng, being an Executive Director, is a chief vice president of
DWCM.

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares of
DWCM and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which DWCM is deemed to be
interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director, was a director
of Dalian Wanda Group until September 2020. Mr. Zhang Lin, being a Non-
executive Director, is a director of Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position of
301,698,230 Shares, of which (i) 200 Shares were beneficially and legally
owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for him by Ever
Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (iii) 73,860,230 Shares were beneficially
owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 23,600,000 Shares were held by his spouse,
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.
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8) Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

9 Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

(10) The entire issued share capital of Ever Good Luck Limited is ultimately
owned by Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good Luck
Limited. See note (7) in the section headed “Discloseable interest and short
positions of shareholders under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and related business ("Kidsland Tenancy Agreement™)

Pursuant to the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015 entered
into between Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza Co., Ltd.* (“Guilin Project
Company”) as landlord and Wanda Kidsplace Group Co. Limited®,
formerly known as Wanda Kidsland Co. Limited (“Wanda Kidsland”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of five years commencing from 12 September
2015 to 11 September 2020 for the operation of children entertainment
and playground business and other related business, including the sale
of kids clothing and food and beverage. A supplemental deed dated 2
August 2019 was entered into by the same parties to amend the size of
the area leased under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement.

On 7 September 2020, Guilin Project Company entered into a
new Kidsland Tenancy Agreement with Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Kids
Entertainment Co., Ltd*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wanda Kidsland
to renew the existing lease for a further term of 15 years commencing
from 12 September 2020 to 11 September 2035 (both days inclusive).

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Kidsland and Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Kids
Entertainment Co., Ltd are indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Jianlin
who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, they are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The cap for total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company under the
Kidsland Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB1,526,000 and the actual amount incurred was approximately
RMB1,384,000.

Leasing of premises for operation of cinema and related
business (“Cinema Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Cinema Tenancy Agreement dated 8 September 2015
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Wanda
Film Holding Co., Ltd* (formerly known as Wanda Cinema Line Holding
Co., Ltd) and Nanning Wanda International Movie Mall Company
Limited* as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin
City, the PRC, was leased for a term of 20 years commencing from 12
September 2015 to 11 September 2035 for the operation of cinema
business and related business, including sale of food and beverages.
Pursuant to a deed of novation between Wanda Cinema, Nanning
Wanda International Movie Mall Company Limited (“Nanning Wanda
Cinema”) and Guilin Project Company dated 2 August 2019, Wanda
Cinema agreed to transfer and Nanning Wanda Cinema agreed to
assume all of Wanda Cinema’s rights and obligations in and under
the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the remaining term of the Cinema
Tenancy Agreement as from 2 August 2019 and Guilin Project Company
agreed to such novation.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda Cinema are
indirectly wholly-owned by Dalian Wanda Group which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda
Cinema are connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB3,119,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB1,342,000.
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Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and other related business under the brand of “Wanda
Kidsplace * (B2 B £ )" ("Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June 2018
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Gaoxin Wanda Kids Entertainment Co., Ltd (“Guilin Wanda Kids”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of ten years commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2028 for the operation of children entertainment and playground
business and other related business, including the sale of kids clothing
and food and beverage, under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace * (& &
ZE B T)". Supplemental deed dated 2 August 2019 was entered into
by the same parties to amend the size of the area leased under the
Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Guilin Wanda Kids is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Guilin
Wanda Kids is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December was RMB85,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB79,000.

Leasing of premises for carpark business (“Carpark Tenancy
Agreement")

Pursuant to the Carpark Tenancy Agreement dated 28 June 2019
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Wanda Shopping Plaza Business Management Co., Ltd (“Wanda Plaza
Business Management”) as tenant, certain carpark premises of the Guilin
Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of
carpark business.
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Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Plaza Business Management is indirectly wholly-
owned by DWCM who is an indirect holding company and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Plaza Business Management is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Carpark Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB3,600,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB3,213,000.

Provision of hotel management services to DWCM

Pursuant to the hotel management framework agreement (the “Hotel
Management Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company and DWCM, DWCM may from time to time
engage the Group (including Wanda Hotel Management Group) to
provide hotel management services (the “Hotel Management Services”)
which may include, among others:

—  pre-opening support and technical advisory services regarding
specification standards required for hotels being managed
and other coordination services to facilitate the pre-opening
preparation;

—  procurement of services and products for operation of hotels;

—  carrying out marketing and business development activities and
providing accounting, finance, human resources and information
technology functions;

—  setting the prices of guest rooms and other services; and

—  other relevant functions and services for the operation of hotels
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for the property projects of DWCM for a term from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2038. Members of the Group and DWCM Group
shall enter into separate agreements (“Individual Hotel Management
Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of Hotel Management Services
for relevant projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions
under the Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the applicable
annual caps. The duration of each Individual Hotel Management
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement and the terms of the Individual Hotel
Management Agreements shall be made on normal commercial terms.
DWCM is a controlling shareholder of the Company, and DWCM Group
is a connected person of the Company and the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The service fees payable by the DWCM Group to the Group for the Hotel
Management Services for each hotel shall be fair and reasonable and
shall be charged on the following basis:

(i) management fees comprising a base management fee at a rate of
2.5% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel and an
incentive management fee at a rate between 6% and 8% (inclusive)
of the gross operating profit of the relevant hotel;

(i) group service fees for the relevant financial, human resources and/
or information technology services provided by the Group charged
at a rate of 2% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel;

(i)  pre-opening fees, comprising a hotel pre-opening support fee
of RMB500,000 (or other currency equivalent) for each hotel
and a technical services fee of RMB2 million (or other currency
equivalent) for each hotel; and

(iv) 6% of the room income for each room booking made via the
official reservation systems of hotels under Wanda Hotel Brands;
5.6% of the of aggregate revenue contributed by each customer
introduced by the regional sale department of hotels of Wanda
Hotel Brands; and 5% of certain spending of any member of
Wanda Club, a club for customers of the hotels of Wanda Hotel
Brands.
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The annual caps of the total amount payable by DWCM Group for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of Hotel
Management Services by the Group are approximately RMB81,118,000,
RMB80,804,000 and RMB81,988,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the DWCM Group to the Group
for the Hotel Management Services under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB52,673,000.

Leasing of property (including office, storage and parking
space) in the PRC for daily operation needs and provide
property management services for the leased properties (the
“Management Services") by DINCM Group to the Group

Pursuant to property leasing framework agreement (the “Property
Leasing Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company as lessee and the DWCM Group as lessor,
DWCM Group may from time to time (i) lease property (including office,
storage and parking space) in the PRC to Wanda Hotel Management
Group for its daily operation needs and (i) provide Management Services
in accordance with the terms and conditions thereto.

Management Services to be provided by the DWCM Group will be
specific to the leased property, and may include but are not limited
to the management and maintenance of shared and public facilities
(such as rooftops, corridors, flowerbeds, trees, outdoor pipes, drains,
ponds, car parks, etc.) and traffic and parking management at the
leased property. Members of the Group and DWCM Group shall enter
into separate agreements (“Individual Lease Agreement(s)”) in relation
to the lease of property by DWCM Group to Wanda Hotel Management
Group (depending on the particular property being leased, this may
include Management Services), which shall be subject to the terms
and conditions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement
and the annual caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Lease
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement and the terms of the Individual Lease Agreements shall be
made on normal commercial terms.
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The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 are approximately RMB15,438,000,
RMB16,114,000 and RMB16,824,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Group to the DWCM Group
for the Management Services under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB13,534,000.

Provision of hotel design services to Dalian Wanda Group

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into the hotel design
framework agreement (the “Hotel Design Framework Agreement”) with
Dalian Wanda Group, pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its
subsidiaries may from time to time engage the Group including Wanda
Hotel Management Group to provide hotel design services (the “Hotel
Design Services”) which may include, among others:

- interior, furniture, fixtures and equipment design and consulting
services;

- back-of-house area design review services;

- outdoor direction signage and indoor lighting design consulting
services; and

- kitchen and launderette area design services

for the hotel projects of Dalian Wanda Group for a term until
31 December 2021. Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries and the
Group shall enter into separate agreements (the “Individual Hotel Design
Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of Hotel Design Services for
relevant projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions
under the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder. The duration of each Individual Hotel Design Agreement shall
not exceed the term of the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and
the terms of the Individual Hotel Design Agreements shall be made on
normal commercial terms.
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The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for the
Hotel Design Services under each Individual Hotel Design Agreement
shall be fair and reasonable and shall be determined with reference
to the prevailing market prices by taking into account the quotations
obtained by Dalian Wanda Group from at least two independent third
party suppliers for the provision of equivalent or similar services in their
ordinary course of business and which shall not, from the Group’s
perspective, be less favourable than the rates charged and terms for
equivalent or similar services provided by the Group to independent third
party in hotels of equivalent or similar grading.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of
hotel design services by the Group are approximately RMB52,340,000,
RMB92,450,000 and RMB70,920,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Design Services under the Hotel
Design Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately RMB50,928,000.

Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and circular dated 28 November
2019.
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Provision of hotel construction management services to Dalian
Wanda Group

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into the hotel construction
management framework agreement (the “Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement”) with Dalian Wanda Group,
pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries may from
time to time engage the Group including Wanda Hotel Management
Group to provide hotel construction management services (the “Hotel
Construction Management Services”). For the avoidance of doubt, such
services do not include project design, construction and supervision
work, in respect of which Dalian Wanda Group should hire relevant
professional advisory body(ies) and be responsible for such expenses.
Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries and the Group shall
enter into separate agreements (the “Individual Hotel Construction
Management Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of hotel
construction management services for relevant projects, which shall
be subject to the terms and conditions under the Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement and the annual caps thereunder.
The duration of each Individual Hotel Construction Management
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement and the terms of the Individual
Hotel Construction Management Agreements shall be made on normal
commercial terms.

The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the pricing policy:
Group for the hotel construction management services for each hotel
shall be fair and reasonable and the consultation and hotel construction
management service fees for each project shall be charged according
to the project area and such fee shall not exceed RMB136 per square
meter.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of
hotel construction management services by the Group are approximately
RMB10,870,000, RMB31,690,000 and RMB25,120,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Construction Management Services
under the Hotel Construction Management Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB12,502,000.
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Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and circular dated 28 November
2019.

Supplying products to Dalian Wanda Group (“Product Supply
Framework Agreement")

Pursuant to the Product Supply Framework Agreement dated 30 June
2021 entered into between the Company and Dalian Wanda Group,
Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries agreed to purchase, and the
Group agreed to supply the specially accustomed gift and food products
supplied by the Group, including but not limited to products such as rice
dumplings, mooncakes and gift boxes (the “Product”) during the period
from 30 June 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries shall place specific
orders (“Individual Specific Order(s)”) for each purchase through a
merchandising platform available to the hotels that is managed by the
Group, which shall stipulate, among others, the product types, quantity
and delivery details and be subject to the terms and conditions under the
Product Supply Framework Agreement and the annual cap thereunder.
The duration of each Individual Specific Order shall not exceed the term
of the Product Supply Framework Agreement and the terms of the
Individual Specific Orders shall be made on normal commercial terms.

The purchase prices payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for
the Products for each purchase shall be determined with reference to
the purchase prices for equivalent or similar products offered by the
Group to other independent third parties.

The annual cap of the transaction amount payable by the Dalian Wanda
Group to the Group under the Product Supply Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB22,000,000 and the actual
transaction amount incurred was approximately RMB18,268,000.
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Provision of commercial operation services ("Commercial Operation
Services") by Zhuhai Wanda Commercial Management Group Co.,
Ltd.("Zhuhai Wanda") to the Group (“Entrusted Management
Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Entrusted Management Agreement dated 24 August
2021 entered into between Guilin Project Company, Zhuhai Wanda and
Guilin Wanda Shopping Plaza Business Management Co., Ltd (“Guilin
Wanda”), Zhuhai Wanda and Guilin Wanda (“Zhuhai Wanda Group”) shall
provide the Commercial Operation Services in respect of the commercial
complex project (“Commercial Complex Project”) held by Guilin Project
Company, which include commercial management services, property
management services and value-added services during the period from
24 August 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The management fee payable by the Guilin Project Company for the
Commercial Operation Services provided by Zhuhai Wanda Group will
be based on a pre-determined formula which comprises a basic service
fee and a bonus service fee, both being a certain applicable percentage
of the net operating income generated by the Commercial Complex
Project.

The net operating income is the total income generated by the
Commercial Complex Project (including rental and rental related income
and other income generated by the Commercial Complex Project) less
deductions agreed between the parties in the Entrusted Management
Agreement being costs of operating and managing the Commercial
Complex Project such as fees incurred for maintenance, cleaning,
security guards, renovation, energy, etc.

The abovementioned service fees were determined based on normal
commercial terms after arm’s length negotiation between Guilin Project
Company and Zhuhai Wanda. Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Since Zhuhai Wanda Group
are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of DWCM which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, they are connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The annual cap of the total amount payable by Guilin Project Company
to Zhuhai Wanda Group under the Entrusted Management Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB9,260,000 and the
actual amount incurred was approximately RMB8,892,000.

*

English translation is directly translated from Chinese and is for illustrative
purpose only.

Review by and Confirmation of Independent Non-Executive
Directors (the "INEDs")

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2021, and confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(8) according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors of
the Company have confirmed by way of a letter to the Board that, for the
year ended 31 December 2021:

(1)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;
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(8)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in this annual report, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
set and disclosed by the Company.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any other significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should
be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial statements
which were also connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, the interest of Directors and their respective
associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:
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Mr. Ning Qifeng DWCM Interested in underlying shares  Engaging in property
representing 0.13% of the development, property
issued share capital of lease, property
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investment holding
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Name of Director/ Nature of interest in Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
BEE MBRANSE NCIECE] REZARPERZMHE AT ZER
Mr. Han Xu DWCM Interested in underlying shares  Engaging in property
representing 0.035% of the development, property
issued share capital of lease, property
DWCM management and
investment holding
BIBSEA NEEENHE RHERRNESENEETE  HEMERE Mm%
BTN Z 0.035% 2 HE  MEEER
ARG P A REFER
Mr. He Zhiping DWCM Being a shareholder Engaging in property
with 0.55% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
5T hE RNEBEHEER BERR HE055%Enm  EEMERE W%

As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with
business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the INEDs to be independent.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in the
information of Directors required to be disclosed is as follows:

Mr. Ding Benxi ceased to act as chairman of the Board of the Company
with effect from 22 April 2021. Mr. Ning Qifeng was appointed as
chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 22 April 2021.

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng has ceased to act as an independent non-executive
director of Aoskikang Technology Co. (Bt ERIERMERAF), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002913)
since November 2021.

The updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

During the year, Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2021 at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting held on 2 June 2021 and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ning Qifeng
Executive Director (Chairman)

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture
and balancing of business risk. Furthermore, it is also essential to the
success of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for deviation from
CG Code provision A.6.7, A.2.1 and E.1.2 as explained in the relevant
paragraphs on page 58 in this report, the Company has complied with
the code provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng (appointed as Chairman
with effect from 22 April 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ding Benxi (resigned as Chairman
with effect from 22 April 2021)

Mr. Han Xu

Mr. Zhang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Dr. Chen Yan

Mr. He Zhiping

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to
25. There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

— Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

— Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

—  Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such
financial statements.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021,
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s
annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice is given for all regular
Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that all Directors
are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
In addition, two general meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2021 and attendance of each Director at these meetings is
set out as follows:

EFEHABARRBEAQRZHMB®RE - I
FEREN QAT R IER 2 5T ERRmEM
B o EERTHRARNMFEMZFNHERE -

BE—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEER " &
FECRITANGE  USHmRAER 2 BEBX
S LA N 238 R B 5 R IR - Wb Mt AR

ZEFRTHRE - MBEEFEENERTE
RExd+ M AR #EDERSZZRAEM - A
CHAESEHARENERAMATHRESR -
o RBE-Z-—F+-_A=+—BIF
EREBITMABRRAE - SEFHFEZFS
& BEREIIAT

Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
EESERLH BRERAERE
HE BT HE BT
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Ning Qifeng (Chairman) BHIESE (FE) 5/5 0/2
Non-executive Directors: EHITES .
Mr. Ding Benxi TARBGEA 5/5 0/2
Mr. Zhang Lin SRFRSTAE 5/5 0/2
Mr. Han Xu FEBEE 5/5 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BAFHITES .
Mr. He Zhiping fAIEFELEE 5/5 0/2
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng B RS 5/5 0/2
Dr. Chen Yan PRYEE + 5/5 0/2

CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other business engagements, certain Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors did not attend the
annual general meeting and special general meeting. Please refer to the
preceding table for details of attendance of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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CG Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Due to other business
engagements, the Chairman did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting on 2 June 2021. Please refer to the preceding table for
details of attendance of the Chairman.

General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 2 June 2021. Other than the general meetings, the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013 and resigned as Chairman on 22 April
2021. Mr. Ning Qifeng was appointed as Executive Director on 17
November 2017 and appointed as Chairman on 22 April 2021. Prior
to his appointment as the Chairman of the Company on 22 April 2021,
although the Company has not appointed a chief executive officer, the
duties of the chief executive officer have been performed by Mr. Ning.
With Mr. Ning’s appointment as the Chairman, such practice deviates
from CG Code provision A.2.1. Considering that the Group’s business has
been in line with its clear strategic direction and the fact that Mr. Ning has
demonstrated suitable management and leadership capabilities along with
his thorough understanding of the Group’s business and strategy since
his appointment as an executive Director in 2017, the Board believes that
vesting the role of the Chairman and the duties of a chief executive officer
in Mr. Ning can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies
and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the Board considers
that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code will not be
inappropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under the supervision
of the Board in which Mr. Ding, the outgoing chairman, will continue to
remain as a non-executive Director and which comprises, two other non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, the
Board believes that it is appropriately structured with balance of power to
provide sufficient checks to protect the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.

The Company has three Non-executive Directors, an Executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, with the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the
Board. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the Non-
executive Directors are three years, from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016 for
Mr. Ding Benxi, from 17 November 2017 to 16 November 2020 for Mr.
Zhang Lin, and from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022 for Mr. Han Xu.
The terms of appointment for all Non-executive Directors are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company.
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According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are three years, from 29 March
2018 to 28 March 2021 for Mr. He Zhiping and from 12 March 2019 to
20 March 2022 for Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan. The terms of
appointment for all Independent Non-executive Directors Mr. He Zhiping,
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan, are renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year each commencing from the date next after
the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Independent Non-
executive Director or the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in
the Nomination Policy (such as reputation for integrity, qualifications and
experience, time commitment and contribution to diversity of the Board
according to the Board Diversity Policy, etc.), identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment. In
the case of re-appointment of Director, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution, attendance in meetings
and level of participation from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate
is appointed for the position of independent non-executive Director,
the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence with
reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedures

In appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members for its consideration
prior to the meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall then make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval. The information, including biography,
independence (for nomination of non-executive or independent non-
executive directors only), proposed remuneration and other information
as required under the applicable laws and regulations will be included in
the circular to shareholders. A shareholder may also serve to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong a notice in writing
for its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain candidate as
Director and a notice by the nominated person of his/her willingness to
be elected according to the Articles of Association, without the Board’s
recommendation or nomination of the Nomination Committee other than
those candidates as set out in the circular. The Board shall then consider
and have the final decision on all matters relating to whether to have the
recommended candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.
The Nomination Committee shall ensure the transparency and fairness
of the selection procedure.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the new
Directors more detailed information on the Group’s operations, business
and activities.
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According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became Directors on the same day shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any
general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

According to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned on pages 57 to 59 in the section headed “Board Practice”
above, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2021 to, among other things, assess the
performance of Executive Director, review and discuss the existing policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the remuneration
packages of the Directors. The members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member at the committee
meeting are set out as follows:

FWEES

FHMZEeRFELAR—REF - KR-F
—HERIT-REREEEE  UW(HBER)
AHERTTESEZRE R MIREFREZ
FENE R 2R - A RE R ZH BB o HrB
REEZKEBUREKEBHFEZRECGERZE
AEIT -

Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEERRH™

Committee member ZE2KE HIE BT
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng (Chairman) R ERtE L (FE) 1/1
Mr. He Zhiping A sE 11
Dr. Chen Yan PREEIE L+ 1/1

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since June 2005 to comply with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and has access to independent professional advice in accordance with
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

()  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the group of which the Company is a member company;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration of the

members of the senior management who are not Directors are within the

following band:

Total remuneration band (HK$)
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. In 2021, the Audit
Committee met two times to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June
2021, discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control,
risk management, compliance with rules and regulations, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation

EVEESY

ERLZESRFELERMAEE - B%EE
GR-ZE-—FERITMALH  N(Hpe
B ERAEEEEZE T _TF+-_A=+—
HIEMBRFEZFEXERAEEBHEE-T
Z—FARAZTALNERZFHHELS - BHAE
NRAZEENF R ERESIE - MRERE - BTR
B RARBIRIIE I « X BEMELE - A% SR

to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the &ilﬁﬁgl{’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ cRIZEZ—F  BEZE
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2021 BENENNEKNETNEZESSHE 2IBAH
are set out as follows: FEAR -
Number of
Committee meetings
attended/held
ZEEERLH
Committee member ZEEBRE HE BT
Dr. Chen Yan (Chairwoman) PRUMIEL (£/) 2/2
Mr. He Zhiping fAIEFELEE 2/2
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng xR EE B+ 2/2
The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of RRABERUEZEZES  RIEBEPFEEATH

reference, which was amended and re-adopted by the Board with effect
from 1 January 2019, in accordance with the requirements of the CG
Code for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Chen Yan, Mr. He Zhiping and Dr.
Teng Bing Sheng.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(i)  to approve the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services;
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to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication quarterly reports and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty

to have effective internal control and risk management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditors’ management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter

under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent

professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from

management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice

every year.

(vi)

(vii)

(i)
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2021 to, among other things, review
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the retirement and re-election
of directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:

REZES
REZBEBFARLAR—REE N-F
—HERIT-REREEEE  UW(HBER)
BEEFG AR BRBLIIFNTEEZHE
VYHAREREZRENEE - ZRRBEEKE
URERBHERZEESRZIBREIIMT -

Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEERLH

Committee member ZEERE o))

Mr. Ning Qifeng EEFIE

(appointed as Chairman on 22 April 2021) (RZZB=—FNA -+ —BHEEEER) 11
Mr. Ding Benxi (resigned as Chairman TARBEE (RN —FOA -+ HEEERE)

on 22 April 2021) 11

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng f st BR 11

Dr. Chen Yan PR EE1E 1 1/1

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in June 2005, which was amended and re-adopted by the
Board with effect from 1 January 2019. It currently consists of three
members, including a Non-executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(i) to review the performance of the Board and ensure that the Board
and its committees consist of directors with the appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable it to discharge its duties effectively;

(i) to assist the Board in succession planning for the Board and
senior management;
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(i)

(iv)

(vii)
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to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy. When reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
Board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity;

to draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy
for the Board's approval having due regard to the requirements
of the Listing Rules in place from time to time, review and update
the objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy,
and disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy in
the Company's corporate governance report;

to develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy for the
nomination of Board members, which includes the criteria, process
and procedures for the identification, selection and nomination
of candidates for Directors for the Board's approval. Such
criteria include but are not limited to the potential contributions a
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity in accordance
with the Company's diversity policy. The Nomination Committee
should disclose in the Company's corporate governance report
the nomination policy and the progress made towards achieving
the objectives set in the policy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of
the Listing Rules in place from time to time and, if a proposed
director will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, his/her ability to devote sufficient time to Board
matters;

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate including objective criteria and
potential contributions a candidate can bring with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and skills and expertise required
in the future and ensure that senior management succession
planning is discussed at the Board at least once annually;

to keep under review the leadership needs and leadership training
and development programmes of the Group, with a view to
ensuring the continued ability of the Group to function effectively
and compete in the market;

to evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, directors;

to develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the
Board committees:

(@ review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various Board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of the
Board committees and the chairman of each committee;

(b) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or
desirable;

(c) review the feedback in respect of the role and effectiveness
of the Board committees arising from the evaluation
of the Board and/or any Board committees and make
recommendations for any changes;

to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board.
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Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the above
Board diversity policy of the Company has been approved by the Board
and adopted by the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013 and
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, relevant management
expertise and independence of Directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent. It
paid particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so as to ensure appropriate
independence within the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 121 to 128.

External Auditors' Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditors to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements.
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:

FENEZ
IR

EFERANSNAEET I Z B TREA
SEMBHRER 2 EE - WHERERMEHRRGTE)
EBRISEM 2 G 2R - ERINRELR A3
AREEZBEHE - EEKEL—VEES
AIRHER - BUIREA - FTENAAE - BEY
TREEEAEBRTABRAZ - THBRER AR
EARRAHEFBRELE N FEERER
ZEFHGRR ©

AR BSNEZBEN 2k @ ETRDE I P 2 s I
HUAEERBHRR 2 EREETHNE121H
EF128A 2B ZHEVRE -

SN BET 2 B M R

B EGRREERINERBEN 2B -
NERM SRR 2 F8M - TEERERA/AR
RAVZINEZBEN BB LM - RER - BT
FEN AR RRISNEZEED 2 Bl 2 EFI T -

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group mAEER S 2 BRI e EAER

HK$’000

FAET

Annual audit services FEZHRB 1,145
Non-audit services: FEZERTS

Review of interim report FEPHmRE 386

Special projects FRIE B 475
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group’s system of risk management and internal control includes
a defined management structure with limited authority, and is designed
to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provisions of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is put in place to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board has conducted review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during the
year ended 31 December 2021 including financial, operational controls
and risk management functions and ensured the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget for
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions at least annually.
The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considered them to be effective and
adequate.

In relation to the Board’s risk management and internal control
functions, the Board fulfils its duties by determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors of the Company,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report, and receiving and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management of the Company. Where any significant risks are
identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such risks by considering
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
the probability that the risk will occur and the imminence of the risk.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function, but instead shares
and benefits from the internal audit function of its parent, DWCM,
which operates an internal audit function for all of its subsidiaries,
including the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the current internal audit arrangement. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner and in compliance with the SFO.
The procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review on a regular
basis. Unless the inside information falls within any of the safe harbors
as permitted under the SFO, the Group is required to disseminate such
information through the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange to the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers
and relevant employees are required to take reasonable precautions
for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the
Group will immediately disclose the information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.
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The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Zhang Lin, Mr. Han Xu, Mr.
Ning Qifeng, Mr. He Zhiping, Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan)
have participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant
records to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their
knowledge and skills through participation in the training programmes,
which in turn ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the
Board.

Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s own website.
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The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s shareholders.
The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and personally
chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Procedures
for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at General
Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses.
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The procedure for Shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director is also available on the Company’s website. Subject to the Bye-
Laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to nominate an individual
for election as a Director of the Company at the AGM shall, no later
than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting, submit a completed
form of nomination to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination submitted shall be
treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall be accompanied
by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee and a written
statement from the proposed nominee consenting to be nominated
and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as a Director of the
Company. The biographical profile of each proposed nominee shall
include at least the following information: () full name, age and address
of the proposed nominee; (i) past and present directorships (if any) and
employment of the proposed nominee; (iii) the information as required to
be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and in particular, use AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will
consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Scope and Boundary

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”)
presents the Group’s initiatives and performance in environmental,
social and governance aspects between 1 January and 31 December
2021 (the “Reporting Period”), which is consistent with our financial
year. Unless otherwise specified, the data, policy documents and
statements mentioned in the Report cover business operated by the
Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), namely the Group’s hotel
services business, the Guilin project (i.e. Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza, the
“Plaza”) and four leased-and-operated hotels, namely Wanda Moments
Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai, Wanda Moments Hotel, Nanchang West
Railway Station, Wanda Moments Hotel Yinzhou, Ningbo and Wanda i
Hotel, Wuxi City (collectively referred to as “the Hotels”), where Wanda
Moments Hotel Yinzhou, Ningbo and Wanda Yi Hotel, Wuxi City are
newly added scope in this Report.

Reporting Standards

The Group prepares the Report in compliance with the relevant
requirements stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG Guide”). We have appointed
an independent consulting firm to offer professional advice for preparing
the Report.
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+
REPORTING PRINCIPLES & EA

In the preparation of the Report, the Group has adhered to the four REBEREAREANDR - BHESGIES
reporting principles stated in the ESG Guide, namely materiality, FRENEEN - 2 - FEHE—BUEMIER

quantitative, balance and consistency. HIRA °

e Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment o EEM: FHEMTHMHESMEREZMNT

were conducted to identify and prioritize material ESG issues in our e UBRIREBEZEREEHEEFHNEKR
business operations. ESG#E °

e Quantitative: Quantitative metrics are disclosed in this report to e Bt ARECHEZIEE  ULHR
keep track of and evaluate our ESG performance. AHEE IR ESG &RIR ©

e Balance: This report provides an unbiased assessment on the o Y AWMESHMABHBEERMEIESGE
Group’s ESG performance by highlighting both our achievements EBHHEAKREEZESCENSE @ AER
and areas for improvement on ESG management. HAEERESGHRIR °

e Consistency: Consistent methodologies are adopted for year-on- o —HM:RIFSZATFA  AHRERM—H
year comparisons of the Group’s ESG performance, unless otherwise B TR G AR EE R ESG RIR EEFHEITH
specified. 8o
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BOARD APPROVAL

The Report has been approved by the Board before publication.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group takes a proactive approach to manage its ESG issues for
the sake of sustainable development. As a responsible corporate in the
society, we also devote ourselves to promoting a harmonious society
through continuous contribution and considering our environment,
employees, business partners, customers and the wider community in
our operations.

BOARD'S STATEMENT
The Board Statement

The Group has formulated robust and stable ESG governance practices.
The Board has the responsibility to develop ESG-related initiatives,
manage and monitor of ESG-related risks as well as maintain the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG strategies. Management of regional
operations is designated to supervise the daily implementation of ESG
practices, report to the Board accordingly as well as ensure compliance
with all applicable ESG laws and regulations. ESG matters are evaluated
and prioritized through an annual materiality assessment. The Board
approves the result of the assessment which is incorporated into the
Group’s strategies and plans. The Board recognise the importance
of ESG-related goals and targets setting in the Group long-term
success. ESG-related targets have been set in operational level and the
performance against these targets is reviewed and evaluated regularly.
Overall ESG performance is reviewed by the Board at least on an annual
basis through the approval of the ESG report.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group takes an active role in promoting diversity among
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders, investors, suppliers,
customers, tenants and community partners in our business locations.
Sustainable relationship with stakeholders is one of our top priorities.
Therefore, we value their opinions and expectations, and consider their
feedback to promote future improvements in the Group.

We communicate and engage with stakeholders by organising daily
communication, general meetings at all business level and regular ESG-
related engagement during the Reporting Period.

Materiality Analysis

Unless fundamental changes are discovered in the Group’s business,
an extensive engagement on ESG-related issues is organised every five
years with a view to ensure feedback from stakeholders is conveyed
effectively to our management and the Board. In 2020, such stakeholder
engagement exercise was conducted by an independent third party.
Key stakeholders including management general staff, shareholders and
investors, customers, suppliers and community partners were invited
to participate in an online survey and phone interviews to provide their
suggestions and rank the relevant significance of the ESG issues to
them and the Group. A total of 19 ESG issues were regarded as relevant
to our business of which 12 of them are regarded as material. During
the Reporting Period, an independent third party was again appointed to
conduct peer review on ESG issues identified and regarded as material
by peers and the issue “Diversity and Non-discrimination” was renamed
to “Employee rights, equal opportunity, diversity and non-discrimination”.
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After confirmation with senior management of the Group, the results are KAKENSREEEERE  BEERTER

used as a guide in the preparation of the report.

ARHERRAERES -

Key Areas Material ESG Issues ldentified
FTEEE E MBI E X ESG B8
Environmental Protection ° Energy
IRIRIRE BER
° Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
R SREEHEL
° Waste Management
BEEYERE
Operating Practices ° Anti-corruption
2 EE RES
° Customer Health and safety
BEPEEERZ S
o Compliance
AR
° Customer Data Privacy
B EMBIL
o Product and Service Quality
EmMRBEE
° Customer Satisfaction
BEWEE
Employment and Labour Practices ° Occupational Health and Safety
BRRBIER BEEEREZS
° Employment Relations and Retention
ISR LB
° Training and Development

B R

Key Areas Other ESG Issues Considered
TEE BB ESG HHE
Environmental Protection ° Water Conservation
RIERE Efi7k
o Green Building
REEE
° Climate Change
TR
Operating Practices o Supply Chain Management
2 EE HIEEER
° Intellectual Property Rights
RN
Employment and Labour Practices ° Employee rights, equal opportunity, diversity and non-discrimination
BRRBIER BEES - TERE  ZTLEDER
° Forced or compulsory labour

Community

Al

5438 3R 08 Il 25
° Child labour
ET

° Community Investment

HEE

HBEEERRERAT
—E-—FEH




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I%i% %j:é& /El#&l:l

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group endeavours to protect the environment and reduce
the impacts of our operations on the environment. In view of the
unprecedented challenges posed by climate change, we strive to
advocate sustainable development and manage important environmental
issues in our operations, ranging from appropriate management of
resource and waste to promoting green buildings. To demonstrate
our commitment in minimizing environmental pollution, we incorporate
resource conservation and waste management measures into our daily
operations, as well as formulate environmental targets in the hotels and
malls managed and operated by the Group. We adhere to relevant local
environmental regulations, including the Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC and the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC. Throughout the Reporting Period, no non-compliance cases
regarding environmental protection were found.

Climate Resilience

The Group recognises the climate-related issues which have impacted/
may impact our business. During the Reporting Period, we started to
identify and assess these climate-related risks.

Acute physical risks such as the increased severity and frequency of
extreme weather events including typhoons and storms may cause
business interruption, increase insurance premium and raise possibility
of health and safety incidents. In addition, chronic physical risks which
arise from longer-term changes in the climate, which include increased
mean temperature may increase operating and maintenance costs.

When we consider transition risks, the tightening climate policies
and regulatory requirement may imply higher capital investment and
otherwise non-compliance costs.

In light of these climate-related risks, the Group has implemented
various mitigation and adaption measures. We have property insurance
and public liability insurance to protect our interests and reduce potential
financial loss. In addition, we have formulated operational procedures
to provide clear guidelines on what our employees should do to protect
their own, the customers and the Group’s asset and property under
extreme weather events such as storms and typhoons.
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The Group also recognise that climate change can have significant
implications for our hotel management and operations. The Group has
established the Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute to capitalise
the opportunity to incorporate climate change considerations into the
design and management of our hotels. For the hotels that are located in
areas prone to extreme weather events, we seek to identify and assess
possible risks by research and field studies on suitable mitigation and
adaptation measures.

Our controlling shareholder, the Dalian Wanda Group, has developed
the “Wanda Group Green Building Energy Saving Workplan” which
provides guidelines on setting energy saving targets. As its subsidiary,
we are setting energy saving targets for our hotels with reference to the
guidelines.

USING RESOURCES EFFICIENTLY
Measures to Reduce Energy Consumption
Electricity remains our main source of greenhouse gas emissions. In

response to this, the Group has implemented strategies to maximise
energy efficiency in our various businesses.
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To conserve energy, we encourage our staff to switch off electrical
appliances including lighting and air-conditioners that are not in use
during non-office hours. We also conduct cleaning and inspection on
the air-conditioners regularly to optimise energy efficiency. We employ
energy saving appliances with Grade 1 energy labels in Hong Kong
office. To further increase energy efficiency, we introduce intelligent
building management systems to monitor electricity consumption of
lighting systems in most of our leased offices. Despite the minimal direct
emissions generated by the Group, we encourage our staff to commute
by public transport as much as possible to minimise carbon footprint.

For the Plaza, we installed an electric sunshade to prevent direct sun
rays from entering the room through the shielded ceiling and windows to
lower indoor temperature in the daytime, reducing energy consumption
caused by air-conditioners. Dome skylights provide natural daylight
for indoor areas to minimise the use of lighting. For the Hotels, during
the period of low occupancy rate, guests are concentrated on certain
floors, while energy-saving and power-off measures are adopted on
the remaining floors to reduce the energy consumption of the air-
conditioning, lighting and the 24-hour power supply of the guest rooms.
Spotlights and incandescent lights are replaced by energy-saving lights.
We also turn off the unnecessary and idling lights. The temperature of
hot water system is adjusted according to seasonal difference. External
lighting of the Hotels is also controlled and adjusted with reference
to seasonal variation to maximise energy efficiency. Filters of the air
conditions are regularly cleaned and replaced to optimise energy
efficiency. The Hotels have formulated individual annual energy saving
targets. For example, Wanda Moments Hotel Yinzhou, Ningbo have set
a target of maintaining a monthly energy per revenue rate of below 12%
during the reporting year and achieved an actual average rate of 7.4%.

86  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

BTEREIR - BIMEEE TR AREA
Bl TMERAMNERS (RERARG SR o
BN ERB R RRE L T B RER K
o RBEABWAE - RMEAHEE —RERZ
HRETRLER - AE—FIREEREE - &M
SI AR TR R ARSI EE R IR S TR
BRRAZENRARGHEE - REAEBE
EHEEBINERE D - BMSEE TR
RBAHRZ BT AR E IR E &K -

REEME  RARKEHESRAERER
RBRBBEARLERMEFESFTAEAR
MR BRZERRE - e =& 6E
FOBFE - EITERE REAM T IR B A LR
DIRARGER - RRFBEEMS - £EA
EERNEREA - EFHETEE TEE > MH
MEERIREENBE MR - AP ERFD
= - RN 24/ N E N HEFTERK B RETR
A o BB N B BE EfRE A o IR
i T H 2R THBENRE - BUKRGERE
RIEZE FHERMETHE - ZZBEEHI
ERAIR2ZEFHMBEMIELRE - UKAR
BIRFRERM S - ZERER IR ERER R
FHAB(LAERE - ZFEESHIEBLN
FEHEBR - fln - BREMEEZREHE
EFERR  REeEFARERkaxnE st
REERFE12%IARN - ITMFERFHERS
7.4% °



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Unit 2021 2020
Intensity’ =R —E-—F —EEHF
BERBAENEREE"
Total Greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes (carbon dioxide 7,360 5,043
BERBALERE equivalent)

AW (ZELREE)
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes (carbon dioxide 138 77
BERBAYNE (FEE1) equivalent)

NHE(ZELIREE)
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes (carbon dioxide 7,222 4,966
AERBAYNE (FE2) equivalent)

AW (ZE(LIRE=
Total greenhouse gas emission intensity
BRERBAENERE
Offices and Plaza Tonnes (carbon dioxide 0.09 0.1
WAERES equivalent)/square meter

AW (Z&E(eEE) FHK
Hotels Tonnes (carbon dioxide 0.02 0.02
ZERE equivalent)/room night

DM (—EERER) B

The data of 2021 includes energy consumption from six offices in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and four hotels in
Mainland China. The data of 2020 includes energy consumption from five
offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and

two hotels in Mainland China.
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Energy Consumption and Intensity? Unit 2021 2020

RERAKERZRE? B —EB-—F —EIERF

Total direct energy consumption — Cubic meter 63,876 35,482
natural gas MK

HERFAEE — XAR

Offices and Plaza Cubic meter 0 0

MAERES SR

Hotels Cubic meter 63,876 35,482

ZEBIE AV PN

Total indirect energy consumption — kWh 11,969,987 8,317,081
electricity FTRE

BiEZRRENEE — B

Offices and Plaza kWh 7,275,656 5,701,346

SN TR

Hotels kWh 4,694,331 2,615,735

ZERE T EBF

Total energy consumption GJ 45,578 31,323

REREKE H5E

Offices and Plaza GJ 26,192 20,525

WAERES £

Hotels GJ 19,386 10,798

ZEBE HE

Total energy consumption intensity

Offices and Plaza GJ/square meter 0.58 0.45

MNE RS HEFK

Hotels GJ/room night 0.09 0.12

ZEBE =5 E%

2 The data of 2021 includes energy consumption from six offices in Hong 2 ZE I FHNHERBEMREERF RN

N ERER  EMREHBERSALLR
HE A E MEEERERERE . — 2%
FORIE BN ER K BN T EH
=k BENEHEERSARMLR S EA
B P JE BV BE IR A ©

Kong and Mainland China, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and four hotels in
Mainland China. The data of 2020 include energy consumption from five
offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and
two hotels in Mainland China.
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Measures to Reduce Water Consumption

Apart from optimising energy efficiency, the Group has also formulated
water conservation initiatives in our business operations. We request
our staff in hotel management units to turn tap off after use and we
replace taps of which the water output is too large. We install water-
saving appliances such as shower heads, which help save about 7
tonnes of water per month, and smart toilets, which helps save 30%
of water when compared to traditional toilets. In addition, we arrange
staff to check if there are any leakage of pipelines regularly and rectify
the problems promptly. The Hotels have set individual monthly water
reduction targets to motivate water reduction initiatives. Since there are
fluctuation of data collection and reporting scope in the past due to the
pandemic and changing business scale, we are not able to set a group-
level water reduction target. We will consider setting a group-level water
reduction target when the data collection and reporting scope become
stable in the future. During the reporting period, the Group did not
encounter any issue in sourcing water for daily operations.
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China, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and four hotels in Mainland China. The
data of 2020 includes water consumption from one office in Mainland
China, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza and two hotels in Mainland China.

Total Water Consumption and Intensity® Unit 2021 2020
BIEKEREE? By —EB-—F —B-EF
Total water consumption Cubic meter 211,071 155,050
MEEKE M FR
Offices and Plaza Cubic meter 141,224 133,834
MAERES LK
Hotels Cubic meter 69,847 21,216
ZEBE K
Total water consumption intensity
BEKERE
Offices and Plaza Cubic meter/square meter 3.4 3.3
MAERES AT R
Hotels Cubic meter/room night 0.3 0.2
ZEBIE SRS E

8 The data of 2021 includes water consumption from one office in Mainland 8 ZE - —FHNEERBEMRFTREAME —E
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MANAGING WASTE RESPONSIBLY

The Group recognises waste generation impacts from our businesses
and the significance of sustainable waste management. As a responsible
corporate, we have established a three-tiered approach in our operations
to minimise waste generation. We prioritise waste avoidance over waste
reduction and recycling. Waste disposal is deemed as the final and
qualified waste management companies have been appointed to handle
our waste in an appropriate manner.

To avoid wastepaper generation, the Group encourages employees
to minimise the use of paper and process document through online
systems. We advocate green office and paper-free working environment
in other business units including hotel management operations
through reusing wastepaper and adopting double-side printing. We
also encourage the use of own cups in order to minimise the use of
disposable paper cups.

The Hotels have established waste management strategies to minimise
waste generation while maintaining service excellence. We strictly
implement waste classification as well as a variety of recycling and reuse
measures for reusable or recyclable waste and food waste. For example,
we promote food waste recycling, reduce the use of disposable
plastics, utilise reusable ceramic cups. Cartons generated during
hotel’s replenishment are reused for stock storage while toothpaste and
toothbrushes are reused for cleaning. We have signed an agreement
with relevant government departments on recycling of waste grease.
During the Reporting Period, approximately 29 tonnes of non-hazardous
waste was generated, while 8,918 kg of paper, 2,938kg of plastics
and 9,724 kg of food waste were recycled respectively. In addition, our
operations did not create significant amount of hazardous waste.

Since there are fluctuation of data collection and reporting scope in the
past due to the pandemic and changing business scale, we are not able
to set a group-level waste reduction target. We will consider setting a
waste reduction target when the data collection and reporting scope
becomes stable in the future.
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Total Waste Generation and Intensity* Unit 2021 2020
BEYEERRE B —E—F —EBCEF
Total non-hazardous waste generation Tonnes 29 17
FEEEEREYEE YN
Offices and Plaza Tonnes 3 3
MAERES NI
Hotels Tonnes 26 14
ZEBIE NI

Total non-hazardous waste generation intensity

BREBRVNAEERE

Offices and Plaza kg/square meter 0.71 0.74
MRERES NI TR

Hotels kg/room night 0.12 0.11
ZEBE NI

The data in 2021 includes waste generation from six offices in HK and ¢ ZT - FMRIBE O EMLR B RREAHE

Mainland China and four hotels in Mainland China. The data in 2020 7 EPE AR - DAL A R B A o O 2 R e
includes waste generation from seven offices in HK and the Mainland China & ZZ - ENER AN SE R
and two hotels in the Mainland China. A @ PSR - ARG B A &)
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PROMOTING GREEN BUILDINGS

The Group is committed to minimising our carbon footprint while
maximising resources efficiency in our properties and hotel management
operations. We facilitate decarbonisation in our operations through
implementing green buildings characteristics in design and construction.

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza is an iconic green building project of the
Group. The building integrates the intelligent building management
system “Huiyun Smart Management System”, which was developed by
our parent company DWCM. By incorporating and centrally monitoring
energy consumption, fire alarm, security, operation and equipment
management systems into a single platform, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda
Plaza can operate safely, greenly and smartly. This enhances the energy
efficiency of the building while maintaining quality service to customers.
We have been awarded the “1-star” level criteria of the China Green
Building Label, which recognised our effort to create excellent green
building.
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EMSHBEERSNEEEEFERART

The green building features of Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza are

summarised in the following table: *®
Green Building Features Functions
BREEFERE Thee

Energy conservation device — electric sunshade
figeRE — BHESR

Prevent direct sun rays from entering the room through the
shielded ceiling and windows to lower indoor temperature
in the daytime, reducing energy consumption caused by
air-conditioners.
BEREGEREBEARTERLEFESTEEA - ARER
BERRE - femBdZ &R B aE IR HFE

Natural lighting design — dome skylights
BALRET — ETEXRE

Provide natural daylight for indoor areas to minimise the use of
lightings
RENHTREB AN LU R RS (E A

Water saving system — rainwater collection system Collects and reuses rainwater for landscaping

EIKER — RKBE RS

WALK ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group values our employees in sustainable business development
and success. To attract and retain talents, we offer competitive
remuneration package and benefits. We always strive to provide
our employees with equal career development opportunities and
maintain a zero-tolerant attitude to any forms of discrimination. In
addition to providing a healthy and safe working environment, we also
advocate work-life balance. We continuously invest in our employees
by supporting them to attend a range of trainings to sharpen their
skills and knowledge, thereby strengthening our workforce. Our
employment management practices adhere to employment-related laws
and regulations. We establish a series of equitable, transparent and
comprehensive employment policies in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong, as
well as the Labour Law and Labour Contract Law of the PRC. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any major violations related
to the labour and dismissal rule and legislation.
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Talents Acquisition and Retention

The Group has formulated fair and transparent recruitment procedures
as well as reviews the employment policy when necessary. We
endeavour to create a diverse and inclusive working environment
while supporting our employees along their career paths with care and
equal opportunities. In compliance with the Employment of Children
Regulations (Chapter 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong), Labour Law and
Labour Contract Law of the PRC, and the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour, our employment policy stringently prohibits
employment of child and forced labour in our business operations. We
conduct background checks on every job applicant. If any child labour or
forced labour is discovered, the management will take follow-up actions
based on the interests of the relevant individuals.

To ensure talents are retained, we reward our employees with
competitive remuneration package after considering their performance,
experience and market salary level. The distribution of bonus depends
on the financial performance of the group and employee performance.
We also provide our employees with a wide variety of benefits including
funds, social insurance, personal accident insurance, medical insurance,
retirement plans, education subsidy, annual health check, medical
welfare and free working meals or meal allowances. In addition, we are
committed to promoting an inclusive workplace. We provide maternity or
paternity leave to eligible employees in compliance with local laws and
regulations. Housing allowance is granted to employees with inconsistent
work locations before and after employment and expatriates. We also
offer meal subsidies and special arrangements for ethnic minority
employees.
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A structured and clear promotion ladder is believed to be vital in talents
retention and recognising their contributions. The Group conducts
performance appraisal for our employees on an annual basis to
communicate feedback. We also provide appeal channels to maintain
fair review process. In addition to external recruitment, we recommend
employees to be promoted internally when there are vacancies in order
to recognise their contributions to the Group and increase their career
mobility.

The Group emphasises on maintaining close relationship with employees
and ensuring their wellbeing, so we organise a range of team-building
activities and develop effective communication channels with employees
including birthday parties, team gatherings and festival celebrations.
For instance, we have organised a wide variety of recreational activities
to thank our employees for their contribution, such as heart-warming
afternoon tea, cooking activities, night run and anniversary food festival.
We have also arranged meetings with employees periodically to ensure
their opinions to be heard.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group has 615 employees in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Team-building activities in Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu,

Shanghai and Wanda Moments Hotel, Nanchang West

Railway Station.
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Employee Distribution
I
As of 31 December 2021°
HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—H°

Number of employees by gender Number of employees by age group
BRERBHNEEHE RERARNE S NWESH A
Aged above 50
50%%:
Aged 41-50
l\/IaIe /_\ Fen;a\l; 41-508% y ’\ Aged 30 or below
135 >\ 30BREUIA T
ﬁ =
348 267 139
Aged 31-40
31-405% /
296
N\
~
Number of employees by geographical location Number of employees by employees type
EitEESHNESEE RESERESNESHE
Other
Hong Kong .
7 S
Mainland Permanent
China EHH
EP B A b, / 615
/608

The data includes the Group’s hotel service business in Mainland China, 5 HE P EA S BN A E IR % 3
one office in Hong Kong and the hotels. % NREANRAERZZDE
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Turnover Rate in 2021

TE-FRER

Category Unit Employee Turnover rate
il B BIRALEE

By gender

BRI D

Female % 41
g

Male % 38
St

By age group

RERARE D

Aged 30 or below % 50
30FRSIAT

Aged 31-40 % 39
31 E408%

Aged 41-50 % 35
41 E508%

Aged above 50 % 22
503 I

By geographical location

R EE D

Mainland China % 40
FEIA

Hong Kong % 14
i
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Training and Development

The Group values the significance of strengthening our employees’
job-related skills and knowledge. We provide various training and
development opportunities for our employees to thrive in their career
pathway. During the reporting period, the Group has delivered a total
9,449 hours of training to employees, with an average of 15 hours per
employee.

To promote the professional development of our employees, we have
arranged a series of trainings that are applicable for all employees
whilst there also are trainings tailored for different ranks and positions
to better accommodate their personal and team-specific goals. For
example, we have launched “Talent Scheme” and “Quality Talent
Scheme” to equip both our employees and managers with skills to
advance to higher positions. For financial roles, we provide training
on total budget management and financial business knowledge etc.
As for roles concerning operational management, we provide training
on sales negotiation, branding, complaints handling means as well as
market promotion in hotel management units to enhance understanding
of brand management. For engineering staff, training such as energy-
saving of central air conditioning, construction regulation and the use of
heating, ventilation and air conditioning during summer times.
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To motivate our employees to pursue career development, our REBRMNEBERBEER  aEKBNE
employees may reimburse expenses including course fees and related TrA3REFNER - RIEREEMEEER -
expenses. Our employees are also paid during on-the-job training. For T E B TR A] AERIE I BB T E -
example, we have supported our employees financially to attend training m - B AEERBMBIE  EMM2ma
related to accounting and updates to listing rules hosted by the Hong EBSEEAE HKICPA) RBEBANGIREAE
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Hong (HKCGI) = #r s &5t K _E MR A E 3 A MRS
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI). Our Board members e EFERENAEEBNERETIISES
and full-time employees in Hong Kong receive training on business REERRMEBRHENEBE RIS o
management provided by the Group’s company secretary.

Average Training Hours Completed per Employee

BREETAZ AN TR

Average training hours per employee Average training hours per employee
by employee category by gender
RESEHNESNEEREFIIZIREH REFIESNEEEETHZ IR
2
40 - 39 20 - 0
£ Of w O 12
o 20} o 10
3 13 15 3
T 1o l l T sk
0N O ° ® 0\ O ®
Top management  Middle management General staff Male Female
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Unit 2021 2020
By —EB-—fF —ECEF
Percentage of employees trained by employee category
REEEHEINZIETIESLE
Top management % 100 100
SREEAR
Middle management % 94.0 87.9
FREEAB
General staff % 92.9 93.7
—HRET
Percentage of employees trained by gender
RUBBSNZINETESL
Female % 88.0 98.9
7
Male % 97.4 88.4
St
Taking Care of Employees' Health and Safety EREIREHEZS

Health and safety of our employees is an indispensable part of our
business. The Group strictly complies with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
legal requirements on occupational health and safety stipulated in the
Labour Law of the PRC. In the Hotels, “Safety Mandatory Provision”
is established by the hotel management units which outline the
responsibilities of safety personnel, daily safety measures, and safety-
related policies. All employees are required to strictly comply to mitigate
the inherent occupational health and safety risks.

To further enhance our employees’ health and safety awareness, safety
programmes and trainings during induction are provided by the Group.
Employees working associated with high potential hazard activities
such as entering construction sites and performing maintenance work,
are provided with adequate personal protective gears to minimise the
occupational accidents and risks. To monitor health and safety issues at
construction sites, we also communicate with our contractors regularly.
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In response to COVID-19, the Group has taken a proactive role in
securing a safe working environment for our employees. Our offices, the
Plaza and the Hotels are comprehensively cleaned and sanitised every
day and all staff is required to wear masks and monitor their own health
condition. For our offices, we have adopted flexible work arrangement in
several business units and cancelled international business trips. For the
Hotels, we continue to follow to the COVID-19 Prevention Guidebook
we co-edited with the Huashan Hospital of Fudan University in Shanghai
for the Hotel Industry in 2020. We provide free medical supplies such as
hand sanitisers and masks and check their body temperature once staff
and guests enter the Hotels. Employees are required to take shifts or
paid leave to reduce transmission risks during times of severe pandemic
situation. We also arrange group COVID-19 testing and pandemic

prevention training according to government requirement.
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Regular disinfection for protecting the health and safety of our employees in Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai and

Wanda Moments Hotel, Nanchang West Railway Station.

LESHBEXERE HERAUBEXERETHHES  REEIRERE -

Unit 2021 2020 2019
By —E-—F i —EB-NF
Number of work-related fatalities Number 0 0 0
E TR R TR A S AH
Rate of work-related fatalities % 0 0 0
ETERMERMIL T EY L 3
Lost days due to work injury Days 0 0 0
ATHBEAXTIERH A&

BEEERRERAT
—B-—FFH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I%i% %j:é& /El#&l:l

RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS

A safe, sustainable and responsible operational culture is crucial to the
delivery our high-quality products in an efficient manner. The Group
strongly believes that high ethical standard and close relationship
with our customers and suppliers support the Group’s continuous
improvement. We highly respect the intellectual property rights of third
parties. Thus, our internal policies are reviewed on a regular basis to
avoid any infringement on intellectual property activities and ensure our
compliances with relevant regulations and laws. During the reporting
period, we are not aware of any non-compliance relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided.

Maintaining Ethical Conduct

The Group upholds integrity in the workplace and adopts a zero-
tolerance attitude towards corruption by implementing a range of anti-
corruption policies and strategies, which prohibit the provision and
acceptance of benefits. Our members and employees must obey
such policies and measures, as well as behave in accordance with the
requirements. The Group regularly reviews our business practices to
ensure compliance obligations.

At Wanda Hotel, we stand for integrity, fairness, inclusion and respect
in all our operations. We have zero tolerance to misconducts including
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. Internal policies are well-
established to ensure our compliance with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC. Apart from
our internal policies, the Group has implemented whistleblowing system
for all employees to report any misconduct. Detail investigations will be
conducted, and resolution will be immediately implemented. Department
managers are responsible for handling of any reported cases. The cases
will be escalated to the Group’s management where necessary.
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The Group maintains zero tolerance for corruption. Trainings are provided
for our employees on anti-corruption to ensure they fully understand
the Group’s expectation on ethical standards and to mitigate possible
corruption risks. The company secretary provides regular training on
corporate governance to directors and the management of the Group
to strengthen their ability for supervision and monitoring. Regarding
our hotel operations, we provide either online or offline anti-corruption
training to our staff.

No non-compliance cases regarding corruption were observed during
the Reporting Period.

Anti-corruption training in Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai
EHEEHRREREREETHRESEI

Managing Our Supply Chain

Our relationships with our suppliers are the keystone for our high-quality
products and services. During the reporting period, 560 suppliers from
the Mainland China were engaged.

Engaging Our Suppliers

We have the Tender and Procurement Policy in place to standardise and
provide detailed guideline on suppliers and subcontractors tendering
and procurement procedures. We have provided guidelines for staff
involving in procurement activities to take into account cost, time, quality
and continuity of supply as well as suppliers’ compliance with laws,
regulations and other prescribed standards concerning product/service
quality/legal regulations for safety, business ethics, labour practices, the
environment, anti-corruption, data protection and intellectual property,
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among other issues, when selecting and engaging our suppliers. We
clearly communicate our expectation with our suppliers and define in
contracts. For instance, contracts are attached with the “Partnership
with Integrity Agreement”. Suppliers need to undergo a procedure of
primary selection, audit and public tendering processes to be included in
our List of Suppliers.

Identifying Social and Environmental Risks

We are aware that our sourcing activities are associated with risks
which include environmental and social risks which pose negative
consequences to the natural environment and our stakeholders such
as our employees, customers and neighbouring communities. In order
to minimise these risks, supplier assessments which involve site visits
and questionnaires are conducted when selecting new suppliers and
regularly afterwards. We will consider terminating the partnership if
the supplier fails to meet the Group’s standards and if no corrective
actions are taken. For the Hotels, major suppliers are chosen by
Wanda Hotel Management for better management and reduce risks.
The Procurement Team conducts monthly market research and annual
supplier assessment to evaluate social and environmental risks along
the supply chain. For offices and the Plaza, suppliers, contractors and
service providers’ performance is closely monitored to ensure they meet
legal requirement and the Group’s standard on areas including but not
limited to labour rights and occupational health and safety.

Promoting environmentally preferable products and services

The Group encourages our procurement team to prioritise products
which have lower impact on the environment which include products
that have low embodied carbon, are sourced locally, produced with
renewable energy, durable and can be repaired, contain materials which
have high recyclability, minimise the use of virgin material in the product,
minimise energy and/or water consumption, minimise or eliminate
packaging and replace disposable/single-use items with reusable or
recyclable ones. For instance, the Hotels provide guests with supplies
of biodegradable paper packaging instead of plastics. In addition, all
suppliers are required to comply with the national environmental laws
and regulations.
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Enhancing Services

Addressing customers’ feedback properly is our major way of improving
our service quality. At the Plaza, we have established a customer
complaint hotline for our customers to make inquiries and voice their
opinions. To keep a record of their overall satisfaction of our service
provided, formal customer satisfaction surveys are conducted twice
a year. We do our best to reduce possible complaints at all cost by
constantly improving our complaints handling procedures. Our Operation
Department is tasked with reviewing all customers’ complaints very
carefully. Once complaints are accepted, they will be directed to relevant
departments for further handling to ensure the compliance with internal
policies. To further maximise our customers’ satisfaction, all complaints
are expected to be responded within 24 hours and have to be handled
in a professional manner. We also arrange monthly meeting with our
tenants to cater their needs and provide special training to teams who
are responsible for serving our tenants.

For the Hotels, customers’ reviews and ratings on online travel agency
(OTA) platforms such as Huiping and Ctrip remains our major tools for
service quality evaluation. Through genuine customer feedbacks, we
can understand customers’ needs, enhance customer satisfaction and
build loyalty, ultimately promote our brand through word-of-mouth.
We have set an aggressive target of achieving 4.8 out of a 5-point
scale on all of these OTA platforms. To motivate better service quality,
employees’ performance pay is linked to such target. Internal guidelines
including “Hotel Service and Quality Standards” and “Hotel Employees
Appearance and Service Attitude Standards” have been established to
stipulate our requirement on appearance, behaviour, service attitude,
operation knowledge and problem-solving skills. To evaluate our
service quality, we actively seek feedback from the guests after check-
in and check-out by telephone calls. Mystery guests are also engaged.
There are mainly three types of mystery guests. They include frequent
guests, guests who rated low on OTA platforms and professional third
party mystery guests. We conduct daily evaluation meeting to discuss
customers’ reviews lower than 4.8 points and formulate improvement
plans accordingly. Monthly meeting is also held to evaluate the
implementation of these improvement plans and review monthly targets
on different service quality indicators.

During the reporting period, we receive and properly handled 69
complaints relating to our products and services, none of which were
substantial complaints from external parties or regulatory authorities.
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Maintaining Health and Safety

The Group has always prioritised the health and safety of our guests.
We have well-established policies in place including but not limited to
hygiene and disinfection, fire safety and food safety.

To ensure the health and safety of hotel guests during their stay, a
well-developed hotel management policy has been established in the
Hotels. The Hotels are designed in accordance with the safety and
quality requirements of Wanda Hotel Management design guidelines.
This ensures the Hotels fully comply with relevant laws and regulations
including but not limited to the Fire Protection Law of the PRC. Sufficient
emergency plans with fire drills and trainings are arranged for our staff.
Furthermore, dedicated personnel are responsible for regular monitoring
of the Hotels’ fire safety systems.

In response to COVID-19, the Group has strengthened cleaning and
disinfection in the Hotels and the Plaza. In the Hotels, employees who
are responsible for food and beverages are required to undergo daily
COVID-19 testing and always have their health certificate present when
reporting for duty, while utensils and cutlery are disinfected regularly. Raw
ingredients must also be traceable, ensuring food safety. The Hotels also
abstain from buying or processing wildlife animals and their by-products.

Safeguarding Privacy

It is our responsibility to protect customers’ data privacy. The privacy
and confidentiality requirements of our internal policies ensure the
compliance to relevant local regulations, in particular, the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests of the PRC. All employees
are required to strictly follow the requirements during collection, holding
and using, disclosure and transfer of customers’ confidential data.

For the Hotels, we cooperate with third parties for privacy protection
capabilities such as Green Cloud, Wanyue Club and Yunji to prevent
leakage of customers information. All new employees are required to
undergo privacy protection training. In addition, to comply with the
requirements of the Ministry of Public Security, we have ceased the use
of face recognition on customers in our designated systems.
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CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

The Group believed that supporting the local communities and those in
need can positively influence the development of sustainable cities. We
actively engage in impactful community investment activities targeted
to the underprivileged groups in regions where we operate. During the
Reporting Period, we have recorded a total of 619 hours dedicated
to volunteering activities which include participation in environmental
protection activities, blood donation and volunteering work at the rural
tea farms. We also donated approximately HK$20,000 and participated
in the Lifewire Run — Ho Sheung Heung fund-raising running event to
raise medical and rehabilitation funds for patients and children with rare
diseases.

Mobile Bookbox Project for Children

On Tencent’s 99 Charity Day, we jointly launched the Wanda Children
Charity Mobile Book Boxes Project with Mantianxing Charity to distribute
high quality books to children in towns and rural areas across the
country. It is estimated that around 600 boxes of books have been
distributed to over 10,000 teachers and students in need.
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Provision of Quality Accommodation and Support Amid B4 COVID-19 B m S E IEHERME
COVID-19 HEBRXE

The Group understands the tremendous challenges faced by medical REETHREEABRFEHEATERHEXR
staff and individual under quarantine. In this regard, the Group provided PREL o Bt - AEEAMMREELSEE - [
them with quality accommodation while safeguarding the health and FRIEEE A EMERERESE -

safety of the local communities.

During the reporting period, Wanda Moments Hotel, Nanchang West RREHEA - HEmhEEEERERMT

Railway Station provided 60,000 rooms for quarantine to reduce cross- 60,000 [EFRBES fHl + PARME AR X Lay Ak o
infection risk.

CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE HBEXZREEFRAERE AT

OF HONG KONG EXCHANGES AND CLEARING (GRIB - HERERESDA
LIMITED B H&L|
General Disclosure and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—RIFERBREVIES BERAE 2%

A. Environmental

A RIR

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1: HMy

General Disclosure Information on: Environmental Protection
—MRBEE BRABERIORERBYN - KR LA RFERE

W5 AENEEERVNELSH

(@  the policies; and

(@ BoK: &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

b) BTHEHETAABEATENERER
KRB EHS -
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General Disclosure and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REEREREREZR BREAR 2Z
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective  Not applicable — The operations of

RS AR B IR A1 1

KPIA1.2
BARAARURIRAL2

KPIA1.3
FARAERUIEIRALS

KPI A1.4
BB IEIRAL4

KPIA1.5
BB RIEIR AL

emissions data.

B TR RE AR B AR -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
B (8E1) kpREE (BE2) R=RE
HEE (LAMARTE )&(ﬁuﬁﬁﬁ) E (BAE
EREA - BERBE)
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
Fﬁ?’iﬁ%f%% B8 (ABEETE ) K (40
BR)ER(MABESEN - BIEXRMEET

At
= o
>

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FELEZEEDES (A ﬁiﬁ.ﬁr 1) & (0@
) EE (MASES B -
Bt E) o

Description of emissions target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

R PTET IV BEE B R R RESIE LR
IRPTERER ) 2288

the Group do not cause any significant
air emissions, and no relevant data is
disclosed accordingly.

TEA — AEENEETERZEDN
REBYH - A AREREEBR
% e

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently

RGRE — ERAEBIR

Not applicable — The Group did
not produce significant amount of
hazardous waste during the reporting
period.

NER — AEBERREFEALEKR
EELREREEY -

Environmental Protection — Managing
Waste Responsibly

BRIRRE — AIENERYER

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently, Promoting
Green Buildings

RERE — ZRER HPEER

P

S
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General Disclosure and KPls Disclosure Reference
—RIXERERERIER BEAR 2
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-  Environmental Protection — Managing

PASAESIEIRAL.6

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHEA2: EREA
General Disclosure

—fRIN R

KPI A2.1
B RURIRA2.1

KPI A2.2
BARAARURIRA2.2

KPI A2.3
RSB IEIE A2.3

hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

MR EAENBEEEEYN L M
APTRTSZ B REE B iR R R ESE L AR
TREREY 8K o

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw

materials.
ARERER(BEER - KERME) &
g o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

REPREI SN EE R SHEELR(WE -
REOH) BFEE (UTRETREAE) KBE
(WMABESEL - BEREFE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility)

B kERTE (WNEBEEEM - BIER
heEtE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

f 2l PR AT SZ BV B IR (5 R e B IR R ARz
L H RPTERERE R -
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Waste Responsibly
IRIRRE — AT ENEEDERE

The Group did not produce significant
amount of hazardous waste during
the reporting period.
AEBRREFETRAEELEESE
REEEY) o

Environmental Protection
IRIRIRE

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently
RERE — SHER

Environmental Protection — Measures
to Reduce Water Consumption
IRIBIRTE — EIKIEHE

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently, Promoting
Green Buildings
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General Disclosure and KPIs Disclosure Reference

—REEREREREZR BREAR 2Z

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in  Environmental Protection — Measures

PARAEIERA2.4

KPI A2.5
BASRAERUIEIRA2.5

sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

et SREGE AR R A E AR - A K
PREIZE AR E B R R RERELRR
FREREREY 2285

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

B mPTABEME e EE (ANGTE) &
(WER) BEEBEEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEAS: RERXAER
General Disclosure

—RIKRE

KPI A3.1
BASRAARUSIRAS.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.
MIRBEITABRRERRAEREKE
SHER -

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

MRS RS HRERRARERNERY
ERERMEBAEYENTE -

to Reduce Water Consumption
IRIGRE — HiKIEHE

The Group did not encounter any
issue in sourcing water for daily
operations during the reporting
period.
REENRELERNREFELEE
ESREGER KRB o

Not applicable — The Group’s
products do not require the use of
packaging material.

TERA — ASENEREARAE
M -

Environmental Protection
IRIBIRE

Environmental Protection —
Promoting Green Buildings

RER#E — HEBREEE

EEEERRARAT 111
—E-—FEH




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERE

IS -

General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREAVIER
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Disclosure

BERAR

Reference

2Z

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[BH A4 | |IREML
General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI A4.1
RABEENIEIZE A4 .1

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer.
FHA R EHE LRI REEH BT AEAY
EHERNRIEEBEENER

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

MAD R EHETAELYENE
ARGEHRBEELERKREEEREEN
78 -
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Environmental Protection — Climate
Resilience
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Disclosure

BERAR

Reference
8%

B. Social — Employment and Labour Practices

B.#& — ERRZIESR
Aspect B1: Employment
EmEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure
—MRBEE

KPI B1.1
R IEIR B

KPIB1.2
R IEIRB1.2

Information on:
ERFMEERE BREEE - TER
- RE- TEHE 2t REBNU
N EAbF S RARHH) -

= =

(a
(a
b

-

(b)

the policies; and

B M

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
BTHBETAREAZENEREE
RARBINERS o

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
MR BEED - FielR RitEE o
HIEE B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

RIER - FRANRMEE S HEERK
LbE o

Walk Along with Employees
BB TRTT

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention
BB TRIT — AT RARRE

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention
BB TRIT — AT RARRE
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General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREAVIER
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Disclosure

BERAR

Reference

2Z

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BHEB2: R#EHEZE
General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B2.1
RS RIEIR B2.1

KPIB2.2
RS NIEIR B2.2

KPIB2.3
BARAARUIEIRB2.3

Information on:

BRRHMT 2 TERRLRERE & 2B

FIEEN

(@  the policies; and

@ BX: Rk

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

(b) BFHEHBETABEATENEBERE
NP EFY -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

occurred in each of the past three years

including the reporting year.

BE=F(RREERFE)BFAITHL

ABUR & -

Lost days due to work injury.

ATBEATIEEE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PTER AN B R R R 2 HE 1 - AR
HEANITRERTE -
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Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT — BREIREETSE

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT — BHREIREETS

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRIT —ERETRRERZS
Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT —BRETRREELYSY
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Disclosure Reference
BHEAR 8%

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BmEB3 : #ERIEI
General Disclosure

—fRINEE

KPI B3.1
RAS AR TR B3

KPI B3.2
FASHEIE1R B3.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
ERARAEE BT IEBRE NS R
BVERER o flUFFIES -

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
RHRIREEER (R REERE  RARE
BE)ESHXIEEBL

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.
BRI E BRI &S
ElEsRS=liss

Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
HETRT — BIRER

Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
HETRT— B RER

Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
BB TRT — B RERE

HBEEERRERAT
—E-—FEH




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE -HERE

General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREAVIER
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Disclosure

BERAR

Reference

2Z

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : % TXH|
General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B4.1
RSN IR B4

KPIB4.2
RN B4.2

Information on:

B IEET aH4TH
a) the policies; and

HE R

compliance with relevant laws and

= =

(
(a
(

k)

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
(b) BFHEHBETABEATENEBERE
NP EFY -
Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
fi A ST R AS 18 B B9 #5 b LA R B T N 58
BT -
Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.
M E B IR ERIE AR ER BB IS RPER
)28 o
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BB TRIT — AT RARRE
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Acquisition and Retention
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Disclosure

BERAR

Reference
8%

Operating Practices

EEE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BEBS5 : HEHEEE
General Disclosure
—R IR EE

KPI B5.1
RS BUIEIR BS. 1

KPI B5.2
RASAE IR B5.2

KPI B5.3
RAAE IR B5.3

KPI B5.4
RS MIEIRB5.4

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRIE R GRREE
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

miEE T ERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.
MAEEERHERNEN  MERTAE
BB HEREE - LARBRED BB
TMEEERTTE -

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B AR HERNRE TR R
B - ARAERAEIT REEER A ©
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

Ml EREHERREEZRRARER N
PRFGEVE R - A RABRENTT M BB 7% o

Responsible Operations
BEANEE

Responsible Operations — Managing
Our Supply Chain
BERENSE — EBRRMOHER
Responsible Operations — Engaging
QOur Suppliers
BEMENEE — ZTRHERD

Responsible Operations — Identifying
Social and Environmental Risks
BEANEE — BRI RIRRR

B2

Responsible Operations — Promoting
Environmentally Preferable Products
and Services
BEENEE — HEEREBRROE
on K AR 7
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I%i% %j:é& /El#&l:l

General Disclosure and KPlIs Disclosure

—REERBREAVIER BEAR

Reference

2Z

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on:
—Rg IR ER BHEREERMREHEREALE - &

SHNILEEE AR ER
(@  the policies; and
@ HBE: K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods
of redress.
(o) ETFTHEHEITABEARZENHEBEZE
RIRBINERS o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or
RSB N IE1E B6.1 shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
E%iai%éuu#%@lk B e R R

P ENGOER
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
RER AR WIETE B6.2 complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
RN Em MR HREFBE A RS
iz
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing
AR AEBUEIZ B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights.
et BB AR o SRS AR EERE R AR 1B 1
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process
AR AEBUIEIZ B6.4 and recall procedures.
S SR BE REMBIUKIET o
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection
BB N IEIEB6.5 and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.
e E B & RMRME RBALIR - A KRB
BITRERNE -
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Responsible Operations

BEENEE

There were no recalls concerning
the provision and use of the Group’s
products and services that have a
significant impact on our operations.
N5 BIR A 2 O So AR 7 B4R R 0 A
BYHBEMEEAEATENEKE
o

Responsible Operations — Enhancing
Services

BEENZE — RBIRE

Responsible Operations
BEANEE

Recall procedures are not material to
the Group’s operation.
BURRREFHAEBZ XBTBERX °
Responsible Operations —
Safeguarding Privacy

BEENEE — RELRE



General Disclosure and KPlIs

—REERBREAVIER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

on =
RIE s 2 RESHRE
Disclosure Reference
BHEAR 8%

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : KES
General Disclosure

—fRINEE

KPI B7.1
RSB B IZ BT .

KPIB7.2
RARARBUIEIRBT.2

KPI B7.3
RS ENIEIEBT.3

Information on:

BN IEARER - BR - B
(@  the policies; and

(@ B &
(

compliance with relevant laws and

FERORRERE -

Rt

e

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BIHBETABERZENERER
NGB EFS -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding

(b)

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERARNEETASEESRETEE
OB ARMHIEE KA
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it [y &6 15 e M R ERAR T - LA MBI EATT
NERFE

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.

ftmERRE TRENRESHE -

Responsible Operations —
Maintaining Ethical Conduct
BEENEE — #EEBERT

Responsible Operations —
Maintaining Ethical Conduct
BEINEE — HEBRET

Responsible Operations —
Maintaining Ethical Conduct
BERENSE — @#RERERST

Responsible Operations —
Maintaining Ethical Conduct
BEENSE - #EBREST

EEEERRARAT 11
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I%i% %j:é& /El#&l:l

General Disclosure and KPlIs Disclosure

—REERBREAVIER BEAR

Reference

2Z

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : #HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to
—AR understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
FHENHE2ERTHEEMELRTE
MEREER GRS EELEMNRBER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

RASAE 1R BB.1 BEIEREE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
RSB E1R B8.2 ERTHEAEBAEIR -
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Caring for the Community
MAOBEHR

Caring for the Community
HAOBEHR
Caring for the Community
BAOREH R



Independent Auditor's Report

EY::

To the shareholders of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 129 to 270, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR R (TES S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR RS CTES 0

Key audit matters

HARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFPNEFNAEERRETSE

Fair value of investment properties

REYRZ ZIEE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
investment properties, which were stated at fair value,
was approximately HK$1,563.1 million. Management
engages an external valuer to support its determination of
the fair value of the investment properties. The valuation
of the investment properties is highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as prevailing monthly
market rents, prevailing market prices, the reversionary
yield, capitalisation rates, occupancy rates and market
knowledge. The use of different estimates and assumptions
could result in significantly different fair values.

The disclosures about investment properties are included
in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 3 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 16 “Investment properties” to the consolidated
financial statements.

R-ZZE-_—F+=—A=+—8 BRAEBAEIEZEED
¥BREEA A1,563,100,0008 7T © EIBE L I —Z ML
HEMENEERENEZ AAEE - REMEZHEE
BEURN S &M REBRR - WRTEAWSHES BT
HER - BEHRER B ER - HARRTISAH
RATRMNG RBERTERAABEHREAEZE -

BERREMENREEN GV BRERME 24 TR ES
BORBLE | ~ MEE3[ ARG FH A R et | ARMFE 16148
E/EK

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external
valuer; reviewing the valuation report and holding discussion
with management and the valuer to understand and assess
the relevance and appropriateness of the valuation basis,
methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;
and obtaining and verifying the underlying data including
comparable market transactions used by the valuer. We
also involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used and
assessing the reasonableness of data used in the valuation
report, by comparing the prevailing monthly market rents,
prevailing market prices, reversionary yield, capitalisation
rates, occupancy rates with comparative cases in active
markets.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

HAMEEFRE (HHRE) IS HEm2EE -
BN REFBMN  EHGEERSLEERE R EEMT® -
AT @RS EERE  FRAZ AR FAREA Z 8RR
RZBBEMEE N MBI ZERBEER(RREGE
BFTERAZAIBLLEMIERF) - RPMZREAMGESR
KR MIFHEAERA 2 RRETE - WEBRKRTEAR
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FRREEREM IS 2 LB RPIEITHE - A ERS TR
REE AR -
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Independent Auditor's Report
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Key audit matters

RRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFNEFNAEERRETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

B ZBWHAREXEER B IEG

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross carrying
amounts before any impairment losses of trade receivables
and contract assets of approximately HK$277.1 million
and HK$70.8 million, respectively, for which the impairment
provisions were HK$117.0 million and HK$8.0 million,
respectively.

Significant management judgements and estimates were
involved in determining the amount of expected credit
losses for these receivables as at the end of the reporting
period for impairment assessment.

Given the materiality of these receivables and judgemental
nature of the recoverability assessment, we considered this
a key audit matter.

The disclosures about the impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets are included in note 2.4 “Summary
of significant accounting policies”, note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates”, note 20 “Trade
and bills receivables” and note 21 “Contract assets” to the
consolidated financial statements.

RZBE-Z—F+=-—A=+—H ' BE£ENEZIEKEX
BRENEEMNCERME(HNBREMREEE) 5 R AL
277,100,000 7T K 70,800,000/ 7t » HIBEREE D B A
117,000,000 7% 7T & 8,000,000 7 7T °

BB EAHE R G508 REE R WS MR ERE
HHZFREGRNEMEERIESH -

BB 7% B R MUK TR 1) B K1 DA R T M [0 1 R A ) 4 B 1
g RMIR R A TRREREEE -

EUESERTERAVEERENRE  RRGANS
BRME24[ B EHBCEHE] - WEa[ EAGH
Refat) - BEE 200 B 5 MM EROE R A I RO 211 &
KA -

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology used by the Group; obtaining
an understanding of management judgements involved
in assessing the creditability of debtors and discussing
with management about the status of significant overdue
individual debtors’ balances and any disputes between the
parties involved; reviewing management’s provision matrix
and checking the calculation of expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) made for the debtors. We also obtained direct
external confirmations from the debtors and reviewed the
timeliness of subsequent settlements from the debtors after
the end of the reporting period.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

BPMEFRF R (BFeR) e EXEMERNTE
HIEEBRRREDENEAN  THRIGEBAGEEER
W E IR B AT IA K B IR B i R B B B B E S A KSR
BEBRORN RIS ETT 2 MEEAF% - FHEEE
BB MirE R EB AMELEEERR ([BHE
BEE ) WEE - AT RSEBANERINGPRER
I BEEHRBERRREFALREEN R -

BEAN - HARHE S A M B RR AR EN TR E -
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Independent Auditor's Report

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

BB E

FWATE A HE G R

BERREFAHEMENAR - HER SR
FHRAFER (FAEMBHRER R FIBU D
EV R BB EREBRSN) ©

BPHGEMBHREINERL MREREMBE
Bt BT A RRERATANEES

A
am °©

ERRAMBHRAME - RAINEEEHE
HiER - REWBET  EEEMERES
AR B MH IR R PIE T BT AR
BEREEBRANT - KEUFEERBREL -
ERBEMAEHTOLE  DREMARSHME
BAEA#ERRL - ZMTERSEHEE -
FUEME - RAIERREEMEER -

EEMGRE M MREAE
MEE

BERAREFARRREE G ASHEMN
(BAMBREEADREFB(RAEPDNEKE
RERBFEMBERE - ASHEAMTEIRKRIE
HEEMARKRE - RERBEREETH
WRAVEEBNA RS - ARG R
RAFE AR RS R MG B B AR

it o

EREGEAMEHRRE - BAREFEEN
i BERERFELENREN  YEERBAT
BRREESELEABNER  URERFERL

BRRHER B BATEFAEE &
SEERNE LY - RBRE MR OB
EL

EvZEemY BERAREFREIEE

Bk
WA s BRR R A - r

BEBEERRERARA 125
R -FERH
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AR R (TES S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR R (TES S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we FHEBFZZESBAMNEERMNS © KIMETH
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the LRI ARG BRRNBTHREE -
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore gk ERETEIE - RPN RS H
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 2 ERIE - RIBEBEER I ATEREGE
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the EEHARER  IERBELNBELT &
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ~ SEFEAIREMHMSHEBEFEMEXNE
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse HERESBAEEANARAE - HMED
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh SEMEER TEREFEBZEIE -

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent ~ AREBV ZEARENBFSEHE B ARRM

auditor’s report is Yee Chung Man. X o

Ernst & Young ZXETHEMER AT
Certified Public Accountants Syl

Hong Kong BA

23 March 2022 —E-F=RA=+=H

128 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEiEmRk

VYear ended 31 December 2021 HE =T =—F+=-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :E8E4N - HHLABTTIIR)

2021 2020
—EC-—F T T
Notes $°000 $°000
B 5T F T
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue Wz 5 873,659 655,419
Cost of sales SHER AR (411,733) (264,237)
Gross profit EF 461,926 391,182
Other income and gains, net Hbl A Ras - FRE 6 218,189 55,420
Net valuation loss HEMEMEEEFRE
on investment properties 16 (53,049) (34,538)
Selling expenses HEMX (17,117) (27,685)
Administrative expenses THFAX (156,977) (136,979)
Finance costs BhE A AN 8 (54,612) (111,892)
Profit before tax SIBIC B EETE 7 R R AT
from continuing operations gl 7 398,360 135,508
Income tax expense FRiSHi X 11 (139,664) (39,409)
Profit for the year from SECEETE 2 ANFE
continuing operations gl 258,696 96,099
Discontinued operation %i@‘“%iﬁ
Profit for the year AR RS 2 AN A
from a discontinued operation 12 - 134,057
Profit for the year REERF 258,696 230,156
Attributable to: LT EIEEN :
Owners of the parent NEEA A 14 240,506 165,131
Non-controlling interests JEFE R RE 2 18,190 65,025
258,696 230,156
Earnings per share attributable BAREBREE ARG
to ordinary equity holders SRER (BAL)
of the parent (HK cents) 14
Basic and diluted HEARE S —
— For profit for the year — REERA 5.1 :
— For profit from continuing — BEKEER T

operations

5.1
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWAR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ - -—F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A 5EBE4N » HHLABITTYIR)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Profit for the year REZ i A 258,696 230,156
Other comprehensive income Hih2EUA
Other comprehensive income Hig M E5o%8
that may be reclassified to profit FPAERERZ Bt EERA ¢
or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation B GINGETS 2 [E W Z5E
of foreign operations 115,614 203,869
Reclassification adjustments for REEHEGINER
a foreign operation disposed ZEHDERAE
of during the year - 5,360
Other comprehensive income REEHMEHE
for the year, net of tax WA (HIBRBLIE) 115,614 209,229
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEIKABEE
for the year 374,310 439,385
Attributable to: AT &AL,
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZS PN 313,918 298,502
Non-controlling interests JEFERS A 60,392 140,883
374,310 439,385
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 3 A iERASN

e BRI &R

At 31 December 2021 W -ZE-—F+-A=+—H

BB TTHIR)

2021 2020
—EC-—F T T
Notes $°000 $°000
B 5T F Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR 15 169,972 149,594
Investment properties LEZE 16 1,563,122 1,570,800
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) 378,206 409,727
Intangible assets B EE 18 3,586 =
Long-term receivable AR ERIE 22 1,694,415 1,592,983
Deferred tax assets BIETIEEE 19 67,883 39,383
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 3,877,184 3,762,487
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 1,836 =
Trade and bills receivables 2 S RWHIBERENER 20 170,164 341,829
Contract assets BHEE 21 62,769 22 469
Prepayments, other receivables TERTSRIE - Bt FEUGRIE
and other assets NEMEE 22 81,947 65,973
Income tax recoverable AJUg ] AT IS AR 231 696
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReSEY 23 3,007,164 2,375,300
Total current assets REBEEHAE 3,324,111 2,806,267
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables, other payables B S ENFOE - MR RIE
and accruals KIEET &R 24 1,679,774 2,153,329
Contract liabilities BHAEE 25 44,181 34,882
Receipts in advance FE U A 11,762 13,529
Loans from an intermediate —FEFREER AR ER
holding company 26 873,000 873,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 17(o) 19,690 19,948
Income tax payables FE(FFTISHR 36,298 32,447
Total current liabilities REBEEHEE 2,664,705 3,127,135
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (BE)FE 659,406 (320,868)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 4,536,590 3,441 6191
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

r e AR R TR
ek L
At 31 December 2021 R=Z=—F+=-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A 5EBE4N » HHLABITTYIR)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes $’000 $°000
B 5T F T
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 65,765 57,162
Lease liabilities HEBE 17(b) 404,746 421,825
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE 19 218,980 176,039
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEE 689,491 655,026
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,847,099 2,786,593
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners BARHEE AELER
of the parent
Share capital RN 27 469,735 469,735
Retained earnings R = F 567,884 367,688
Other reserves HAunfd s 28 1,496,280 1,382,558
2,533,899 2,219,981
Non-controlling interests IR 1,313,200 566,612
TOTAL EQUITY MR 3,847,099 2,786,593
Ning Qifeng Han Xu
B B8
Executive Director Non-executive Director
HITEE FEMITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=—F+=A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& S B FEBRSN » HIAE TR )

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRERARL
Non-
Share Share Specidl Exchange Statutory Merger Retained controling Total
captal premium Teserve Teserve resenve Tesenve eamings Total interests equity

kx  KBEE  RRIRE  ERRE  ieRE olEBR RERA gt e i)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

v v T T v v T T v T
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(Wtar)  (Mtos)  (matos)  (Weos)  (Witos)  (Hioe)

As at 1 January 2020 R-E-EE-F-A 469,735 1,947,082 218,809 (163,212) 83738 (799,947) 205279 1,921,479 721,831 2643310
Protfor the yer REEEH - - - - - - BB I B0 2005
Other comprenensiveincome.~ AEEEM2EMA :
forthe year:
Exchange dfferences HERINER
on translation LERE
of foreign operations - - - 128,011 - - - 128,011 75,858 203,869
Redassfication adjustments ~ AFEHESNFH
for a foreign operation LB
disposed of during the year - - - 5,360 - - - 5,360 = 5,360
Total comprehensive income ~ KEE 2R
for the year - - - 133,371 - - 165,131 298,502 140,883 439,385

Disposal of a subsiciary HE-FHELT - - - - - - - - 673 [16737)
Appropriaion o statutory ERDiRRES
reserve fund - - - - 212 - 272 - - -
Dividends paid toa BHFERERRS
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - - (79,365) (79,365)
As at 31 December 2020 k22
t2A=1-A 469,735 1.947,082" 218,809 (29,841 46,455 (799947 367,688 2,219,981 566,612 2,186,593




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ - -—F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A 5EBE4N » HHLABITTYIR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRARAARE
Non-
Share Share Special ~ Exchange  Statutory Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity

B REEE  BARE  ENBRE iR AOEE  REEA B FBRER s

$000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T T n T Tn T n T Tn n
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(Mo (%) (M) (M&E2s)  (WEes)  (Wi2e)

As at 1 January 2021 R-B--%-5-A 469,735 1,947,082 218,809 (29.841) 46,455 (799,947) 367,688 2,219,981 566,612 2,786,593
Protfor theyear RERRH - - - - - - 056 2056 1810 2586%
Other comprehensiveincome~~ AFEEHZARA -
for the year:
Exchange dfferences BERISH
ontranslation LERE
f foreign operations - - - 73412 - - - 73412 42,202 115,614

Total comprehensive income ~ KXEE 2R

for the year - - - 73412 - - 240,506 313918 60,392 374,310
Appropriation to stafutory ERTiehES
resenve fund - - - - 40310 - (40,310) - - -
Capitalisation of debt! BAER - - - - - - - - 686,196 686,196
Asat31December202i ~ W-F=-%
+2521-4 ST AWM 2BAS  W@ET' 86765 (W) ST 26N 130 3epe
# On 19 October 2021, a subsidiary of the Group capitalised its debts t RZZEZ—F+A+NB  x&EE—REHREA
from shareholders resulting in an increase in non-controlling interest of AR ERREHERL - ERIEERERRIE N
$686,196,000. 686,196,000 7T °
- These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * ZERERP RREEREMBARRREMIITH
$1,496,280,000 (2020: $1,382,558,000) in the consolidated statement of 7 A H A ##51,496,280,000 T (T —F 45 :
financial position. 1,382,558,0007T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 3 A iERASN

BB TTHIR)

2021 2020
—E-F —E-THF
Notes $°000 $°000
B aE F Fr
Cash flows from operating activities K& FEHELCRERE
Profit before tax RO
From continuing operations REFBEEERS 398,360 135,508
From the discontinued operation REKR IR EE - 134,057
Adjustments for: BT EIEFE
Finance costs BLERKAR 8,12 54,612 111,910
Interest income from financial assets BAAEER ABER
at fair value through profit or loss ZERVEE A BIRA 6 (3,787) (13,133)
Interest income on long-term R B UGRIE 2 I IR A
receivable 6 (111,239) (10,690)
Bank interest income RITALEHA 6 (52,735) (16,691)
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BERERETE
and equipment 15 10,406 8,946
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 17(a) 32,922 29,283
Covid-19-related rent concession K EHHEAZ COVID-19
from lessor HEEESER 17(b) - (183)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ER 18 319 =
Impairment of trade receivables, H 5 WA
other receivables and E Ao EUGRIA K
long-term receivable R BRI E IR RIA 20,22 79,180 22,589
Impairment of contract assets BREERE 21 6,557 1,302
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARZ W - (149,776)
Net valuation loss on investment AN EREFE
properties 16 53,049 34,538
467,644 287,660
Increase in properties under TEEYZFEIE AN
development - (776,216)
Increase in inventories FE®EM (1,836) —
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 EUGRIA K R E R
and bills receivables w, (38h0) 113,634 (66,463)
Increase in prepayments and TERFIER
other receivables H {th W IR 3L hN (14,586) (14,722)
Increase in contract assets BHIEEEN (46,361) (9,271)
Increase in contract incremental costs & 473& & A ZAN1E 1 - (148)
Decrease in receipts in advance TElEIER A (1,935) (7,820)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, BSRNFIE - HMEMNFUR
other payables and accruals REEFTBAEM, (Rd) 135,867 (214,054)
Increase in contract liabilities B8 EEEN 16,388 25,703
Cash generated from/(used in) reEsEE RS (FTA)
operations ZBE 668,815 (775,331)
Taxes paid BHIE (125,817) (63,955)
Net cash flows from/(used in) LESEEFTS, (FTA) 2 —
operating activities REREFTHE 542,998 (839,286) NI WG
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ/\iﬁzﬁlﬂb%%

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ - -—F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A 5EBE4N » HHLABITTYIR)

2021 2020
——f —EFTHF
Notes $°000 $°000
B sE Fr Tt
Net cash flows from/(used in) LeSEEFTS, (FTH)
operating activities ZRERETFHE 542,998 (839,286)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELECESRE
Purchase of items of property, plant BEWE BEX
and equipment HiBIEE (26,638) (238,431)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BER&EEE
property, plant and equipment Z SRR 98 57
Additions to intangible assets NEEVEE (3,853) =
Bank interest received B ERTTHE 6 52,735 16,691
Interest income from financial assets BEANBE ABRE
at fair value through profit or loss ZEEVEE 2N EWA 6 3,787 13,133
Decrease in time deposits with maturity R Z|EI H 88 =& A
of more than three months ZE B OB 245,933 =
Increase in restricted bank deposits S2PR B ERTTAE FIE hA - 3,434
Proceeds received on debt HEMBAREEZER
from disposal of a subsidiary ZEHWM%?K - 621,628
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHBA - 2,090,964
Net cash flows from investing RETZBBZEESRERE
activities 272,062 2,507,476
Cash flows from financing activities REEFHELECESRE
New loans from an intermediate —RHREERABEEERK
holding company - 849,330
Repayment of loans to an intermediate {81 — P EHIER A R E X
holding company - (2,719,640)
New loans from other borrowing EfERZFHER - 1,162,549
Repayment of from financial institutions ~ 1Bi& 4 pi#E E R - (971,213
Dividend paid to a non-controlling B — R IR AR R AR B
shareholder - (79,365)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAEED 30(b) (14,987) (17,116)
Interest paid BIFE 30(b) (20,692) (35,913)
Net cash flows used in RMEFEBFTAZ
financing activities REREFHE (35,679) (1,811,368)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERESEEY
and cash equivalents #hn, GRd) BE 779,381 (143,178)
Cash and cash equivalents FYz R RREFEY
at beginning of year 2,137,660 2,198,697
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes &R &) > §/ 28 90,123 82,141
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBESRBESEEY
at end of year 3,007,164 2,137,660
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/_ﬁ/\Iﬁlﬁ/)le’%é

VYear ended 31 December 2021 HE =T =—F+=-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :E8E4N - HHLABTTIIR)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
Notes $°000 $'000
BisE Fr T
Analysis of balances of cash ReRESEEMERDNT
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEER 23 3,007,164 2,137,660
Time deposits TEHFR 23 - 237,640
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HIBRA ARG I ISARR R 2
in the consolidated statement ReRBEEED
of financial position 3,007,164 2,375,300
Less: time deposits with maturity W REE AR REIES A
of more than three months BiB=1EA 2 EFER
when acquired - (237,640)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FIBERGSHRERERZ
in the consolidated statement ReERESEEY
of cash flows 3,007,164 2,137,660
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a BEOERRAERARI ARG A
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered REREFMAZ2BRAF - XA
office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 A) 2 7 3% = B A2 7 Victoria Place, 5th
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda. Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda -
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred FAR- ARRREMBAR (A THE
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in hotel operation and [REE D) EZERFEARLFAE([F
management, hotel design and construction management services B DHEBELERER  AERTR
and investment properties leasing in the People’s Republic of BEREERGMYMERE -
China (the “PRC”) during the year.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), ARRAEF(EEF]RE  ARElZF
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda MIER AR ABEMEMERINERA
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), AI(TBESIN)  —HAREBELZHS
a company established in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and ([RBEZES )KL ZAT : NAF
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Dalian Hexing CEREERARBRNESEHIEERRA
Investment Company Limited, a company established in the PRC. A —ERHPEIKILZ AT
Information about subsidiaries NG =
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRR EEWMBARZFEET ¢
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT EAE
and business share capital EREDL Principal
Name MR ERITZER Direct Indirect activities
£ BRREEMR R &N HiE B FTEEK
Wanda Properties BVI US$180,000,001 51% — Investment
Investment Limited holding
BEBXRKREBRAF RERLES 180,000,001 ZE7T REFERL
Wanda Commercial Hong Kong HK$1,400,400,001 — 51% Investment
Properties Investment holding
Limited
EEREME a5 1,400,400,001 & 7T TEER
KEBRAA
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1.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

NAREEER @)

D RE R ()

ARFEEHBRAZFBOT ()

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T EAE
and business share capital EREDL Principal
Name ML ERTEER Direct Indirect activities
=18 B REEME = AR A HiE B FTEEWR
Guilin Gaoxin Wanda PRC US$180,000,000 — 51% Property
Plaza Co., Ltd.* (note i) leasing
EMENEERS H Y 180,000,000 27T MEER
BRAR (D
Wanda Americas Real Hong Kong $1 60% = Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Americas RE”)
BRI E e 17T KA
REBR QT
(I&ERNE])
Wanda Chicago United States of US$212,200,633 — 60% Investment
Real Estate LLC America (“USA”) holding
EHERE FE 212,200,633 & 7T REFERL
([%=E])
Wanda Hotel Management Hong Kong US$H 100% = Investment
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited holding
BEREEE(BB)ARAA B 13E7T TEER
Wanda Hotel Management PRC US$10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (note i) management
BEREEE(8)ARAR H Y 10,000,000 7T BEER

(BfRED
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIR&EEE&ER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARREBWBARZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT EAE
and business share capital EREIL Principal
Name Rl oAV CRTLER Direct Indirect activities
=t BRREEME AR A HiE D3 FEEK
Horgos Wanda Engineering PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Construction Management consulting
Consulting Company Limited*
ERRNTBEIRERER # AR#10,000,000 7T FESERER
HAARRQTA
Wanda Engineering Management PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Consulting Co. Limited* consulting
BETREEEAANBERAT t AR # 50,000,000 7T AR
Wanda Moment Shanghai PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.” operation
LERPEREEREEE H A 10,000,000 7T AR & E
BRAF]
Wanda Moment Nanchang PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.” operation
HAESEXEREEBEARAA # AE#10,000,000 7T BJEEE
Wanda Moment Ningbo PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.” operation
EREHERSENEERE H A% 10,000,000 7T BE &8
BRAF]
Wanda Jin Wuxi International Hotel PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Co., Ltd. * Operation
mEERERRREARAR H AR 10,000,000 7T B 5 &8
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIR&EEE&ER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARREBWBARZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered KA T EL
and business share capital ERES Principal
Name ML CRTLER Direct  Indirect activities
=% BRREEMR AR A Hiz DiEE3 FEEK
Wanda Moment Changzhi PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd. * Operation
REBEZEREEEARAT A Y AR #10,000,000 7T BE &8
Shanghai Wantao PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Sale of
Trading Co., Ltd.* goods
EEEAmERR AR H Y AR #10,000,000 7T EmiHE
Xiamen Wandefu PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Sale of
Catering Management goods
Co., Ltd.*
EFEEEERERER AR A Y AR #10,000,000 7T EmiHE
Beijing Jingdefu Catering PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd * H AR # 10,000,000 7T B

ERBREREREEER AT

Baise Wandefu Catering PRC RMB5,000,000 — 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. *

BEERRERERARAR a3 AR ¥ 5,000,000 7T B

Taizhou Jingdefu Catering PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. * =

FMNBEEEREREARAR mE  ARM5,000,0007 b e

* For identification purpose only
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established
under PRC law.

The above table lists of the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“$°000”) except when otherwise indicated.

142 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited

Annual Report 2021

1.

NAREEER @)

MELRER &)
B -

BERRRBEHBEIARK I B

BEERR - LRAAXRFMBARZFIX
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

2.1

MR ELYE (18)
mAERE

Bz —H%+-_A=+—Hit
FE @ REVERREBEADFT R
HffB AR (MBAEIAE®]) 2
BISHE - B AR AARARAE
B EEEHNER (REEEE
) EALEMSEFKREAD
AIFTEA B0 FRimAS BB =E
BER - BB NEBEEITERE
77 (BN 62 B IR BF AL S S AR 1%
ENREBEEMIREET) M
EHRLIRES - A ASEEIETIZ
WIRE QT °

EARNRIWAREZKFERREE I
BERBARZERZRIIALUNES
o ARESELEMAERBEERER
B UFHEER T HRERE AT
BBEHIE - B

(@) ERWERAZEMZERE
FAEZRNEHON LT

b WEMAE A LB &R
B R

© AEENRERMBERSE
o

B AR 2 B MmR Ty E AR R
MR & HRERA — Bz @5t
K3 - MB AR 2 RENAEE
HUSEGIRE AR E EZE R
IEE RIS AR ©

B M EMEEWRAZ ZRTREB
MAEE 2 &R RER ANIEZER
e AR S EEIHE s
HIR B AL A RS o ELANES B Pk Sgnak
B HBRZAMASEANRER
EREE - WA B
SREBMGAARR 2SN 1

HEEERREERAT 143
—E-—FEH



Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase2

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16
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2.1
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mEEEE)

= E N B R A bl = (B i
HEh 2 — @z A EHREE) - K
SESENMEERSERRERE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect financial
reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt
with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9
to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief
to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated
as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable users
of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2 B BERREEZEE (&)

(Continued)

(b)  Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends b) R-ZBE-_—FMABRMGZE
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees B R E LR E 165 (18
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for 51 AR) B E E AR COVID-19
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of BIEEEEREANHESR
the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, REAAEEERETEED
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions FEAARBOAITEE R E
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only ER12M@A - Bt - AJ174#E
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, B AERRERBERNK
provided the other conditions for applying the practical BREFERANR_T_=
expedient are met. The amendment is effective FRNA=ZTHHZAEBE
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or NEIEMESRER RS
after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially AFARITRET ENEM
applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment MR o ZIEFTRN T =_—4F
to the opening balance of retained profits at the MA—Bs 2 &RENFE
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier BB AR - T & X ER
application is permitted. ZEEFCEMNRFTTHER

FEBNER & 5t HA [ 5 4 s FE R
SRE BNV ERFE
AZIERTSLRTIRAIIEA o

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 AEEER=_ZT=—F—AH

January 2021. However, the Group has not received — HIRAI RPN ZIEET A -

covid-19-related rent concessions and plans to apply AT AR RES A

the practical expedient when it becomes applicable COVID-19 {EBH 2%

within the allowed period of application. WErEIEARTHRFHARA
XA {THEE 5% AR
RZAE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards 3R &5 2 A

The Group has not applied the following new and revised REEWRRZET BT ER

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in PATR B AR B M R A 2 FTRT A

these financial statements. BRI BB S MwE LR -

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual B0 SR FEHE AR
HKFRS 3 Framework' EREACHES)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BibE R REEZHARE
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and F105%RkEbE REFEERE]
HKAS 28 (2011) its Associate or Joint Venture® SHERIE 285 ZEHEELE

(Z2—%) HFE
(B3T%)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BbE s FEEH?
F175H

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®® B0 KSR VS A=y
EAVEACHEY)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities BEHEE 1R VBT S

as Current or Non-current2# (B3T%) -fiokr ke

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting RRGHENE1RR S HEA
and HKFRS Practice Policies? AEMBHREENEE  AE
Statement 2 DEE2H(BTE)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BAGHRERESH Bifaste

Estimates? (B3TX) Vi
Amendments to HKAS 12  Deferred Tax related to Assets REEAE 125 HE-XGEL
and Liabilities arising from (B3T%) MAERBE
a Single Transaction? REMEL
g2
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: BAGHERE 165 hE  BER
Proceeds before Intended (B3TX) XHE TR
Use' bedLi)i
HE
Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of BBQTRAE T EHE - BT
Fulfiling a Contract' CHES) BRETA

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, B BHSES BANBmEE

HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative —F-)14%F F15 - FA
Examples accompanying ZE-FEEH BmE s
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41" ERAE ELLAY Y —

B e
6 R
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BLAETTHIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)

CEMEERER BB
T 28 ()

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 253
Reporting Standards (Continueqd)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before
1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is
subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end
of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions
at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B
Reporting Standards (Continued) B EZER ()

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B
Reporting Standards (Continued) B EZER ()
Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial ARG EAFE 125 (BRI A) f5/)

recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 FESHERHE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued) AREBEEE#E
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured B R A BERRNI KRR EX
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised BENEERBEDEREAAE
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based B EEEms BEANXEESH
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value ABBURATARBEERSHE

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F—H — HERHBEREEX
in active markets for identical assets or BERERTIS
liabilities BB (R KA

=)

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which FH — ERHEAAEE
the lowest level input that is significant to AEMEEEKR
the fair value measurement is observable, BRI ER S (B #E sk
either directly or indirectly i) ZEERmA

e ColEYEWapra

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which F=H — ERHEAAEE
the lowest level input that is significant to AEMEEEKR
the fair value measurement is unobservable CORNEIR: SRS L

BWAZ2HHME
(EDap7A

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial FURA 1 EE N AR B 5 3R R R

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines MEEMBEMS @ AEBBEAR

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the EWMERREHTEDE(ERY
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest AABEFEREMS BEANK
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as REBAZ2B) BESREETA

a whole) at the end of each reporting period. LR o
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. HmEEEREFTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)
24 TESTHHREBE®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FERmEEREE)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REMERR - HHEEEETR
period as to whether there is any indication that previously BTRZAERAREREEIE T
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may GFHEAIgEE R o WIFEZED
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable % AR EISREE T AHET - WA
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment LATETE B E R AT Bl @ BRI (A ET
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there B - ERIERNEE (BB
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the BRON)BEBES A RE - HEZH
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount ENMSHBRBBEEEENBETFEL
higher than the carrying amount that would have been RBEERBEESEM T AEENER
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no FSRE (FBREMITE H#E) - %
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. BB ES1E BB [ A E A BRI ET AR
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the =K o

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — AR R BN R B A R - (R
Y-
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @ BARE—ALTHZALR
person’s family and that person BRZAT
()  has control or joint control over the Group; ()  FEdlek R T A E
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEHEEAFZE
7K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AEEEHAEEEA
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; AIZEEEEAER
or B
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BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(

) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

I3 - BERRBURITE

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

FRAEZTRRIASN - W% ~ BB KRR
IR AR RETHT & AR (E &S

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as
follows:

ME- - BERKBUARIFTE
(%)

FrE TR EEET A ERF N ELR
EMEEEYE - BEMREEE Z
RAZERERE - RUtMEMBZ
EETRERAERFRMOT

Useful lives Residual values

A A H RE

Leasehold improvements HEMEERE Over shorter of the lease Nil
terms and economic life

MREAR A S < BOG B i

Furniture, fixtures and equipment RiFh - HE KB 3-10 years 0-10%
3E10F

Motor vehicles B 5 years 0-10%
5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

W9 - BEMRERE 2 &80
BTRAAEREH - RIBREER 2
AR B R D 2 IR ERE AL -
&80 K IEE R I E - BE -
AERFMRITEEE D EREH
BFEEFER TR - WIERE
(as@Em) -

WE - BENMRBEE (BEIS
ERBNEFRERE D) REEHXTE
HIN S (A (E Ak EEBUR R
MR AL I RERR » MR IERERR R
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BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME- - BERZBEBURTE
(Continued) (&)
Construction in progress represents renovation works in FREIREETHINREIERHA
progress and software under development and is stated at BT - AR TR E S
cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. BEVBETFHRITE - KAZER
Cost mainly comprises the direct costs of construction and FREHNNEEEREN A RER
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds {EBIBREEFREE KRR « EET
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is BRTHHERAR - HEFHSE
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and EWE  BERZERELEED
equipment or intangible assets when completed and ready BEHER c MAFANEREES
for use. Intangible assets that is not yet available for use are BEEITRER °

assessed for impairment annually.

Investment properties REMZ

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held KREMERFERDMEAS WA
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather K/SREREGE(MIERBREER
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services HEBERIRBHITHER) - 5k
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary FHEEBBEPLE T RIE
course of business. Such properties are measured initially F2Em o ZEWMEDNB KK
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial (BERSGHA)ETE - VIR HER
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, % BEYHEERAABERY R
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting R BAR A TN ©

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of KREMELARLEBEZEBMEAZ
investment properties are included in the statement of profit B EE - stAMEASE 2B
or loss in the year in which they arise. K °

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an WEES R BB E 2 (BRI
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit RIERHEFE 2B RP T U
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal. MR o
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BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its
sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as
held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated
or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Software

Purchased software are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
component(s) and to account for the lease component
and the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single
lease component.
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BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Office 2 to 6 years
Hotel buildings 15 10 20 years
Warehouses 1to 2 years
Machinery 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

2.
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24 FEESTHRBE B

HE (&)

REBEEREAA (&)

(a)

EEEE

EREEENHERSRA B
(BIiAREER HER A )
HER o (EREEERKAR
B REHTE REMBER
BAtE - YEREHTE
MERRFL AR - EHA%E
BEXABRECHERAEER
B - CELVBREEREX
AR Fs B HIS 2 ATEH
Z B E A OB AE ] 2 YRR
SRR EREEENHEMR
EHRER A ERERZE
ROEITEWMT ¢

MWAR 2E B4
BEEF 15 204F
B 1826
3 2E3F

HEEEEZAAENEY
BREEBBEEAEE KA
REREEIEERE 21T - A
SEMZEE G AER
FHEERE -

BEEERRARAT 16
—E-—FEH



Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE#E)

Group as a lessee (Continued) KEEEAATA (&)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately
from other liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of offices,
warehouses and staff dormitory (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office, office
equipment and plant that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its

leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as

subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FTEETHBEBZE®)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RERHMEMEE (&)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) B G2 2 A E (B

TA)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently HEEKATENSREELREE
measured using the effective interest method and are subject RERMEZEE - WAEZH
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the BFE - ZEERIEER - BFT5k
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, BER - s MEERERRTE
modified or impaired. R o

U

t
N
S

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ABEFFABRR S 2 HEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried BARBEFAEBGZRZEREE

in the statement of financial position at fair value with net BAABERABARARSIE -

changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or MAREBEEESFENBEERPE

loss. R o

Derecognition of financial assets RIEIREHMEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial SHEE(KMMER  (FAEME

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily EdEUemEEMAR 2 —#0)

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated FEETIBERKIERR(AIER

statement of financial position) when: SEMERE MERARER) ¢

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have e WREEWERESRE 2R
expired; or BEw ¢ 3

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash e AEECHEHFANEEKR
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation ReREZEF  HERE
to pay the received cash flows in full without material (881 | RHAERME - 128
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” BERERMNEBERT  #HE
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred WHBR e REZEHNTE=
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 7 ReAEEEREHEEE
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained BRI R KB - =k
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but (o) NEE W EE ENIREE
has transferred control of the assets. EZBRED R KB -

BEEREE TR -
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBEB)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that
do not contain a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and interest-bearing
loans from an intermediate holding company.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued) Frig#i (&)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary FEHTEA B FATA R B
differences, except: MEEE T AR WA BRI -
e when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill o RETEEABREBSH
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a ZRSEEEEXV LR
transaction that is not a business combination and, EEXBEAEHZRAF
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the ok FE R B v F sk B 1R A 2
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and BMELZELEHIEAS
X
e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated o HHERMBATRAEERHE
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, ZIGE NS 2 AR R
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary ZREME - EMEET R
differences can be controlled and it is probable that ERRHEA TES - BE
the temporary differences will not reverse in the FriEZ R ge g rR A &%
foreseeable future. BB BIVERR

BEEERRARAT 1
—E-—EEH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition W TR
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFE IRz
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when REBFA YN ERE R RE
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers THIEREY B K P RIRAE R AR S
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the EEERZEE RS REmAE
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or BESZRESERR
services.
When the consideration in a contract includes a variable EAORERSAESER - RE
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which -l \'J?§$%l*ﬁ_%?¢tﬁ§ﬁ$ﬁy
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the Emo GBI R ESREMET °
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration AIEREESNFABRETITSL
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until R BEEREHEIERERBNTE
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in TE BB R IERR AR DR R AT W e
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not SRR EAEFTAME
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable &M o

consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which EEHBERRATFERE IR
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing BAREFPIRHEBE—FERNREF
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more HEBE K DR - Wi E A
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of FIREE  WIRAEFEERFR
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate BHIFIAR 2 B RE R 5 R
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction TR EEITING - EEHNBEA
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. REERMBB - FERUBR
When the contract contains a financing component which RIRLE K D - BIRE AR
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for HBERERNEEZAENGHE
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract BAEENFIESSH - MBEFPHRK
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract HABE RS 7GR B i Sk AR T < R AU HARR
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract B—FIUATHELME @ RES
where the period between the payment by the customer and B R E LR E1SFEAITER
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year % REBRISHEABEK
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects DHREEITHE

of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)

Hotel management services

Hotel management services mainly include the
following:

The day-to-day management services, and the
different kinds of management service fees are
generally calculated as certain percentages of the total
revenues, room revenue or operation profit of those
hotels under management. Such management service
fees are due and payable on a monthly basis as
services are provided and revenue is recognised over
time as services are rendered.

Central reservation system usage fees, other system
maintenance and other support fees are typically
billed and collected monthly along with the base
management service fees mentioned above, and
revenue is generally recognised over time as services
are provided.

Pre-opening services, which include providing services
(e.g., installing IT information systems, providing
standardisation hotel management system and central
reservation system, providing access to purchase
platform, helping to obtain operational qualification,
and helping to recruit and train employees) to the hotel
owners to assist in preparing for the hotel opening.
These fees are typically collected upfront and are
recognised as revenue over the whole management
contract period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

Hotel design and construction management services

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Hotel operation income

Revenue from room sales and other ancillary guest
services is recognised over time on a daily basis, and
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to customers.

Loyalty program management service fee

Revenue from the loyalty program management service
fee is generated from the services provided in relation
to the loyalty program. The program reward members
with points for each stay at the hotels or certain other
consumption at the hotels, which are then redeemable
for free hotel nights and other goods and services.
The Group defers the cash amount received from
participating hotels as the future redemption obligation,
and such points that will eventually be redeemed as
revenue when they are used or on the expiry date.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension schemes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. HmEEEREFTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)
24 TESTHHREBE®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies ShES
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong ZEVTEMERTIARR R 2 e

%
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each EWREEATEY - AEEANEE
L =
[EE B

entity in the Group determines its own functional currency BETHAR ZIEEY  mEE
and items included in the financial statements of each BEET AW TSR N2 I8 B THAZY)

A Dk

anp
ﬂ]]

entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign PEMEHE o ZF%@WE%EWEE%”
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group ZHINER SIFIREZARR

HE R 2 e B T K508 o J«M7|\
MitEc BB EERBENRRE
RN EHIERRE - AE
BMEEMIEE TEL 2 Z5E1INIE
IR NFER ©

are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

REESMESKIEEMES 2=

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

190 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

BN BaRAER - EEEFER
R ARNEEBINER FREZ—
#o 2z ERIHEB RN - LEEHKIR
BREMEZHKRARNER  BEER
,\*fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ DEEREREH
EEMFRERL - ZFEHIRAE
ZER ZREL 2 HIAR X MR
IRARRSIAE M EEYA



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBHEHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

2.

192

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the
fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of

contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g. construction of significant leasehold improvements to
the leased asset).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BERSTHHER MA@
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) st THEEM (8)
Fair value of investment properties REMEZAAEE

BB R IR R T I5 2 HITERA
"L AEEGERKE TRKRZ

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar

properties, the Group considers information from a variety of

sources, including:

(@)

current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2021 was $1,563,122,000 (2020: $1,570,800,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement,

are stated in note 16 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and

contract assets

Management evaluates the credit risk characteristics of individual
trade receivables and contract assets when its credit risk identified
deteriorated significantly, otherwise the Group uses a provision
matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
collectively. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
20 and note 21 to the financial statements, respectively.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A =AM - HLABITIIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BREFHER MG @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgement based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related
policies are required in determining the CIT provision to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will have an impact
on the CIT expense and CIT provisions in the period in which the
differences are realised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details are given in note 19
to the financial statements.
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4.

198

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group’s operating businesses
are structured and managed separately according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are subject
to risks and returns different from those of the other operating
segments. The Group has three reportable operating segments
and particulars of the Group’s reportable operating segments are
summarised as follows:

(@ hotel operation and management services;
(b)  hotel design and construction management services; and

(c) leasing of investment properties held by the Group for long-
term investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is measured by adjusted profit before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit before tax from continuing
operations is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax from continuing operations except that non-lease-
related finance costs, other income and gains, net as well as
corporate and other unallocated expense are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, income tax
recoverable, cash and cash equivalents and corporate and other

unallocated assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, loans from an
intermediate holding company, income tax payables and corporate
and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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BAFE R AR MY RE

BB TTHIR)

s .
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BETHER =
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z_—+=-HA=+—H
LEFE
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management  management property
services services leasing Total
EER
EEEER RER REME
EERYE ERRK HE @it
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Segment revenue: AHUE
Sales to external customers HETINPEF 565,478 200,916 107,265 873,659
Intersegment sales AEEEE - 3 - 34
565,478 201,257 107,265 874,000
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment sales HEATEES (341)
Revenue from continuing operations FELLEBYA 873,659
Segment profit AWRF 167,470 38,863 30,542 236,875
Reconciliation: i -
Other income and gains, net (note 6) E A Rz - 558 (i e) 218,189
Finance costs (other than interest RENAK (HERBFISHIM)
on lease liabilties) (note 8) (MizE8) (34,824)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses RAREMADERT (21,880)
Profit before tax from continuing operations SELEEE ZBHARR 398,360
Segment assets AHEE 652,680 175,539 1,596,930 2,425,149
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARREMAPEEE 4,776,146
Total assets EEE 7,201,295
Segment liabilities FHEE 965,994 152,561 57,496 1,176,051
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ARAREMADEERE 2,178,145
Total liabiliies HBafE 3,354,196

BEBERRERAA 19
B8R
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Pt .
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER @)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hithp BE R
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-_—F+=-A=t+—H
LEFE
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management management property
services services leasing Total
EERE
BEEER RER RENE
BRRK ERRK HE @it
$000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr T T
Impairment loss recognised in the statement ERBREERZ
of profit or loss, net: (note 6) HEEE 38 (MiEe)
— Segment assets — HHEE (1,246) 67,618 4 66,376
— Unallocated assets — ROREE 19,361
85,737
Depreciation and amortisation (note 7) WEREH (x7)
— Segment assets — PHEE 41,465 291 % 41,850
— Unallocated assets — KR AE 1,797
43,647
Capital expenditure® BAY
— Segment assets —DEEE 29,911 575 - 30,486
— Unallocated assets — KHEEE 6
30,492

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions of intangible assets,

property, plant and equipment, construction in progress and

leasehold improvements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIER #)

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z2-FF+=-A=+—H

LFEE
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management management property
services services leasing Total
ARG
BEEER RER REWZ
ERRS EERG HE @it
$000 $000 $000 $:000
T T T A
Segment revenue: AHUE
Sales to external customers HETINER 378,044 178,722 103,653 655,419
Intersegment sales PEBEE — 7,346 - 7,346
378,044 181,068 103,653 662,765
Reconciliation: % -
Elimination of intersegment sales A FEEE (7,346)
Revenue from continuing operations FELLEBYA 655,419
Segment profit AR 92,958 51,102 53,062 197,122
Reconciliation: % -
Other income and gains, net (note 6) E A Rz - 558 (i e) 55,420
Finance costs (other than interest REMAS (BEREFISRMN)
on lease liabilties) (note 8) (Ftzx8) (92,243)
Corporate and other unallocated expense RAREMADERT (24,791)
Profit before tax from continuing operations RIS E B BT ATER 135,508
Segment assets AHEE 697,939 260,812 1,592,978 2,551,729
Reconciliation: % -
Corporate and other unallocated assets AAREMADIREE 4,017,025
Total assets BEE 6,568,754
Segment liabilities AHaE 869,783 84,671 87,585 1,042,039
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RARAMARARAE
Total liabilities ek
BERERRERAA

B —FEH
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oy aNkvi e~
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BEDEER @)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hithp BE R
Year ended 31 December 2020 222+ -A=+—H
LEFE
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management management property
services services leasing Total
NilEey
BEEER RER RAME
EERS EER% HE o
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Impairment loss recognised in the statement ERBREERZ
of profit or loss, net: (note 6) HEEE 38 (MiEe)
— Segment assets —HHEE 30,872 (6,067) (914) 23,891
— Unallocated assets —KHEEE -
23,891
Depreciation (note 7) & (i)
— Segment assets — PHEE 36,015 339 91 36,445
— Unallocated assets — xPREE 1,784
38,229
Capital expenditure® BAY
— Segment assets — PHEE 52,348 195 8 52,551
— Unallocated assets — KHEEE 7
52,558
* Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and * BATLBIEREYE - BEKREME
equipment, construction in progress and leasehold improvements. FREIBRESYERE -

202 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BEDEER @)
(Continued)
Geographical information EE R
The following table sets out information about the geographical TREIEBONEEERBINBER 2
locations of () the Group’s revenue of continuing operations from RELEEBRER AN EEFELSE
external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets of XB2ERBDEE(TBEEELEHIEE
continuing operations (excluding deferred tax assets) (“specified E)([EEHRBEE]) cHIBMNEE
non-current assets”). The geographical location of revenue from Ko RAIINBE S 2 Was 2 HIBALE TH
external customers is based on the locations at which the services 1R IR AT IR (i AR 75 s HH & W 5 2 AR AE b i
were provided or the properties were leased. The geographical EoHEFNBEEIHBMERE
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the EZERNE (RETEEMS) RES
physical locations of the assets, in the case of fixed assets, and fid 2 @I E o

the locations of the operations to which they are allocated.

Segment revenue Specified
from external customers non-current assets
REMBEFZ

2R EEFRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —_T-THF ZB--F —ZZ-ITHF
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
Fr T Fx F7T

The PRC HE(BEEE)

(including Hong Kong) 873,659 655,419 3,809,301 3,723,104

HEEERRERAT 20
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REE A\ IR
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BEDEER @)
(Continued)
Information about major customers BREFEREFZER
During the year, the Group made sales to certain groups of major FA - AEBERETEEEFAR (B
customers, which are known to be under common control, the SEEPES]) EITHE  REZERPH
revenue from which individually contributed to more than 10% of W ERME AL BB UKz 8 10% © D AT
the Group’s total revenue. The analysis is as follows: LU
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Customer A ZFPA 272,858 204,338
Customer B =FB 167,984 113,240
Customer C ®FC 48,048 71,829
488,890 389,407
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b S8 #ERIN + LB TIIR)

5. REVENUE 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WEDTAT
2021 2020
—E--F —E-THF
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Revenue from contracts KEFEFEAZ Wi
with customers
Hotel management services B IS B IR RS 423,392 304,658
Hotel design and construction BIERF KR EERY
management services 200,916 173,722
Hotel operation income BB 142,086 73,386
766,394 551,766
Revenue from other sources Bz W
Gross rental income REFEMELEHE
from investment properties 2SN LREE
operating leases
Variable rent FEEE 6,599 2,712
Base rent EXHe 100,666 100,941
107,265 103,653
873,659 655,419

BERERRERAA
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(i)

5. W&

Disaggregated revenue information

() WEDFER

2021 2020
—B-—F —EFTF
$°000 $000
Ft T+
Recognised at a point in time AR {EIBF E BE R
Hotel operation income from REEMEE - RIEEHRRS
sales of goods, catering services R E M2 B JE & B A
and others 77,806 37,944
Recognised over time R—BEERER
Hotel operation income from rooms 2R B &&= /E 2 ERA 64,280 35,442
Hotel management services BIE B IRARTS 423,392 304,658
Hotel design and construction G R ET R B AR
management services 200,916 173,722
Revenue from contracts REEFEHNZ W
with customers 766,394 551,766

The following table shows the amounts of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that were included

TREHRAFHEREFTARERNAE
HWEBRkBEBEREEKBNE TR

in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting R EHERW RS -
period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied
in previous periods:
2021 2020
—EC—F —ET-FTF
$°000 $000
Fr F7
Revenue recognised that was SFAmSHUzENAaEZ
included in contract liabilities ERRNESEE
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sale of goods EmiEE 285 0,983
Loyalty programme management BET BB IR ARTE
services 15,343 12,297
Hotel management services BIEERRE 12,104 6,154
Hotel design and construction BB RN E RS
management services 5,626 201
Others Hith 363 57
33,721 28,692
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5. Y&

BHEE

(ii) Performance obligations (i)

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Hotel management services, hotel design and construction

management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 90 days
from the date of billing.

Hotel operation income

The performance obligation is satisfied as services are
rendered or goods are delivered and payment is generally
received in advance.

Loyalty programme managements services

The performance obligation is satisfied as members’ points
are used or expired, and the payment from hotels who
participated in the loyalty program is received in advance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
of hotel design and construction management services as at
31 December are as follows:

BRAKERORME 2 ERBLAL
T

BEEER
REERE

BIERET R 2

BN RHARE R —RNER A
FEET N+ B AZIENFR - ELELD
BEER—EBRESEAREX -
HEEBERA
HRERERBHERNER R
RRIASEUERFUR - HLEA B (5
BepEt S EE RS
BHREEHED ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁl
RS BBt 8 2B 5 2 B AR
IEAEEREK -

WH=A=+—8  HSREEER
SREREERY 2 H T ROER
(REEERRHHREER) 225
RS BT :

2021 2020

—EC—F —E-FF

$°000 $'000

Fr T

Amounts expected to be recognised  FE B IGHER AU S
as revenue: sz I

Within one year —FR 155,529 193,949

After one year BiE—F 117,103 1577,"3
272,632 SOy

EREERRARAT 20
B —FEH




Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HEftWARWE @ F5E
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net from REBREBFELEEB 2 HMRAR
continuing operations is as follows: Was - SFEATWT -

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
Notes $’000 $’000
BisE Fr T
Bank interest income ERITHBHA 52,735 16,691
Interest income on R B UGRIA 2 FI 2 A
long-term receivable 111,239 10,690
Other interest income from BARBEFABRE
financial assets at fair value Z e B E 2 EMFSWA
through profit or loss 3,787 13,133
Exchange (loss)/gain, net X (E518) W - F5 (12,046) 20,999
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment & &t & KEE CRE),/
of financial and contract BERE - FEE
assets, net
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EIWGFIARE 20 (59,828) (23,389)
Reversal of impairment o th JE U R IRR B 4 Bl
of other receivables 22(b) 9 800
Impairment of contract assets BREERE 21 (6,557) (1,302
Impairment of long-term receivable = EAFEU FIEREIE 22(c) (19,361) =
Other income due to breach of R i £ EE A 2 B A
contracts by customers 142,535 14,409
Others Hi 5,676 3,389
218,189 55,420
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 7. FEKEEB 2BRHAR
OPERATIONS A
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived REEFELEER 2 BRTADR R T
at after charging: BT TEB BER :
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
Notes $°000 $'000
{iFsa Fr T
Cost of goods sold B &R mAA 66,122 30,408
Cost of services provided Pt AR 7% 2 B AR 319,267 221,998
Direct operating expenses RS 2 IREME
(including repairs and EEZEFELERY
maintenance) arising on (BREEERRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 26,344 11,831
411,733 264,237
Depreciation of property, plant M - BB RRETE
and equipment 10,406 8,946
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ REEEFE 32,922 29,283
Amortisation of intangible assets LA B #55 18 319 =
Lease payments not included in FrEMERERITETA
the measurement of ZHERHK
lease liabilities 17(c) 7,084 7,835
Decrease in fair value of WEMEABERD
investment properties 16 53,049 34,538
Auditor’s remuneration IZE A &
— Annual audit services — FEZBIRSS 1,145 1,095
— Non-audit services — IR 861 1,164
Employee benefit expense EERAMZ (TR
(excluding directors’ EEHM)
remuneration)
— Salaries, wages and —¥He  TEREMEFR
other benefits 109,414 93,915
— Contributions to defined — RIEREHFRAG 2
contribution retirement plans YEH Z itk 4,474 932

113,888

BEBERRERAA 20
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RLE A
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs from continuing REBFELEEB 2BERAD T
operations is as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
$’000 $000
F T
Interest on loans from an —REFEER AR ERFE
intermediate holding company 34,824 92,243
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE (FiE170)
(note 17(b)) 19,788 19,649
54,612 111,892
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9. EEH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FRRE LR EEERRMEDE
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong 383(1)@) * (b) * (©) B (M1& K= (#5E
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EEH=ER) ROIB 2 BER s ESH
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: B0 -
2021 2020
—E-—F —Z=TF
$°000 $000
F Tt
Fees we 807 759
Other emoluments: Hii<e -
Salaries, allowances and e R REYEF
benefits in kind 10,146 9,519
Discretionary bonuses FIETEAT 2,515 3,503
Pension scheme contributions RIS EH B 157 96
13,625 13,877
BEAERRARAA
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continved) 9. EEHM )
Directors’ remuneration is as follows: EZEHMOT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2R Bfe
e ENEA MERA BN st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
2021 —T-—-F
Chairman and IRRHTES
executive director:

I

Mr. Ning Qifeng FELE - 10,146 2,515 157 12,818

Independent non-executive  BMIFHITEE :

directors:

Mr. He Zhiping AEELEE 269 - - - 269
Dr. Chen Yan Breig+ 269 - - - 269
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng BOREEL 269 - - - 269

Non-executive directors: FATES:

Mr. Ding Benxi THRGEE - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Lin RARLE - - - - -
Mr. Han Xu FMEE - - - - -

807 10,146 2,515 157 13,625
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEFHM =)
Directors’ remuneration is as follows (Continued): BEEHFHT (&) -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2R Rike
e EWEF [l SRR St
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T Tt Tt T
2020 —E-TF
Chairman and IRRIFUTES:
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TABESE - - - - -
Executive director: HIES:
Mr. Ning Qifeng BERIELE - 9,519 3,503 9 13,118

Independent non-executive B FFHITEE

directors:

Mr. He Zhiping WEFEE 253 - - - 253

Dr. Chen Yan FReE L 253 - - - 253

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng nE S, 253 - - - 253
Non-executive directors: FHTEE

Mr. Zhang Lin RARLE - = = = =

Mr. Han Xu [ i - - - - -

759 9,519 3,503 96 13,877
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hEB=#HES

hEREHER  Hh—2RE% (=%
—TE —RER) EFMEFBREN L
X9 - £ NRUEBRSHIFES
BE(CZ2_ZF : ORRSFFERER
8) 2 HBE BT

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of
them is a director (2020: one director), whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining four non-director highest paid employees (2020:
four non-director highest paid employees) are as follows:

2021 2020
—EC-—F T -THF
$°000 $000
Fx Tt

Salaries, allowances and e R EBYES
benefits in kind 14,884 13,610
Performance related bonuses FIFHRTEAT 2,964 4,164
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIRR 440 271
18,288 18,045

BEFHEERFEETRABES Y
HEN U T 0 -

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

Number of employees

BE A
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 JT £ 3,500,000 7T 1 1
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 3,500,001 JT £ 4,000,000 7T 1 1
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001 yt £ 4,500,000 7T 1 1
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 yt £ 5,000,000 7T - —
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000 5,000,001 JT £ 5,500,000 7T - —
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000 6,000,001 7t 2 6,500,000 7T - 1
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 6,500,001 yt £ 7,000,000 T 1 —
4 4
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/ N7
11. INCOME TAX 1. Fri5H
2021 2020
—E=-F —BFF
$’000 $000
Frx T
Current tax BIEABE 18
Corporate Income Tax (note (iii)) 1R ZEFTAS A0 (B & Gil))
— Charge for the year — RN FERX 134,661 65,039
— Overprovision in prior years — BTFEEERE (5,562) —
129,099 65,039
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal of TRt ER 2 EERER
temporary differences:
— Revaluation of properties — MEER (6,989) (2,639)
— Effect of HKFRS 16 — BB REERE16R T E (5,767) (5,858)
— Effect of withholding tax at 5% — ¥ ANEEF FEHE QA
on the distributable profits of AT R MU 5%
the Group’s PRC subsidiary ENR e 42,964 =
— Others — Hfth (19,643) (17,133)
10,565 (25,630)
Total tax expense for the FBREEB 2 A FENIR
year from continuing < #E 58
operations 139,664 39,409
Total income tax expense RERPEHHR E5E
for the year 139,664 39,409
BEERERRBRAH
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

BABTTIIR)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the BVI, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda and the BVI.

Except for the income tax provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 28.505% (2020: 28.505%) on the assessable profits for Wanda
Chicago Real Estate LLC, a subsidiary of the Company registered
in the USA, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax or overseas
corporate income tax has been made as the Group did not have
assessable profits in Hong Kong or overseas for the year.

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been made at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the assessable profits of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China, except for the subsidiaries
of the Company established in Horgos, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
region, which enjoy PRC corporate income tax exemptions in
accordance with the relevant tax rules. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at

the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and

the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates

(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
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G

)

(i)

(i)

BARBRETENB AR MK

BREARERABRELESHRRE
o AEERBRERKBRLZESH
IR PRS-

KRR RITER B 2 [ B A 7] Wanda
Chicago Real Estate LLC 1R 1% & 3R ¢
BB A ST X 28.506% (ZF =
T4 1 28.505%) IREFSFIIN - WE
HBEBAEBSOEIME RSB
% REAREERAFEEESIE
SN FE R B A o

EEMEH (TEEMSHRD

PR EMER 2 BEDREBEAEER
BN B A B 2 EREOE Tl E
SR E5%(—F —TF : 25%)
B - HERFBR TR AR ER R
BRI Z AR R B A TIBRSN - HARIEAR
FRERRZE PR EMERAE -
HAbi @ 7 FE RS F iR N EE 4
EBFERR 2 R RTHE -

BEE 2R TE W R BB MR AR
Mz BH 8B ERBERR R E 2B
ERZHRIERRE (BVAENX) &
EREREZHRAT ¢
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. 5 )

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Profit before tax from SEICEETS 2
continuing operations BR AR Bl 398,360 135,508
Profit before tax from the RIEREEE 2
discontinued operation BREE AT 3 - 134,057
398,360 269,565
National tax calculated at rates RERANBERBEER 2
applicable to profits in the tax A2 AT E 2 B
jurisdictions concerned 105,166 52,018
Adjustments in respect of current @ 1E HARI BNEATL 18 7 A%
tax of previous periods (5,562) —
Income not subject to tax BRI 2 WA (8,026) (36,014)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 S 13,301 23,521
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ BIBEBE 2,551 4,512
Effect of withholding tax at 5% HAREEFRBEEA R
on the distributable profits of AT R & F UL 5%
the Group’s PRC subsidiary B2 42,964 =
Tax losses utilised from B A B A BIIEEE
previous periods (10,730) (4,628)
Tax expense at the Group’s EREENERREATER
effective rate FRIBFH Y 139,664 39,409
Tax expense from continuing RERBERGE 2 BECEER 2
operations at the effective rate RIBA S 139,664 39,409

BERERRERAA
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BABTTIIR)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. R IEERE TS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, management was in

active discussions with potential buyers for the disposal of the

Company’s interest in Parcel C LLC (“Parcel C”), a subsidiary

of the Company which held a property under construction in

Chicago, USA. Since then, Parcel C has been classified as a

disposal company held for sale and as a discontinued operation.

The disposal of Parcel C was completed on 24 November 2020.

(@ The results for the period up to the date of disposal are

HE-_ZT—h&F+-_A=+—BL*F
E - EEED s HE AR TR Parcel C
LLC([Parcel Cl * KRR ZHBAR] -
EEBEZNTFRHE —BHEERYE) 2
@ BV B RAEMRE R o Bt - Parcel C
ENBERFIELE CHE QAR RKIELE
EE oParcel CXHEERZEF
FH+—A=+MHAZEKX -

(@) EBHEEHERHZHRZEEZ7IM

presented below: Nk
2020
—ETF
$000
Fit
Other revenue H Atz 18
Other income and gains, net EHAA R MEs - R 6,075
Selling expenses SHERY (17,319)
Administrative expenses THAX (4,475)
Finance costs BE KA (18)
Gain on disposal of HEMB ARz e
a subsidiary 149,776
Profit before tax from BRI R E B 2 BRI AR T
the discontinued
operation 134,057
Income tax expense FrfsRiA X =
Profit for the year BRI EEB R FE
from the discontinued i
operation 134,057
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T L Sy _
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12, #R I EEK @)
(o)  The net cash flows for the period up to the date of disposal b)) EFEHEHHz7HEzBSREF
are presented below: BE2HT -
2020
—ECTF
$'000
Fir
Operating activities KEED (851,479)
Investing activities BEED (179,358)
Financing activities BEEH 1,004,388
Effect of foreign exchange HNERE R Fh o B
rate changes (72)
Net cash flow REmEFHE (26,521)
(c) Earnings per share (HK cents) () BRER (B
2020
—Z=TF
Basic and diluted, from AEAREE - REKIEEEET
the discontinued operation 1.7

HEEERRERAT 2
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o
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. RIEREERK @)
(c) Earnings per share (HK cents) (#) () BRER B @)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from BRUEREFEG 2 BRERNKEER
the discontinued operation are based on: FITHRAE RSB E
2020
—EEF
$'000
Fir
Profit attributable to SIS A S YNGR
ordinary equity holders B AEERF (W i 14()
of the parent from
the discontinued operation
(note 14(a)) 80,377
2020
—ETF
‘000
F %
Weighted average number REREANARGTESR
of ordinary shares in issue EXRREERF 2
during the year used in BT L BRI
the basic and diluted earnings T8 (fE27)
per share calculation (note 27) 4,697,347
JL
13. DIVIDEND 13. BRE
The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of RRAREETEBREEEZE_T-_—F
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020 Nil). TZRA=T—HIEFEZRPRE(ZE

ZEF ) o
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. B AR EBREE AEL
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BREXRZFN THIEFARAR L@
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the B AEA RN RFANDEITE
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares i IR 2 AN T 19 24,697,347,000
of 4,697,347,000 (2020: 4,697,347,000) in issue during the f&( == = =& F : 4,697,347,000
year. BR)ETE o
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BREXREERT HRE TH%
based on: HEHE -
2021 2020
—E--F —E-THF
$°000 $'000
Ft Tt
Profit attributable to BRAREERFEE AEG
ordinary equity holders of the wA - ARETE
parent, used in the basic and BREXRREEZR)
diluted earnings per share
calculation
From continuing operations REFBEEERS 240,506 84,754
From the discontinued operation 2R B #& |FAC & 275 (M EE 12(c))
(note 12(c)) - 80,377

240,506 165,131
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. B AR EBIRIEE AEWL
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BRER @
(Continued)
(a) Basic earnings per share (Continued) &) EREREFN @)

Number of shares

R BB
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZTTF
’000 ’000
TR TH&
Weighted average number of RNEEANARTETRERK
ordinary shares in issue during SRR 2 B BT T B INE
the year used in the basic and B (FEE27)
diluted earnings per share
calculations (note 27) 4,697,347 4,697,347
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREEEF
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue HE-_ZT-_—F+-A=1+—8H1t
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). FE - AEEVEBEEES O

TEER(ZEFE  8) 0
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y12 ~ MENZHE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
B #£8 fE
Rt HE NEEE EBIR fit
$000 $/000 $000 $000 $/000
i i i i i
31 December 2021 ZE--FtZR=t-A
At 1 January 2021: RZZ=-%-A-R:
Cost A 40,622 2,716 118,327 19,090 180,755
Accumulated depreciation  ZHrERFE
and impairment (13,912) (2,716) (14,533) - (31,161)
Net carrying amount BHFE 26,710 - 103,794 19,090 149,504

At1January 2021, netof ~ R-E--E-F-H
accumulated depreciation IR ZEHTERAE)

and impairment 26,710 - 103,794 19,090 149,594
Additions NE 1,065 - 2,582 22,991 26,638
Disposals i (98) - - - (98)
Transfers EE 938 - 34,767 (35,705) -
Depreciation provided ERiRNE

during the year (4,873) - (5,533) - (10,406)
Exchange realignment IE R 715 - 2,764 765 4,244
At 31 December 2021, RZB--FTZA=T-H

net of accumulated (MBZFERAE)

depreciation

and impairment 24,457 - 138,374 7,141 169,972
At 31 December 2021: R_E_—F+-A=1-R:

Cost A 46,416 2,716 158,396 7,141 215,169
Accumulated depreciation  ZHrERFE

and impairment (21,959) (2,716) (20,522) - (45,197)

Net carrying amount SEE 24,457 - 138,374 7,14 169,972
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contives) ~ 15. ¥)2 ~ E N 3%E @)

Fumniture,
fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction
equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
i RE HE
& "E NERE FRIR &5t
$000 $:000 $:000 $000 $:000
i i T i T
31 December 2020 k525 =
At 1 January 2020; R-F-BE-A-F:
Cost A 29,087 2,716 81,280 7,513 120,596
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HrERFE
and impairment (9,360) (2,716) (8,828) - (20,904)
Net carrying amount FHFE 19,727 = 72,452 7513 99,692
At1 January 2020, netof  RZZ-FE-f-H
accumulated depreciation (IR Z:HTERAE)
and impairment 19,727 - 72,452 7,513 99,692
Additions NE 9,747 - 6,228 36,864 52,839
Disposals HE (58) - - = (58)
Transfers EE = = 25,771 (25,771) —
Depreciation provided ERiRNE
during the year (3,852) - (5,004) - (8,946)
Exchange realignment IE R 1,146 - 4,437 484 6,067
At 31 December 2020, RZEZBET-A=1-H
net of accumulated (MBZFERAE)
depreciation
and impairment 26,710 — 103,794 19,090 149,594
At 31 December 2020: R-BRET-A=T-0:
Cost A 40,622 2,716 118,327 19,090 180,755
Accumulated depreciation  ZHrERFE
and impairment (13,912) (2,716) (14,533) = (31,161)
Net carrying amount FHFE 26,710 = 103,794 19,090 149,594
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREW=
$000
Tt
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FF—HF—H 1,509,238
Net loss from a fair value adjustment AABEAREEFRE (MET)
(note 7) (34,538)
Reversal of over-accrued development — FRZAFEST3S A AR 2 B [El
costs (32)
Exchange realignment b 54, 38 B 96,132
At 31 December 2020 and R-BE-TE+— E—i—— S|
1 January 2021 r=—FE-—F—H—H 1,570,800
Net loss from a fair value adjustment AAEBEAREEFRE (MET)
(note 7) (53,049)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR 45,371
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=A=+—H 1,563,122
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWIZ )

All the completed investment properties, including both land and
building elements held by the Group, were revalued at the end
of the year based on valuations performed by an independent
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Shenzhen Valuation
Co., Ltd. (“Cushman & Wakefield”). Cushman & Wakefield is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation, which has the
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation for the
completed investment properties was arrived at by considering
the capitalised income to be derived from the existing tenancies
and the reversionary potential of the properties, where appropriate,
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions. There were no
changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 17 to the financial statements.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties:

16. REWIZ )

DREEER

TREIAEEREYME 2 A BER
BEEA

Fair value measurements as at

31 December 2021 using
R-EBE--#+-A=t+—H

ZAREEERER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBTE EATEHE EATTER
ZiRE BWAZH BWAZH
(8—#%) (B=#) (B=8) st
$000 $000 $000 $'000
Tr T T T
Recurring fair value measurement for; & & EAEBEE :
Commercial properties ik IES - - 1,563,122 1,563,122
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 using
RZZE_ZE+_HA=+—H
ZRRBEERER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIERTS EAUBE EATAER
LB BAZH BALH
(B—&) (B=&) (E=4) st
$000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr T T
Recurring fair value measurement for; & H AR EEANE
Commercial properties [ElEEES = = 1,570,800 1,570,800

FA - E—RESE_ F HpiEE

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

MEOF=FBEAREL (—T T
") - AEBZBRRNBEBALRES
HIRER A EERRRE I o
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16. REWIZ )

HERPETHER - A% I%ﬁ
2 S{LER A ERR LA ERS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the EA

mE} H}%r

valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each reporting date.

AN TEBREMEMEEMER 2 EET

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and

228

the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: AN EBH A Bl
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
BEATAEE
fEEFR BWAZH gE
2021 2020
—E--F —ZE-TF
Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly
market rent RMB60 RMB69
per square metre —RMB292 —RMB301
% RE % BABTAXK AR¥60TE AR¥6ITE
RiTmSHEE ARM¥292 T AR#3017T
Reversionary yield Mall: 7.0% Mall: 7.0%
Store: 6.0% Store: 6.0%
B 5 1 7.0% % 7.0%
JEE : 6.0% JEH : 6.0%
Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB393 RMB395
market rent
per lot
FES REZE FABMEER ARM393 7T AR#3957T
RiTmsAsE
Reversionary yield 5.0% 5.0%
(L GnES
Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent 1TSS TR R I8 3 (i (B A ¥ 30 HR

valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject

properties and other comparable properties. The higher the rent,

the higher the fair value is. The reversionary yield is estimated by

the independent valuer based on the risk profile of the properties

being valued. The higher the yield, the lower the fair value is.
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17. LEASES 17. &

The Group as a lessee AEBEREMEA
AEBRERANEEBEECHAE
BEEF RERBBZHEEH o
REZHABER-Z2,F  HIEETF
ZHPREATRAE_+Fm#sE 2
HBER_Z=F HMPEAEZEMH -
RENRECHBEE R T AL
TR/ SERBEEE -

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office, hotel
buildings and machinery used in its operations. Leases of offices
generally have lease terms between 2 and 6 years, and leases
of hotel buildings generally have lease terms between 15 and 20
years, while machinery generally has lease terms between 2 and
3 years. Other office space, equipment and warehouse generally
have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low
value.

(a) Right-of-use assets () FRAEEE

AEBERREEZRAERFA

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

the movements during the year are as follows: 2T
Hotel

Office buildings ~ Warehouses Machinery Total

BAE BEST RE B a5

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Tr T Tr Tr Tr

As at 1 January 2020 RZZ-TF-A-H 37,563 251,536 132 - 289,231

Addttions AE 820 126,874 - 486 128,180

Depreciation charge HERY (9,359) (19,600 (136) (195) (29,283)

Exchange realignment B AR 1,920 19,665 4 10 21,599
As at 31 December 2020and N-Z2-F4+-A=1—H

1 January 2021 R=ZF--5-8-H 30,951 378,475 - 301 409,727

Additions ME 598 - - 679 1,217

Fffect of lease modification ~ HE{5:TME/E (3.899) - - - (3,895)

Depreciation charge NER% (8879) (23,589) = (455) (32,922)

Exchange realignment ERHE 729 3,289 - 1 4,019

As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=T-H 19,505 358,175 - 526 378,206

HEEEREERAT 22
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17. LEASES (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

17. HE »

HEEE

— ==

HERBEZRAENRFAZE L

TS ¢

2021 2020
—E--F —E-THF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEmE 441,773 295,189
New leases HEIHE 1,277 128,180
Accretion of interest recognised ~ FRHER 2 RIEH L (KMiEE8)
during the year (note 8) 19,788 19,649
Payments (note 30(c)) 2% (Bit3E30(c) (35,679) (24,227)
Effect of lease modification HEBIHNRE (4,990) —
Covid-19-related rent concessions 2k & HF8 A Z COVID-19 #873
from lessors HERR - (183)
Exchange realignment bE X T 2,267 23,165
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ —-A=+—HZKHEE 424,436 441,773
Analysed into: DT
Current portion BNHA 19,690 19,948
Non-current portion JEENER 404,746 421,825
424,436 441,773

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
36 to the financial statements.

230 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

HEBEZIHBOMRM B RE

B 5+ 36 I EE ©



Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

17. LEASES (continued) 17. & )

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

© RESERZEERESRNT

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HE & &2 (FffzE8) 19,788 19,649
Depreciation charge of TREEENERX
right-of-use assets 32,922 29,283
Expense relating to short-term HRE MR B AR 2 2
leases (included in cost of sales (FrASHERARITHAR)
and administrative expenses (FI5E 7 R FI5E 30(c))
(note 7 and note 30(c)) 6,898 7,747
Expense relating to leases of BEEEEEHERB M
low-value assets (included in cost  (FFASEERAKRITHFX)
of sales and administrative (B3E7 BT 52 30(c))
expenses) (note 7 and note 30(c)) 186 88
Covid-19-related rent concessions 2K & HF8 A Z COVID-19 1873
from lessors Heme - (183)
Total amount recognised in RIERTER 2 858
profit or loss 59,794 56,584

(d) The total cash outflow for leases in disclosed in note 30(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties in Guilin under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the lease generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was $107,265,000 (2020: $103,653,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

o) MERESRDBERYBRERM T
30(c) # 5 -

REBESHEA

AEERBLEERELHE B AEAE
M2Z2EEME - ZHEZ IR —BIR
THPXNRECLBBELRFMRE
HAEHE AEEFABERZES
WA A&107,265,0000( = F = T 4 ¢
103,653,0007T) * B BF 158N B 755k
FIFFES ©
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41 -
17. LEASES (continued) 17. HE »)
The Group as a lessor (Continued) AEBEALHEA B
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments W-E-——&E+—-A=+—0 &=H
receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable RIE A E TS~ T a4 E R
operating leases with its tenants are as follows: SRARHARS > E R BE IR E N KT ¢
2021 2020
—B-—F —EFTF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Within one year —FNRN 92,974 80,921
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 64,158 56,523
After two years but within three years MERBREB=FNK 39,411 40,094
After three years but within four years = FRENFR 28,052 29,641
After four years but within five years WFEZERFA 19,367 23,331
After five years AFE 92,520 103,370
336,482 333,880
4>
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. ML EE
2021
—E-_—F
$’000
Fr
31 December 2021 —E-—5+=ZA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of R-—ZE-_—F—H—H
accumulated amortisation A - 0Bk R AT -
Additions NE 3,853
Amortisation provided during the year FRFHEZ#E (MHFET7) (319)
(note 7)
Exchange realignment e T, AR 52
At 31 December 2021 MR-TE-_—F+_-_A=+—8H 3,586
At 31 December 2021: R-B_—F+-HA=+—8:
Cost BAR 3,909
Accumulated amortisation RS (323)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,586
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. BIEHHIBEERERE

REBRERE MBI RMER 2 B
HEE/ (AR RERESHMT

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the movements during the year are as follows:

Withholding
taxon
distributable
profits
Revaluation  from a PRC Lease
of properties subsidiary liabilities Others Total
HE
WEAR
LKV v
MEER HUZENHR HEAR Hith st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i Fr i i i
At 1 January 2020 RZZ=ZF—-A—H (169,395) - 978 15,179 (163,238)
Deferred tax credited KEEFA
to the statement of profit or BaRRZEERE
loss during the year:
— included in continuing —AIARBELEEK
operations 2,639 — 5,858 17,133 25,630
Exchange differences BEHER (8,173) - 252 (1,127) (9,048)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z_TBFE+-A=t1—H
and 1 January 2021 k=Z=—5-A—H (174,929) - 7,088 31,185 (136,656)
Deferred tax credited REEFHABRRRLZ
to the statement of profit or ERERIE -
loss during the year:
— included in continuing —AABELEER
operations 6,989 (42,964) 5,767 19,643 (10,565)
Exchange differences EHES (7.770) — 294 3,600 (3,876)
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—§+=A=1+—H (175,710) (42,964) 13,149 54,428 (151,097)
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AY N ; E o
19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. EXEBIHEERAEE @)
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RAE IR 2 HER
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBE B 67,883 39,383
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (218,980) (176,039)
(151,097) (136,656)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the RARWAFATIEE ERIELEFIEE
following items: B
2021 2020
=F=—F =T
$°000 $000
F T
Unused tax credits REBHIAR R 10,204 54,434
The above tax losses of 2021 mainly arose in the PRC (2020: the Fi =R - —F o HIEBEFTERT
PRC and USA). Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in ZERF RERER)EL AR
respect of the above items as it is not considered probable that RAETKAIRER EFRFGEF T8 A il
taxable profits will be available against which the above items can TH B - ARt a8 B RIRE
be utilised. MIAEE -
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax between PRC
and the jurisdiction of treaty the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. As at 31 December 2021, except
the deferred tax amounting $42,964,000 being recognised for
withholding taxes on dividends will be distributed by a subsidiary
established in the PRC in respect of a portion of its earnings, no
other deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in the
PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of earnings associated with investments in
subsidiaries in the PRC was approximately $1,570,526,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: $1,732,500,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

19.

EIEHIEEEREE®

BEPEICERSEHE RN EDR
EREBEESTRRENRFRAKL ZHINE
P EHR B BU10%TBIF o i+ HF
BN EEFBRI AR CHAESR
MIBEE - B ARBETEOR N R
HepAKBmME  BAMEARS% L
10% - R=_ZE=-_—F+=-_A=+—H"
B 42,964,000 JT B35 AL £ 18 B 5t — FE1E
RS HKT B A Rt E S B AT
DR S ERETIN - WERAEE
T2 A B A 7 B BT /B R R ZB A R TR0 8L
FIRPE B B F MBS A HTENRERE
MIEERIE - EXRR - ZEMBAR
RAI RiGR D IRBABFHEE K o
R-ZZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H  BRih
BIfffE AR ERENEEETNE
%) 51,570,526,000 L( ZE _FF :
1,732,500,0007T) °

R A A B CROK A BB X R B TS

ST
oy

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. ES ENFIE R EWEE
2021 2020

—E—F —E-FF

$°000 $°000

T FIT

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 277,086 340,257
Impairment B (117,033) (54,702)
160,053 285,555

Bills receivables e ZE I 10,111 56,274
170,164 341,829

Receivables form leasing properties are normally settled on an
advance receipt basis, where the lessees are required to pay in
advance for several months’ rental payment and pay a security
deposit as well. However, in the case of long-standing customers
with good repayment history, the Group may offer these customers
credit terms.

KEHEEY XU —RIATBKTT
AEE - AEARBEEINEARESY
FHRES o AN - A RILBSGE e
ZEREEPME » AREXE AZKFE
PlRREEEGRK
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EZ RINFIE R FEWNEE

For the business of hotel operations, receivables are normally
settled in advance. However, the Group may offer credit terms to
certain corporate clients.

For the business of hotel management services, hotel design and
construction management services, the Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit. The Group has set out
policies to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group also reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable balance to ensure that adequate
provision for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over such trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

(%)

LB EEXRBME - BUGKIE—RM
EREEE - A AEEXRAET A
AIEPRHERRR -

FUBE B IR - BE R REREE
RIBME  AEEEETP 28 S HK
TBAEERRET - AREEHIER
RARRIRIURETTE M E B HET -
ZRER B T E B2 B B IR E R 2 5 UK
TRAERRZ IR I 58 - PARELR 3L A AT U
El&FBIEL TR 2R EBIERE - A&
By ERZFEDREFTRERT AT
BRI ELEMET R L - &
ZRBFIATF RIS

RIFZHZBH - RIS BRI E IR
2B S RYGIR ZBRE DT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TEF

$°000 $°000

Fx Tt

Within 3 months =@EAR 82,159 111,859
Over 3 months but within 6 months BB=EAENEAAN 7,641 59,315
Over 6 months but within 12 months BiEANEA B+ —EAR 26,872 56,853
Over 12 months BiE+—EA 43,381 57,528
160,053 285,555
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

0. B 5 BUGIE R EWEE

(%)

BB KB REBEREZ SN
T

2021 2020

—B-—F —=2F

$°000 $000

F Tt

At 1 January n—A—H 54,702 28,493
Impairment during the year, net FRRE - FEE

— continuing operations (note 6) — FEKEER (HsEe) 59,828 23,389

Exchange realignment bE X 2,503 2,820

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 117,033 54,702

The increase in the loss allowance was due to certain outstanding
contractual amounts which were considered in default and the
Group is unlikely to receive such outstanding contractual amounts
in full.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
reference to the credit risk characteristics of receivables, either
individually or collectively. For receivables with credit risk identified
deteriorated significantly, Management makes provision on the
individual basis, otherwise, Management uses a provision matrix
to measure expected credit losses for the rest of the receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2021, the trade receivables amounting to
$105,377,000 (2020: $48,037,000) were assessed individually and
considered to be unlikely for the Group to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts and were fully impaired. There are no credit
enhancements held by the Group on such outstanding amounts.

BEBRENIERETEREERE
BB 40 M AR SR B R RE AR BUKCER AR
BAEBARETHE -

REHRE B2 ERRFBRZEERR
FEGETRED T (TR ERHRER) -
SEERRBE R BEFIANS -
BEECRENERELEE  XER
T AR EERETEERBURRIAZTR
HIEEER - BEXTRERAREE R
UEBERA 2 ZEEF D EETIEM
Bz ARG E - ZETERBRIAR
BER ERRELNRSEHAFZ
BRABESFE - B AR RARREEGR
IRz A M A SEER -

W_E-_—F+-_A=+—H8 BHE
W K T8105,377,000C( ZFE =ZF &F :
48,037,0007C ) Ty & & Rl B FF 44 - I
WAL ER A TREWERES R SaE
E2FERE AEBENERZEAE
BB EEERLH -
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=3 =5
20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. B EINARIE K EREE
(#&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure REBE R FERREBEMTEE S B
on the rest of the portion of the Group’s trade receivables using a He HspBormEE s EERKRER S
provision matrix: R -
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—$+=-A=+—H
Past due
jaati]
Less than 3t06 61012 Over
Current 3 months months months 12 months Total
ME  SR=ER =EXER AEtZfAR BBt=fEA @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEX 0.686% 0.715% 0.942% 2.310% 30.820% 6.788%
Gross carrying amount BREE (T
($°000) 83,846 1,697 11,672 35,755 32,739 171,709
Expected credit losses BHEEER(TT)
($'000) 575 55 110 826 10,090 11,656
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-—FF#+—-HF=+—H
Past due
Less than 3t06 61012 QOver
Current 3 months months months 12 months Total
08 OR=EA  =ESMER AETZEA BBTEA @it
Expected credit oss rate AHEEEEX 0.236% 0.882% 1.768% 2.226% 8.741% 2.281%
Gross carrying amount BREE (T
($°000) 112,132 59,725 24,723 44,880 50,760 292,220
Expected credit losses BHEEER(TT)
($'000) 265 527 437 999 4,437 6,665
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21. BHEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Contract assets arising from: UTEBMELEZARNEE
Hotel design and construction B IE R IR B R ARTS
management services 70,803 23,811
Impairment RE (8,034) (1,342)
62,769 22,469
Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from GHEECVIRERBBIERFTRG &
hotel design services and the provision of related design services FTIRAR B R AT AR S B A P AR ER 2 W 2%
as the receipt of consideration is conditioned on having reached PERUE 2 RE - MATIREEEEHE
certain milestones of the design and customers confirming the TRABEBY AT CHERETE
design results. Upon completion of certain milestones of the EREGETRABRBIIEPENE -
design and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised ERIEGREECSHCENHEAR
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. B WA
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets R+-A=t+—BKEXEEENEE
as at 31 December is within one year. ZTEHRREA—FA
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Within one year —FR 59,185 19,101
After one year —Fi& 3,584 3,368
62,769 22,469
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 21. BHNEE &)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract BHEEREBBREZSHNT
assets are as follows:

2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF
$'000 $000
Fr FT
At 1 January n—A—H 1,342 54
Impairment losses (note 6) BEEE (fizEe) 6,557 1,302
Exchange realignment bE H 135 (14)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 8,034 1,342
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by REREAHRBESNEEZEER
reference to the credit risk characteristics of contract assets, BRECEITRES T (T 1I;”;IJ§,\H) °
either individually or collectively. For contract assets with credit risk HEERRBERLZENEEMS -
identified deteriorated significantly, Management makes provision EEECRERNELEELRE g5
on the individual basis, otherwise, Management uses a provision TERREERETEE®RT S 2TEHEE
matrix to measure expected credit losses for the rest of the EEER - ARG HNEENE ZHRKFIEA
portion. The provision rates for the measurement of the expected TREMEEPE  AUFEEHNEE
credit losses on the contract assets are based on those of the EHEEBRZBBEDIRIEE SR
trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables PIEZ M EEBEFERL - A&
are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract EZBEERDBRBEREFAUBERR
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables for Eln 2 ERFPHE 2B 5 BN IEE
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. HﬂZ B E o ZatE R AR N
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the - EEERERNRE BHAS Zﬁ
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information Fﬁahff FI8 - EANER KRR ES
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current BRIz ABERASEER -
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
As at 31 December 2021, the contract assets amounting to R-T_—F+_A=1t—H8 GHNEE
$7,221,000 (2020: $1,182,000) were assessed individually and 7,221,000TT(ZB -4 : 1,182,0007E)
considered to be unlikely for the Group to receive the outstanding TR(BARIEAER L - WERARERATEE
contractual amounts and were fully impaired. There are no credit WEIREGRSEACZREME - ~5EH
enhancements held by the Group on such outstanding amounts. WEMZERECERA SR -
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SAa N
21. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 21. ERNEE®
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure REBFRABEEMBTEANEELS
on the rest of the portion of the Group’s contract assets using a B2 ZERBEREINNT

provision matrix:

2021 2020

—E—F —E-FF

Expected credit loss rate TERREEE B X 1.279% 0.707%
Gross carrying amount ($’000) #REREE (FT) 63,582 22,629
Expected credit losses ($’000) FEHEEEE(F) 813 160

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. JEFIE - HAbpEWFRIE

S
OTHER ASSETS KHEE
2021 2020
—E--F —=2F
Notes $°000 $°000
k=3 Frx FIT
Current portion BB 55
Prepayments TEfRIR 13,108 7,209
Deposits and other receivables e R E b E G E 55,588 62,572
Amounts due from related parties  FEURFFiE A £ FUE (@) 3,807 263
Amount due from intermediate G b NCIE O]
holding companies (@) 25,163 11,457
97,666 81,501
Impairment allowance VERIEEEY (b) (15,719) (15,528)
81,947 65,973
Non-current portion FERTREES 75
Long-term receivable RAFE Y GRIE ©) 1,713,833 1,592,983
Impairment allowance BB ©) (19,418) -

1,694,415 1,692,983

......
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. FEFFIE - EfuEUIREE

e N

OTHER ASSETS (continued) REMEE @)

(@ The amounts due from related parties and intermediate (@ EUERE A T R EERA R 2K
holding companies are unsecured, interest-free and ETHERRT - B RIZERKEE -

repayable on demand.

() The movements in provision for impairment of other (b) FA - HAEYGRIE 2 R EREE
receivables during the year are as follows: EPONNE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
At 1 January Kn—A—H 15,528 16,537
Impairment during the year FAREZREE
reversed in profit or loss, net 2B FEB
— continuing operations (note 6) — FELEE (HsEe) 9) (800)
Exchange realignment b 54, 38 B 200 (209)
At 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 15,719 15,528
The above provision for impairment of other receivables is a i B R UEROE 2 R B Tt
provision for individually impaired other receivables. BRI RE 2 &R IR a1
R
Other than the aforementioned impaired other receivables, B Bl 2R E 2 M EREIR - &t
the financial assets included in the above balances relate A LRz A E RS &
to the receivables for which there was no recent history of 6 /R Fo s S B B R 2 FE WK IE S
default and past due amounts. o
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. FEFFIE - EfuEUIREE

S&a L
OTHER ASSETS (Continueq) NEMEE @
€©)  The long-term receivable amounting to $1,694,415,000 () % %581,694,415,0007C (& R4
(equivalent to approximately US$217,286,000) represented 217,286,000 7t ) 2 £ HA F& UK 5K
the deferred amount arising from the disposal of Parcel C T8+ & Parcel CFTEA 2 25k
and relevant interest generated. The deferred amount is ELERBEFE - ZFELELE
secured by a mortgage on certain condominium units under PAParcel CERIE TN A TABEN
development of Parcel C. ZIRIBTEEAR o
The movements in provision for impairment of long-term FRREYGIERERGE N
receivable during the year are as follows: s s
2021
—E_—F
$°000
T
At 1 January Rn—A—H -
Impairment during the year recognised FRNHERRE
— continuing operations (note 6) — FHEE % (3Ee) 19,361
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B 57
At 31 December R+ZA=t+—H 19,418

BERERRERAA 24
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. AERREEFEY

2021 2020

=F=—F =T

$°000 $°000

Fx Tt

Cash and bank balances B NIRRT 3,007,164 2,137,660
Time deposits TE R - 237,640
Cash and cash equivalents He RS EY 3,007,164 2,375,300

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $2,889,332,000
(2020: $2,262,851,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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24, TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

An analysis of trade payable, other payables and accruals as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

24. BEENFIE - HibpE
FIEREFTE R

RBERZEHENFE - R RN
RBAKEETERZNNT

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

Notes $°000 $°000

B sE T T

Trade payables B ST FRIE a 23,290 52,745

Other payables and accruals HAb R R EETE A 310,713 238,106
Interest payable to an intermediate & — & AR I A &) F L&

holding company b 256,589 221,291
Amounts due to an intermediate  FEfT— R AR A B OB

holding company © 786,930 1,430,424

Amounts due to related parties JERBEA T HIE 8 302,252 210,763

1,679,774 2,153,329

Notes:

a. None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after
more than one year (2020: Nil).

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

B =E -

a.  HEAKEEIFENFAEDENES
—FREE(ZF-FF 8-

RIBEZAH  RBEHR2EFEN

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FIBZ BRERDITAOT -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E_EF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Within 3 months =fEAA 14,814 10,017
Over 3 months but within 6 months BB=EAEEARN 19 250
Over 6 months but within 12 months BEANEAE+—EAR 556 6,238
Over 12 months HBmiEt+ @A 7,901 36,240
23,290 52,745

b. The amount of $256,589,000 (2020:$221,291,000) in interest
payable to an intermediate holding company is repayable on
demand. The interest payable is unsecured and not subject to
compound interest.

@ The amounts due to an intermediate holding company and related
parties are repayable on demand and all these balances are
unsecured and interest-free.

b EfN-—MBPEZRAEFMNES
256,589,000 LERERKEE(ZT=
T 1 221,291,0007T ) © ZEAF &S
BEE AR DA HEF -

c. [EN—THARREERARIMEIEREZS
EHERERER  MzSEpala
BEMEELE

BEEERRERA
—E-—FEH
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. BN EE

np
S
o
=
iy
53d
o
%
S
N,
]_jp\:\"lz
I
Py
-
—

Details of contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

2021 2020
—EC-—F T -THF
$°000 $000
Fx Tt
Sale of goods THE P o 335 301
Loyalty programme management BHETEIEERTS
services 45,340 42,134
Hotel management services EIEE IR AR 52,113 38,511
Hotel design and hotel construction BE St BB Rk
management services EIRART 11,302 10,745
Other services E b AR 856 353
Total contract liabilities ABHBERE 109,946 92,044
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNHEAER {7 44,181 34,882
Non-current portion JEBNHEAER 15 65,765 57,162
109,946 92,044
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26. LOANS FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

Loans from an intermediate holding company were repayable as

26. —REIFRBEERATER

—fRIFP AR A R E R Z BT

follows:
2021 2020
—E--F —E-THF
Notes $°000 $'000
{iFsa T T
Current: BIAR
Loans from an intermediate —MPEERARIER
holding company a 873,000 873,000
Notes: B 3T
a.  The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate a. FA ANEE—HEREERARZE2E

holding company during the year were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar (‘HK$”). The denominated amounts at the year end are as
follows:

ERZREESAET(DET])AHE -
RERZEEAESELT

2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF

$°000 $'000

Frx Fit

HK$ loan and borrowing BITERRER 873,000 873,000

This loan bears interest at a rate of 4% per annum.

Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
interest payable to an intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2021 are set out in notes 8 and 24, respectively.

ZEETIRETF A% 2 MRFHE ©

b. #HEZZE-_—F+-A=+—HIHF
EEAZHBERR-_ZE=Z—F+=A
=+ —HEN—EREERARZHE
D RIEFHIEES 2 24 ©

BEEERRERA
—E-—FEH
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE :
4,697,346,488 (2020: 4,697,346,488) 4,697,346,488 (—Z ==
ordinary shares 4,697,346,488) i% & A% 469,735 469,735

28. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 133
to 134 of the financial statements.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in the PRC is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from the Group’s
presentation currency.

248 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

28. &

RAFENBEFE - NEBZFH
BRESH SRR IRKSE 133
EMAZEABREESHRAZ
5] o

RBEERAZE
R 15 fE

BiraBzERTARE—NN\—
FREVERE -

EE#E

REFERRDERTFEEE QR
HEAAEER - AEERHEEMR
ZEHBARERERDE10%
BBR B s M (R IBE P B g5t /E
BE)EEERGREE BEE%F
EFREES B EMERR50% °

BE 7

SNEBRB RBIEREART I
ERANNAEEZ5EE 2/
X W BRREAEE ZERE
B o



Notes to Financial Statements

BAFE R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

28. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in connection with
the Group’s reorganisation; and (i) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in the relative interests as a result of changes in
the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
fair value of the consideration paid to Wanda Commercial
Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Wanda HK”), an
intermediate holding company to the Company, for the
acquisition of the entire interest in Wanda Hotel Management
Group which are under common control of Wanda HK,
and the carrying amounts of the net assets of Wanda Hotel
Management Group acquired.

Distributable reserves

The Company’s share premium, special reserve and retained
earning as at 31 December 2021 may be distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by Section
54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was $1,147,185,000 (2020: $1,174,194,000).

28. f#fE =)

(b)

RBEERAZE @)
Rl

IR BT B R 18 () AN R )P E
LRIEEPNCIPAiF ENTER =R NN
IEBEBAMEITZRMNEEZE
B R (i) IR M IR R R
YEH 2 % - DA A AR 55 B At
BRAz s E2E) (W REHRKE
PRI FTEE L 2 IR o

B

afEEERIEESEEEEES
HEm(XEEREE(EE)E
AT ([&EEE]) H£RES) m
m—EPREERA RS ESEE
(BEB)BRAR(TEEREX
NREZAABEEMBEEEN
EEBREEEFEREENE
o

A IR

i

A
N
b
fuasi

—E-—F+-A=+—H K
Az RMEE - FAlFEERIRE

MRBRE-NN—FRRNESE
SAGFIHRE B TIEA T fHn
T AR ©

N

N-ZZE-_—F+-A=+—8 " 7
HART AR BERTEAZGEE
4858 A1,147,185,00070( — & —
T4 1 1,174,194,0007T) °

’?‘
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%

B

29. 5 B R IFIE AR R A ED
DHEENE AT
TREIAEEEA B RIEFERER

([EEp R D B AREM - TX
PR BB Z RARFT EEA A RME

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following tables list out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
The summarised financial information presented below represents

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

MEHE R o

Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEEXRE BEINHEERE
BRARER BRATREE
$°000 $°000
T T
2021 —E-—F
Percentage of equity interest TR ERTE
held by NCI MEZ B DL 49% 40%
Profit for the year BT IEIE IR Y
allocated to NCI RFEH A 1,937 24,127
Dividends declared to NCI BRI A 2R O AR - -
Accumulated balances/(deficit) RERE BB IEERR
of NCl at the reporting date T 25T erEE (B4 1,374,676 (61,476)
2020 —T-TF
Percentage of equity interest R ERTTR
held by NCI HEm B D 49% 40%
Profit for the year o HE T IEIE AR i R Y
allocated to NCI RE A 30,335 30,111
Dividends declared to NCI Bk T IR AR = =
Accumulated balances/(deficit) R B EBR B
of NCI at the reporting date W 2AT e (B4 647,259 (88,520)
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

29. BRE RFFERERAIED
DHEENB LR =

(Continued)
Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEEBERE BEZINGERE
BRARSER ARATREE
$°000 $°000
T T
2021 —B-—fF
Revenue from continuing operations SEICE B 2 W= 107,266 -
Total expense and other net gain/(loss) B E I 2 B
from continuing operations REMUE (BR) FE (103,313) 60,317
Profit for the year REE @ F 3,953 60,317
Total comprehensive income for the year R4 E 2 EW AR 83,226 67,610
Current assets MENEE 1,523,735 3,015
Non-current assets SEMBNEE 1,563,276 1,694,415
Current liabilities mEAE (64,536) (1,850,297)
Non-current liabilities IERBBE (217,014) (823)
Net cash flows from/(used in) Ex/ (R 2B Re 58
— operating activities — EER) 92,228 (5,291)
— investing activities —BEEE 245,934 -
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEREH) 2 FE
changes (1,860) 31
Net increase/(decrease) in cash Re RReEEY
and cash equivalents G ) F58 336,302 (5,260)

LLIY
......
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29. BRE RFFERERAIED
DHEENB LR =

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEBXKRE BEFIMEERE
BRAREE BRAREE
$000 $'000
T T
2020 —E T
Revenue from continuing operations B EFETS 2 W 103,653 =
Total expense and other net loss from FECEE 2 BRI R
continuing operations HAbBBFE (41,745) (58,925)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEICE 2
from continuing operations REHEF, (EE) 61,908 (58,925)
Profit for the year BIEEEEB RN FE
from discontinued operations gl = 136,559
Profit for the year AN 61,908 77,634
Total comprehensive income REFEEWALEE
for the year 223,794 72,730
Current assets MENEE 1,406,175 8,275
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,571,043 1,592,995
Current liabilities mEaE (1,481,353) (1,822,570)
Non-current liabilities ERBAG (174,929) —
Net cash flows from/(used in) EE/ (A 2Be e T8
— operating activities — REEE 105,373 (764,523)
— investing activities — REEE (230,468) 2,565,704
— financing activities — REEE - (1,814,887)
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERFE) B
changes 1,492 61
Net decrease in ReRRSEEWRLFE
cash and cash equivalents (123,603) (13,645)
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  30. &R RERERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions (a) EXRFRERS
During the year, a subsidiary of the Group capitalised its debt FR - AEE—EHBARE—HE
from an intermediate holding company as non-controlling FRERARES éZMK?%é‘H PR
interest amounting to $686,196,000 (2020: Nil). 1 21 686,196,000 7T (—= T — T 4 :
)
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FAN - REEB S BIR1,277,000
of-use assets and lease liabilities of $1,277,000 (2020: o = & = & 4 128,180,000
$128,180,000) and $1,277,000 (2020: $128,180,000), %) ] 1,277,000 ( — F = B 4 -
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements. 128,180,000 T) E M EL HEER
FREEEMMEEAEZIRSAR
=,
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEIZBRELENEEEH
activities
—E_—F
2021
Lease liabilities
HEARE
$°000
Fr
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=——F—H—H 441,773
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEIR & REE (35,679)
New leases wiHE 1,277
Interest expenses FEFE 19,788
Effect of lease modification BEHHETE (4,990)
Exchange realignment bE 2,267
At 31 December 2021 R_ZB_—4%+-_A=+—H 424,436
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. FEREREBRMT @

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEIZBRELENEEEH
activities (Continued) (#&)
2020 —TTF
Loan form
Loans Amounts financal
floman dueto institution Interest
anintermediate  anintermediate included payables for
Lease holding holding in liabities QOther Long-term  bankloans and
liabiltes company company  as held for sale barrowings recevable” ofherloans
B ARHELE BAETR
il Wi% QA Vi EHERH
HEEE ARDAEH NG KRS bR REEYGE ZWWE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T fr fr T T T Tr
At1 January 2020 gl 295,189 4,187,582 04,852 973,745 - - 129528
Inter-group balances between  BHEMBLARERT
diposed subsidianyandthe  EER-Z_FF
remaining group —A-BEERER
asat 1 January 2020 - - - - 1,347 445 (1,347,445) -
Changes from financing BERLEE
cash flows (24,227) (1,870,310) = 91,213 1,162,649 = (28,802)
Newleases (note 17(0) #il i E(H17p) 128,180 = = = = = -
Interest expenses HlER® 19,649 - - - - - 9,261
Capltalzed nterest ELRIE - - - - - - 28,802
Covid-19 related rent COVID-19iE@ S %
concessions (note 17(c) (W17 (189 = - - - - -
Eimination between disposed B HEHBAFE
subsidiary and the HBTEE 4
remaining group - - - - 841928 (841,928 -
Pooeedsreceiedondebt KRB HENBAAE
collection from buyer on BRGERNELR
behalf of the disposed fExE
subsidiaries - - - - - 621,628 -
Increase in the eferred EReELn
amounts - - - - - (27,194 -
Fair value gain on the Eteg ArERNE
deferred amounts - - - - - (4,612) -
Disposal of a subsidary HEHBAF - - - - (3:340910) = =
Derecogrifion of loans BN
due to an intermedate HEERAZER
holding company - (1,329.461) 1,329,461 - = = =
Exchange realignment 5 23165 (114811) 6,111 2532) (11,007) 6,563 (493)
31 December 2020 NFCTE
1+-A=1-A 441,773 873,000 1,430,424 — — (1,592,983) 221,291
- Notwithstanding the account is an asset, it’s presented in * BEZEBA—BAE B

M TABEED
BRICAIEZRZ7]

negative under this note while the accounts of liabilities are meFEk

presented in positive.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

30. MEBEERERMEF )

HEREM AR

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c)

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of STARERERZHEERESTHR

cash flows is as follows: BT :
2021 2020
—E--F —=2F
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Within operating activities (note 17(c)) & EBIA (FHFE17(c) 7,084 7,835
Within financing activities (note 17(b)) BE & EEN A (Fi3E17(b)) 35,679 24,207
(d) Total taxes paid (d) BEfIBIIEAZE
The total taxes paid during the year were: FARNHIBAER -
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Operating activities: EED -
PRC CIT paid BB EATSH 125,817 63,955
31. COMMITMENTS 31. A&IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of @ RBEEKR  NEEER 2 E A
the reporting period: BT
2021 2020
—EC—F —E-FF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Contracted, but not provided for EEENEESET - 18,995

RoE— T4 — = e
R A E @A AR BN BEEE. T
BFEmEL Y AEMEREEBER - STt

The commitments at 31 December 2020 mainly represent
leasehold improvement related costs to be incurred in respect of

the Group’s leased hotel buildings situated in Mainland China.
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32.

256

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. FARETE
2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-FTF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Guarantees given to banks for: BB EIEMA TRITZELR -
Mortgage facilities granted to BTAREEMEER
purchasers of the Group’s IR
properties 1,692 1,465

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of
the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is
measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on
the expected payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the purchasers. The amount initially recognised representing
the fair value at initial recognition of the financial guarantees was
not significant. The Group did not incur any material losses during
the financial period in respect of the guarantees provided for
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.
The directors consider that in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty, and therefore, no ECL allowance has been
made in connection with the guarantees.
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following significant

3. BEREAEALIRS

() BRHBREREMIBHFIHMET S
Oh - REBMPAE R RRREA LT

transactions with related parties during the year: IATERRS :
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
Notes $’000 $’000
BisE Fr T
Companies controlled by the — FxAIEARARERIEH 2 A F] ¢
ultimate controlling
shareholder:
Sale of goods HEMEm 22,024 2,876
Purchase of goods HEERm 57 33
Financial shared service W HZ RS
expense 470 382
Property management service 43R RISH
expense 4,061 2,351
Hotel service received BESHE RIS 2,098 785
Hotel design service income  JEJERETARFS UL A 61,401 45184
Hotel construction B R AR B FR AR IS U
management service income 15,073 17,050
Hotel management service BEE IR RN
income 63,505 43,533
Rental income HE WA 7,255 5,456
Rental expense e 12,256 14,801
Advertising expense BERX 621 159
Training expense sl 250 —
Maintenance cost BN 10 232
Commercial operation services 3 2RSS
expense 10,720 —
Interest on loans ERAE 8 34,824 92,243
Capitalisation of debt B ER 686,196 —
BERERRERAA
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3B[EBRBEEALIRS @

(b) Transactions with key management personnel (b) EHEIEEBAEZRNS

AEBZTEERASHM(BE
ENARAREEZHIB) AT

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors,
is as follows:

2021 2020

=T=—F =T

$°000 $000

Fr T

Short-term employee benefits REEE R 18,316 18,649

EEREZTRAEBME 2E—F
ABEENMERERMGE

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial

statements.
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EEEEBEAN L2 R{EELRR
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEHF
$’°000 $’000
F7 T
Trade receivables due from BRI TALZ2EZFIE
Fellow subsidiaries EES 0SNG 110,257 64,178
Prepayments and other BEWT A+ 25
receivables due from RIER HAEWRTRIE
The intermediate holding companies /{2 A% A 7] 25,163 11,457
Fellow subsidiaries EEILI=ING 6,927 3,526
Receipt in advance from WEUA T AL 2R IE
Fellow subsidiaries R RKTB AT 171 143
Other payables due to AT AL ZEMRE
An intermediate holding company ~ — &R M A &) 1,043,519 1,651,715
Fellow subsidiaries EES 0SNG 302,252 210,763
Loans from BX
An intermediate holding company ~ — &7 fE12R% A &) 873,000 873,000

fRRE—HEPEERARZER
S AR IR - B N

Except the loans from an intermediate holding company,
the other balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the sale of
goods, property management service expense, hotel
design service income, hotel construction management
service income, hotel management service income, rental
income, rental expense and commercial operation services
expense disclosed above constitute continuing connected
transactions or connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of loans and
interest accrued from an intermediate holding company
and other related party transactions disclosed above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

3BEBREEALIRZ @

(d) BEXZFRERzLHRA

BRREREEERM  WEERE
ARIEFIS ~ TEERAHIRISWA B
JEEREERBEA EEEER
BEA - HEWA - HERX KLE
ELERGHAXIBEALRSE
X ETRRIE T MARPTER 255

B LR E - EERARE
RMEEZNEREMEEALR
HZBBENT R SEK EHARAF
THARRERZAERZRIFE
BiER S - A - BARZEHR
BT ETARRIE T IHASATE 2
BRE °

HETEEREERAT 25
—E-—FEH
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34. RERIE D2 R T A

RBERR - SEREBRTAZEEE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: YT -
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
RBERAIIR 2 SRMEE
2021 2020
—E-—F e S SeS
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Long-term receivable KB EUGRIR 1,694,415 1,592,983
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R EIE K RN R iE 170,164 341,829
Financial assets included FEATE FRIE R B A IR IR
in prepayments JEREE
and other receivables 52,159 45,865
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EY 3,007,164 2,375,300
4,923,902 4,355,977
Financial liabilities LRRE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBHERASEzeREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEHF
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Lease liabilities HEAE 424,436 441,773
Financial liabilities included FTAZ ZEMFRIE -
in trade and other payables, H A e RIE &
and accruals B ERzEmARE 1,507,338 2,015,855
Loans from an intermediate —fEPEER AT ER
holding company 873,000 873,000
2,804,774 3,330,628

260 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



35.

36.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of long-term
receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in lease liabilities, trade and other
payables and loans from an intermediate holding company
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and loans from an intermediate holding company.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The directors review and agree policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

35.

36.

ERMIBEZARBERA
AEESER

AEEBeRTAZEAEREQNREE
BIEMRE -

BEECHERMEYE  Re kR
THEY  BHERRFARBEREE -
APABRNREREMEEREZ B E
ZE AHERE BHREMENK
HZemaERk—EhEERARER
ZARBEEEREERES  T2AR
HETHEREHME -

TREBEENABZANEBERIARE
BRI BT —RR S (IR
FBFELE) AR TRIA 2 SHFIRR

RZE-Z—FR_ZE_ZTF+_A
=+—8 AEEITETAIEIARER
rErEemEEREMAE -

TRlE R EE B R RBUR

AEETZeRTABERENASS
BEYE—HRREZERARER - ZFE
BMTAIZENDRAEERERKE
KET AKBEXBGEERELZHA
fteMEERAR  NEHBUEFEK
FEWE IR N B FENFA -

AEESRIAEELAZ T 2RAR/INE
Rk FEERRERBE SRR - A&
B ARBFEXBITIERZ BN ZITES
BMTA E=RMFEEETALSE
R 2 BRER - Bt
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business are principally conducted in RMB and
US$. The functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC and the USA are RMB and US$, respectively, and
these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than their respective
functional currencies. The functional currency of the Group’s other
subsidiaries is the Hong Kong dollar.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through long-term
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and other payables, and accruals and loans from an
intermediate holding company that are denominated in US$ and
RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange
rates on the Group’s equity.

(%)
SN LB

AEBTEAARERETLEEET -
AEBZHBENRCBERBARZESR
BEORBARERET  ZEWMB QA
WEEAEGEEEXABEBARRESS
ZMEEER I K ERIIE - NEE
HiMB AR Z NS ERET -

AEETZFEBURTEAREIIEZ
RHIEWHOE - Re MRS FEY &
ZHEWKBAREREE - B 5 RN
H - H RN R ERER L —FHT
EER A B E SR EESRME -

TERIIFAEE 2 260 RE R E
7 & IR AR B 2 BURE -

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in exchange (decrease)
rate in equity
EREFH REZIE,
(%) OR2)
% $'000
7T
2021 —E2-—-F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT HETRE
against US$ 1 9,655
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fin 78 T R I TG E
against US$ (1) (9,655)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens AT HARBRE
against RMB 1 26,754
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT ARBIGE
against RMB (1) (26,754)
2020 —TTF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens AT HETRE
against US$ 1 1,997
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fiw 7S T 2 2L TTIg A
against US$ (1) (1,997)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT HARBRE
against RMB 1 21,925
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens WS T H AR IZE
against RMB (1) (21,925)

262 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited

Annual Report 2021



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N - HLABITYIR)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of
the Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate
balance of cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
contract assets, prepayments and other receivables and long-term
receivable.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2021

36. TRIAEEEBENRBER

(%)
EERR

AEEYEETMEFEERR - AEH
ZEERRSIRERASEEY  H
FRKFEAREERE  GHEE &
S R T e At 8 WA Rk TR A B = T P UK
I8 o

R R K FERR

TREJRBEAEEEERRY T EER
REBAER (BRIFEMER AT EHAN
THRERALBN 2 IERTEER) » K&
RT-A=t—BNFERBRI RS
ZEEEERERERERR - 252
TRRREBMEEAREENRVBER
BREERR -

R-B-_—F+=-HA=+-—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 A
RAGEE
i FERNEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FARR H2MER HEIWER s @it
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T Fr Fr
Long-term receivable™ RN IE 1,713,833 - - - 1,713,833
Trade and bills receivables® & S EKFUAE K EKE % *
— Normal —1F5 - - - 181,820 181,820
— Doubtful — A& - - - 105,377 105,377
Financial assets included FABATIER
in prepayments Hit e sa
and other receivables™ JEMEE"
— Normal —IF® 52,159 - - - 52,159
— Doubtful — A&k - - 15,719 - 15,719
Contract assets” BNEE"
— Normal —IF® - - - 63,582 63,582
— Doubtful — A&k - - - 7,221 7,221 =
Cash and cash equivalents B KRESEY
— Not yet past due — WRBE 3,007,164 - - - 3,007,164
4,773,156 - 15,719 358,000 5,146,875
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

BABTTIIR)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

36. ERLEMRE

(%)

ZERR &)

= AR K AR

= HE

Z RBUER

HER ()

R—E-_TF+-_A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
BHEE
B FERHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE E2MRE EEE BEAE FoHs
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr T T T
Long-term receivables* REEKE 1,592,983 - - - 1,592,983
Trade and bills receivables* & 5 eI K B
— Normal — 7 - — - 348,494 348,494
— Doubtful — A&k - - - 48,037 48,037
Financial assets included FABAFER
in prepayments and Hib 08
other receivables™ LEREE"
— Normal — 5 45,865 = = = 45,865
— Doubtful — A&k - - 15,528 - 15,528
Contract assets” ANEE"
— Normal — I8 = = - 22,629 22,629
— Doubtful — A&k - - - 1,182 1,182
Cashand cash equivalents 34 RIEEEEY)
— Not yet past due — HARBE 2,375,300 - - - 2,375,300
4,014,148 — 15,528 420,342 4,450,018
* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group * RAKEEAGERER L2 ESHEY

FEARAHNEENS - EREEHRERZ

applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based 7
BRI BTSRRI 5 E 20 M P a2 1 2 B8 o

on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 and note 21 to the
financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in long-term o et AREAFEMGRIE « AN SRIB R EAM
receivables, prepayments and other receivables is considered to YRz eMEET RO AMES
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information HETZESHEEZEERBREVSE
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit ERARBEEIL I - AR EEERER
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the RIEE] BAZEcMEEZEE

HEWER [AIRE] o

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

FRAASEREZEEFAREERE
#)E B DA IR 5R0R B E A e Uk
RESI M EERRZFHAECEED
PRI TEIRAMTE20 ~ 21 R 22 258 »

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables, contract assets B 54
and prepayments and other receivables are disclosed in notes 20,
21 and 22 to the financial statements, respectively.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR

AND POLICIES (continued) (#)

Liquidity risk MENE TR

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEBFAKLEERSE SR T AR

liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both RHEERZER - ZTABEF RAK

its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills EEzeMmTAENEREE (HWNESE

receivables) and projected cash flows from operations. Wk R BN E R ) 2 B HA B LA K B R AL
EEBMERE ©

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity REBZEEAEREZENFIERE

of funding and flexibility through trade payables and other R FRIE - BR—EPEIERARE

payables, use of loans from an intermediate holding company and REEEBEHISFES IR T HERE

lease liabilities. IC i P i

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end RIEERR - AEBERETHORITR

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted NRzemBE s BmERAT

payments, is as follows:

2021
—E--F
Less than
1 year or 1t02 2to5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FRH
REXR —EWEF MERF BBREF et
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FTr FTr FTr Fr Tr
Lease liabilities HEGE 44,364 43,467 125,379 429,711 642,921
Loans from an intermediate — & EHERE A &
holding company R 907,920 - - - 907,920
Trade payables and B FRATHER
other payables HAb R RIA 1,507,338 - - - 1,507,338
2,459,622 43,467 125,379 429,711 3,058,179

BEEERRERA
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SRR (%)
2020
Less than
1 year or 1to2 2t05 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FA
RER —EWF MERF BBAF st
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Lease liabilities HEGE 40,741 44,187 129,199 469,626 683,753
Loans from an intermediate — &1 F RE1EAL A 7]
holding company B® 907,920 - — — 907,920
Trade payables and BIENFIER
other payables H e 508 2,015,855 - - - 2,015,855
2,964,516 44187 129,199 469,626 3,607,528
Capital management BERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEAREE 2 X ZERRRERSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and B EREELE CRE N RERFBR Y
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business BALE  UXBHEEBREERSR
and maximise shareholders’ value. RZIREEE-
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REBTREERERE - WIRLEIBER
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk BYRBMEEERFEIELRAE -
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the REFIFABRERERE  AEExgH
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to BEMBREIKE - MERERREE RN
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. TERD - REEWEREAREENE
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 15 BORSEFEHE

managing capital during the year.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR

AND POLICIES (continued) (#)
. psd = =
Capital management (Continued) EXEE )
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt- Z’S%@@Eﬁﬁ ERBELEREBHEE
to-asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided PREZEER - ERABLEERRNA
by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises loans from an ,\%/%%Efﬁu B MBEFE - BF
intermediate holding company, less cash and cash equivalents. FHEAE—HTEERARERERE S
The debt-to-asset ratio is total liabilities net of advances from EIREEEY - BEHRYHEEL T RAE
customers divided by total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end BEREPBFMRAEEE - NIREH
of the reporting period were as follows: RZBEREELERNOT -
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
+=A=+—H +TZHA=+—H
$°000 $000
Frx Fit
Loans from an intermediate —ER EER AR ER
holding company 873,000 873,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BekREEEY (3,007,164) (2,375,300)
Net debts/(cash) &%,/ (Re) 8 (2,134,164) (1,502,300)
Total equity HarkEs 3,847,099 2,786,593
Total equity plus net debts BERINBETE 1,712,935 1,284,293
Gearing ratio BERBELE N/A i N/A 38 A

BERERRERAA 26
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2 miEMREEEENREGR
AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)

Capital management (Continued) BEXREE#®)

The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was RERER 2 ERHEELRNT -

as follows:

2021 2020

—E--F —=2F

$’000 $'000

Fx Tt

Total liabilities FER=N 3,354,196 3,782,161
Less: Advances from customers W BN (11,762) (13,529)

3,342,434 3,768,632

Total assets BEE 7,201,295 6,568,754

Debt-to-asset ratio BEHEELX 46.4% 57.4%

=+ ¥
37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. IREHIRE1E
As at the date that these consolidated financial statements were REZEGEV R RE EZH @ #E
approved, there is no event after the reporting period which should BTRBEZ MEHIREE -

be disclosed.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. KA BB AR R R

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the RIEER - AR RF B AT ER D
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: g
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB LRE 6 33
Right-of-use assets EREEE ) 877 2,630
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARZIRE 1,592,204 878,000
Total non-current assets JEmENEEME 1,593,087 880,663
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables HAth EUFRIR 3,699 4,116
Amounts due from an intermediate 7 U — b R4 R A )
holding company 1,871 1,871
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A Rk 1,100,388 1,805,656
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeSEY 105,766 102,560
Total current assets mENEEMRE 1,211,724 1,914,203
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H A e FRIE 4,062 4,052
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGRS - 21,600
Amounts due to an intermediate FEAS AR 4R “’“ /TAIE
holding company 205,275 99,047
Loans from an intermediate holding —HFREERATER
company 873,000 873,000
Interest payable to an intermediate FES AR R EH] S
holding company 104,569 150,371
Lease liabilities HEARE 985 1,882
Total current liabilities mE B EAE 1,187,891 1,149,952
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 23,833 764,251
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABEE
LIABILITIES 1,616,920 1,644,914
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE - 985
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERE - 985
Net assets BETE 1,616,920 1,643,929
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BARHRE AEEER
of the parent
Share capital s 469,735 469,735
Reserves (note) fFE (PfEE) 1,147,185 1,174,194
Total equity B 1,616,920 1,643,929
Ning Qifeng Han Xu -
BHIE EE
Executive Director Non-executive Director
HITEE FEHTTEE
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. RA Bl BAFEAR R R ()

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Mzt -
) T nr :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRIRERENT
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
A E BRI R RitER Fohy
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr T
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZEF—H—H 1,935,266 127,961 (961,706) 1,101,521
Profit for the year and total RERHEF R
comprehensive income AEEE2A
for the year Enrs - - 72,673 72,673
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2021 r=—Z-—%—HF—H 1,935,266 127,961 (889,033) 1,174,194
Loss for the year and total AEEFER
comprehensive loss AEEEE
for the year EEBE - - (27,009) (27,009)
At 31 December 2021 RNZE-_—F+=-A=1+—H 1,935,266 127,961 (916,042) 1,147,185

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  39. HLEBTHERE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MBMERE__F=A=+=HK
by the board of directors on 23 March 2022. BEGHERRET)E -
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BT ER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLHEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+F ZET-)\F ZE-NF ZTTF B--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET T BT FHBx
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue Wz 656,380 812,320 812,948 655,419 873,659
Profit/(loss) before tax from  FHERE ¥ 2
continuing operations BRI ATEF (B518) (88,244) (91,034) (596,711) 135,508 398,360
Income tax credit/(expenses) HERELERS
from continuing operations ~ FT3 &%,/ (F5) (186,326) (301) 78,643 (39,409) (139,664)
Profit/(loss) for the year from 5B E %2
continuing operations AEEHERF/ (E18) (274,570) (91,335) (518,068) 96,099 258,696
Discontinued operations & I &% ¥#3%
Profit/(loss) for the year from 4R MR & 752
discontinued operations AEEHEF,/ (E1R) (379,669) 923,677 129,444 134,057 —
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF, (EE) (654,239) 832,342 (388,624) 230,156 258,696
Profit/(loss) attributable to B RIEA A
owners of the parent FEE&F, (&) (285,438) 766,716 (150,387) 165,131 240,506
Non-controlling interests iR e (368,801) 65,626 (238,237) 65,025 18,190
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEHRT (F1E) (654,239) 832,342 (388,624) 230,156 258,696
At 31 December
W+=A=+-8
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+F ZE-)\F ZE-NF ZTTF B--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET T BT THT
ASSETS and LIABILITIES BERE&E
Total assets BEE 19,725,222 12,333,431 9,592,979 6,568,754 7,201,295
Total liabilities meE 16,369,499 9,126,040 6,949,669 3,782,161 3,354,196
Net assets BEFE 3,355,723 3,207,391 2,643,310 2,786,593 3,847,099
Equity attributable to owners A RIS A
of the parent FEfEHE R 2,420,504 2,220,090 1,921,479 2,219,981 2,533,899 [
Non-controlling interests IR RS 935,219 987,301 721,831 566,612 1,313,200
Total equity R 3,355,723 3,207,391 2,643,310 2,786,593
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Property Portfolio
MBS

1. PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

1. FEREWE

Gross Group’s Term of
Location Existing use floor area interest lease
REE
vE AR BEEE MR HE
(sq.m.) (%)
(FHK)
The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to [GES H A

Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC
Bl ERALE BRE
SEARTI IR R — B

LAJE PO5 387535
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